REVISED
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:

Contact:
Democratic Services
Direct Dial: 01775 764705
e-mail:
demservices@sholland.gov.uk
If you are interested in attending this meeting
as a member of the public please contact us
using the details above.
Date:
23 July 2021

Marquee Suite, Springfields
Events & Conference Centre,
Camelgate, Spalding, PE12 6ET

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Marquee Suite, Springfields
Events & Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding, PE12 6ET on Thursday, 29 July
2021, commencing at 6.30 pm at which your attendance is requested.
Yours faithfully,

Christine Marshall
Executive Director (Strategy and Resources) (S151)
(Quorum:13)
AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence.

2.

Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings:

3.

a)

Council 19 May 2021 (copy enclosed)

(Pages
5 - 12)

b)

Special Council 1 July 2021 (copy enclosed)

(Pages
13 - 16)

Declaration of Interests.
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.)

4.

Chairman's Announcements.

5.

Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet.

6.

Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6

7.

Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7

8.

Committee Minutes
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:a) Special Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy
Development Panel – 29 June 2021

9.

Key Decision Plan
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages
17 - 22)

10.

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership
This report presents the Business Case for the South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership; a draft structure, Tiers 1-3, for the integrated
shared management arrangements for the South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership for the purpose of staff consultation; a draft
Memorandum of Agreement for the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership to provide a framework for how the relationship between the
Councils would be governed; and proposes the appointment/designation
of the Head of Paid Service as well as the placing of the Monitoring
Officer and Section 151 Officer at the disposal of the other two councils.
These three statutory roles will form part of the integrated shared
management arrangements for the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership (report of the Interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid
Service enclosed)

(Pages
23 172)

11.

Allocation of funding for planned works to be undertaken at Spalding
Cemetery, Pinchbeck Road, Spalding.
To secure agreement to amending the Council’s Capital Programme for
the 2021-22 Financial Year to make a provision for planned capital
works to be undertaken at Spalding Cemetery and approve the drawdown of the Spalding Special Expenses Reserve to fund revenue works
(report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets & Planning enclosed).

(Pages
173 182)

12.

HRA- Energy Efficiency Improvements Project
To agree acceptance of Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery
capital funding of £800,000 and enabling funding of £87,300. To agree
an amendment to the HRA capital programme of £1,152,300, to be
funded by £887,300 Green Homes Grant and £265,000 for match
funding required under the scheme. To agree retrofit works to council
properties at a total initial value of £1,152,300 and approve the
acceptance of grant funding and the necessary amendments to the HRA
capital budget. To award a contract Rybka for consultancy works and
Aaron Services Ltd for retrofit works at the initial value of £1,152,300. To
allow future call off works for a period of up to 8 years at a value not

(Pages
183 188)

exceeding £8,000,000 (report of the Portfolio Holder for HRA & Private
Sector Housing and Executive Director – Strategy and Resources
(S151) enclosed)
13.

Pavement Licensing
To consider continuing to delegate to the Lincolnshire County Council
authority to discharge all functions relating to pavement licences under
sections 1 to 9 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 as amended
(report of the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection enclosed).

(Pages
189 192)

14.

Report from Outside Bodies
To provide South Holland District Council with an update following the
latest meeting of the Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Committee (report
by Councillor G Scalese enclosed).

(Pages
193 196)

15.

Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to
the Constitution.
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to
the Constitution.

16.

South Holland Centre
To obtain approval to proceed with the implementation of the proposed
structure to accompany revised operations (report of the Portfolio Holder
for Communities and Facilities enclosed).

17.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent

NOTE:

(Pages
197 202)

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

18.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 4 of
part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

19.

South Holland Centre
Appendix to the report at agenda item 16 is enclosed.

(Pages
203 210)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2.a)
-1-

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the
Marquee Suite, Springfields Events & Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding,
PE12 6ET, on Wednesday, 19 May 2021 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
F Biggadike (Chairman)
P A Redgate (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
J R Astill
J Avery
A C Beal
H J W Bingham
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
A C Cronin
T A Carter
A Casson

R A Gibson
R Grocock
M Hasan
J L King
C J Lawton
J D McLean
A M Newton
N H Pepper
G A Porter
J L Reynolds
G T D Rudkin

G P Scalese
M D Seymour
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson
A R Woolf
C N Worth

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors H Drury,
R Gambba-Jones and S-A Slade,
In Attendance: The Executive Director (Strategy and Resources) (S151), the
Assistant Director - Governance (Monitoring Officer), the Assistant Director Communities and Operations, the Head of Delivery, the Democratic Services
Manager, the Democratic Services Team Leader and the Democratic Services
Trainee.
Action By

1.

MINUTE'S SILENCE
Prior to the formal business of the agenda, the outgoing Chairman
called on all present to observe a minute’s silence in
remembrance of all those who had lost their lives to, or who had
been affected by Covid-19.

2.

ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN
The outgoing Chairman thanked Councillors for their support
during his Chairmanship. He invited nominations for the election
of Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year. Councillor P
Redgate was nominated and seconded.
DECISION:
FW

That Councillor P Redgate be elected as Chairman for the
ensuing year.

Page 5

-2SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021

(Councillor Redgate thereupon took the Chair and signed the
declaration of acceptance of office.)
3.

ELECTION OF A VICE-CHAIRMAN
The Chairman invited nominations for the appointment of a Vice
Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year. Councillor A Woolf
was nominated and seconded.
DECISION:
FW

That Councillor A Woolf be appointed as Vice Chairman of the
Council for the ensuing year.
4.

MINUTES
Consideration was given to the following minutes:




Special Council – 24 February 2021
Council – 3 March 2021
Special Council – 28 April 2021

DECISION:
That the minutes of the following meetings be signed by the
Chairman as a correct record:



5.

Special Council – 24 February 2021
Council – 3 March 2021
Special Council – 28 April 2021

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
The Leader of the Council declared an interest in relation to
agenda items 12a, b and c,as they related to the purchase of new
properties, and he had the potential to know the parties involved.
He would take no part in the discussion, and would leave the
meeting for consideration of these items.
Councillors Alcock, Booth, Coupland, Seymour, Sneath and
Tyrrell did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, but in the
interests of transparency declared that, in relation to agenda item
12c, that they were on the Board of Directors of Welland Homes
Ltd.
Councillor Grocock did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest,
but in the interests of transparency declared that, in relation to

Page 6

-3SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021

agenda item 12c, he was a Shareholder Representative for
Welland Homes Ltd.
6.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.
The Chairman thanked everybody for their attendance and stated
that, after a year of virtual meetings necessitated by the Covid-19
pandemic, it was good to see all members and officers together in
a physical meeting.
The Chairman wished to thank the previous Chairman, Councillor
Biggadike, for his service to the Council, and for his guidance
whilst he had undertaken the role of Vice-Chairman.
The Chairman welcomed Councillor Woolf as Vice-Chairman, and
stated that they would work hard together for the Council and the
communities they represented.
The Chairman announced that his Chairman’s charity was Mind, a
charity of real significance, particularly over the last year as a
result of the Covid-19 pandemic. He also stated that he wished to
recognise local charities and would consider ways in which to
assist them. He asked to be advised of any projects that would
benefit from the Chairman’s or the Vice-Chairman’s assistance.

7.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE
CABINET.
Councillor Porter congratulated Councillor Redgate on his
appointment as Chairman, and also thanked the outgoing
Chairman, Councillor Biggadike, and his wife, for their service.
There were no Cabinet announcements.

8.

QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER
6
There were none.

9.

QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING
ORDER 7
Question to: Councillor Coupland
Question From: Councillor Newton
Subject: Delivery of Welland Homes Business Plan
Councillor Newton asked whether delivery of the Welland Homes

Page 7

-4SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021

Business Plan was on track and if not, what was being done to
address this. Councillor Coupland responded that as a result of
the Covid-19 pandemic, the Business Plan was slightly behind
where it should be however, this was being addressed and in the
last six to eight weeks, another 10 properties had been secured.
The target within the Business Plan was 60 properties and at the
present time, 45 had been acquired. New schemes were being
considered, and it took time to find properties that were value for
money. However, it was stated that more properties would be
considered over the next few months.
Question to: Councillor Lawton
Question From: Councillor Booth
Subject: Funding to provide energy efficient homes
Referring to the forthcoming decision on the Key Decision Planner
– ‘Energy efficiency works to council properties’ Councillor Booth
asked whether funding was available to residents of South
Holland to make their homes more energy efficient? Would there
be assistance for people on benefits, and would assistance be
provided as a loan or a grant? Councillor Lawton advised that
she did not have the information available but would liaise with
the Assistant Director - Housing and provide members with
information in due course.
Question to: Councillor Lawton
Question From: Councillor Brewis
Subject: Registered Social Landlords – compliance with good
practice
Councillor Brewis commented that although some Housing
Associations (Registered Social Landlords/RSLs) operated well,
others did not, and during the Covid-19 pandemic, members had
received many queries from tenants. He asked whether the
Authority had the power to require compliance with good practice,
and where there were nomination rights, were these exercised
and a level of competence and compliance used to ensure good
practice was followed? Councillor Lawton was not able to confirm
if the Authority had powers but advised that it did have influence.
There were some RSLs that were not providing the level of
service required, and this was being pursued. The Authority did
have nomination rights and influence.
10.

COMMITTEE MINUTES
The minutes of the following Committees and Panels were noted:


Policy Development Panel – 2 March 2021

Page 8

-5SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021






11.

Planning Committee – 10 March 2021
Governance and Audit Committee – 11 March 2021
Performance Monitoring Panel – 18 March 2021
Planning Committee – 14 April 2021
Planning Committee – 29 April 2021

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.
DECISION:
That the Key Decision Plan be received.

12.

REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 27 APRIL 2021
Consideration was given to the report of Cabinet which sought
approval for the Cabinet’s recommendations:
a) Acquisition of S106 affordable housing for the Housing
Revenue Account
The report was presented to the Council by the Portfolio Holder
for Assets and Planning who commented that this item and the
other two items for agreement at this point were positive news
stories for the Authority.
DECISION:
To amend the Capital Programme to identify the project as an
approved scheme in the 2021/22 Budget.
b) Acquisition of housing for the Housing Revenue Account
The report was presented to the Council by the Portfolio Holder
for Assets and Planning.
DECISION:
To amend the Capital Programme to identify the project as an
approved scheme in the 2021/22 Budget.
c) Welland Homes Business Plan Update incorporating Holbeach
Road, Spalding
The report was presented to the Council by the Portfolio Holder
for Assets and Planning.

Page 9

-6SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021

DECISION:
1. That the updated Welland Homes Business Plan be approved,
and included as an amendment in the next SHDC Quarterly
report to members; and
2. That the delegated authority, granted by Council on 25 th March
2015, to the Executive Director – Commercialisation (the S151
Officer), to approve the final mix of use of reserves and
borrowing in line with the business plan and Council Treasury
Management Strategy, be reaffirmed.
(The Leader left the meeting at the start of consideration of this
item, and re-joined the meeting following consideration of all the
items on the report).
13.

POLITICAL GROUP REGULATIONS AND
COMMITTEE/OUTSIDE BODY MEMBERSHIP REVIEW
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director –
Governance (Monitoring Officer), the purpose of which was to
confirm, in accordance with the Local Government (Committees
and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, appointments to
committees and outside bodies and review of membership.
DECISION:
a) That the following Committees be appointed in accordance
with political group regulations:










Planning Committee;
Governance and Audit Committee;
Appointments and Disciplinary Committee;
Appointments and Disciplinary Appeal Committee;
Policy Development Panel;
Performance Monitoring Panel;
Licensing Committee;
Committee of the Licensing Authority;
Shared Memorandum of Agreement Committee

b) That the following Committees be appointed without being
politically balanced:




Standards Panel;
Appeals Panel;
Settlements Agreements Sub-Committee

Page 10

FW

-7SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 19 May 2021

c) That changes to the Committee and Panel membership, as set
out in Appendix A, be agreed, subject to the following
changes:
Licensing Committee and Committee of the Licensing
Authority
 Councillor McLean to be appointed to both committees
 Councillor Worth to replace Councillor Seymour on both
committees
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
 Councillor McLean to remain on both committees (seats on
both committees were allocated as conservative under the
Political Group Regulations. However, the Conservative
Group chose not to nominate anyone to take the seat on
either of the committees).
Planning Committee
 Councillor Redgate to replace Councillor Drury
Shared Memorandum of Agreement Committee
 Councillors Worth, Coupland and Gibson were appointed
to this new committee.
14.

NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION.
There were no further nominations, and there were no proposed
changes to the Constitution.

15.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There were none.

(The meeting ended at 7.07 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 2.b)
-8-

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in
the Marquee Suite, Springfields Events & Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding,
PE12 6ET, on Thursday, 1 July 2021 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
P A Redgate (Chairman)

B Alcock
J R Astill
J Avery
A C Beal
F Biggadike
H J W Bingham
M D Booth
P E Coupland
A C Cronin
A Casson

H Drury
R Gambba-Jones
R A Gibson
R Grocock
C J Lawton
J D McLean
A M Newton
N H Pepper
G A Porter
J L Reynolds

G T D Rudkin
G P Scalese
M D Seymour
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
S C Walsh
C N Worth

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis,
T A Carter, M Hasan, J L King, S-A Slade, D J Wilkinson and A R Woolf,
In Attendance: Head of Paid Service and Strategic Advisor, Executive Director
(Strategy & Resources), Democratic Services Manager, Democratic Services Trainee
Action By

16.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

17.

A NEW LOCAL STRATEGIC ALLIANCE FOR SOUTH-EAST
LINCOLNSHIRE
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Paid Service
and Strategic Advisor which considered the recommendations
from Stage Two of the review of the future of the Integrated
Shared Management Structure and Joint Working Arrangements
for South Holland District Council.
The Leader of the Council re-iterated that the recommendations
that had been set out to Members were only to agree in principle
to form a strategic alliance with Boston Borough and East Lindsey
District Councils. The Leader also reassured Members that they
would still have the opportunity to feed into, via Scrutiny, the
business case that was being developed. Once the business case
had been put forward to Full Council for decision, Members did
still have the choice as to whether to accept or reject that
business case.

Page 13

-9SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 1
July 2021

DECISION:
1. To agree, in principle, to enter into a new South-East
Lincolnshire strategic alliance with Boston Borough and East
Lindsey District Councils, subject to the approval of the
business case at a future meeting of the Council.
2. That the Council enters into an agreement with East Lindsey
District Council under s113 of the Local Government Act 1972
placing that Council’s Chief Executive, Rob Barlow, at the
disposal South Holland District Council from 2 July 2021 and
for the period necessary to prepare and present to a future
meeting of South Holland District Council the following for
decision:
 Business Case for the proposed new local strategic
alliance between South Holland District Council, Boston
Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council;
A draft structure, Tiers 1-3, for the integrated shared
management arrangements of the proposed new local
strategic alliance between South Holland District
Council, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey
District Council for the purpose of staff consultation; and
A Memorandum of Agreement to support the new local
strategic alliance between South Holland District
Council, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey
District Council.
3. That the agreement referred to in recommendation 2 above be
subject to the key terms set out in paragraph 7.13.1 of this
report.
4. That Rob Barlow undertakes the role of Chief Executive and is
designated Head of Paid Service for the duration that he is
placed at this Council’s disposal under recommendation 2
above.
5. That a Joint PDP/PMP Working Group be established to
review the proposed report and associated documentation in
advance of the business case decision for the next Council
decision.


The associated documentation to include the Business
Case, Memorandum of Agreement and proposed
structure for consultation.

Page 14

- 10 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 1
July 2021







18.

The Working Group to include the Chairman and Vice
Chairman of PDP and PMP and the remaining
members to be appointed from the membership of the
above Panels and to reflect where possible the political
balance of the Council.
A series of topic briefings will be prepared by officers
for the Working Group’s considerations.
The Joint PDP/PMP Working Group to provide a report
and recommendations directly back to the Council on
its findings as part of the next report to the Council.
The final version of the report will be for the Chairman
of PDP and the Chairman of PMP to agree following
Member opportunity to provide feedback.

NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION.
Part 3 (Delegations), Section D of the Constitution states that
membership of the Governance and Audit Committee should be
‘7 non-Cabinet members, excluding the Chairman of the Council
and the Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel and
Policy Development Panel’.
The following change has been submitted:
Governance and Audit Committee
Councillor Biggadike to replace Councillor Redgate
DECISION:
That Councillor Biggadike’s appointment to Governance and Audit
Committee, replacing Councillor Redgate, be approved.

(The meeting ended at 6.46pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Issued – 23 July 2021

KEY DECISION PLAN

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision
is likely to be made, to:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk
The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

Page 17

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period from the date of publication of
any decision.
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

1

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Agenda Item 9.

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

Portfolio Holder
for Communities
& Facilities

To consider the grant funding awarded
to South Holland Centre in the second
round of the Cultural Recovery Fund
from DCMS via Arts Council England

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder for
Communities & Facilities,
or Leader

COVID
Implications of
the South
Holland Centre
Operations

Page 18

Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

Before 31 Aug 2021

Acquisition of a second hand property.

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (A)
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

Acquisition of a property

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (B)

2

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Acquisition of property.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (C)

Page 19

Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

Acquisition of property

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (D)
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

Acquisition of property

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (E)

3

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Acquisition of property

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Before 31 Aug 2021

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery (F)

Page 20

Portfolio Holder
for Communities
& Facilities

To consider financial support to the
leisure operator for the period July to
September 2021

Portfolio Holder for
Communities & Facilities,
or Leader

Covid
implications for
the leisure
operating
contract July September 2021
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

Before 31 Aug 2021

Fire door replacement and associated
fire compliance works to sheltered
schemes

Assistant Director
Housing, or any other
officer with delegation
Before 31 Aug 2021

Fire door and
Compliance
contract

4

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Deputy Leader of
the Cabinet,
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

To amended the current capital
programme to enable the Public
Toilets programme to be funded and
enable commence of works.

Cabinet 7 Sep 2021, or
Leader

To set out the contractual position and
a range of potential options for
consideration for the Leisure
Management contract

Cabinet 7 Sep 2021, or
Leader

To provide an update on the current
HGV driver shortage and to seek
approval to implement new working
arrangements to support improvement
of this situation.

Cabinet 7 Sep 2021, or
Leader

South Holland District
Council 22 Sep 2021

Capital
Programme
amendmentPublic Toilets
Programme

Page 21

Portfolio Holder
for Communities
& Facilities

South Holland District
Council 22 Sep 2021

COVID
Implications on
the leisure
operating
contract
Portfolio Holder
for
Environmental
Services

South Holland District
Council 22 Sep 2021

HGV Driver
Shortage

5

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To agree a framework for future HRA
housing development investment
decisions.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Cabinet 26 Oct 2021, or
Leader
South Holland District
Council 24 Nov 2021

HRA
Development
Framework

Page 22

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor H Drury (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

6

Agenda Item 10.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Rob Barlow, Interim Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service

To:

Full Council – 29 July 2021

Author:

Nathan Elvery, Strategic Advisor

Subject

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

Purpose:

This report presents the Business Case for the South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership; a draft structure, Tiers 1-3, for the integrated shared
management arrangements for the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership for the purpose of staff consultation; a draft Memorandum of
Agreement for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership to provide a
framework for how the relationship between the Councils would be governed;
and proposes the appointment/designation of the Head of Paid Service as
well as the placing of the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer at the
disposal of the other two councils. These three statutory roles will form part
of the integrated shared management arrangements for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.

Recommendations:
1. To approve the business case (at Appendix A) for, and to approve entry into, a South East
Lincolnshire Council Partnership between Boston Borough Council, East Lindsey District
Council and South Holland District Council.
2. To delegate to the Deputy s151 Officer in consultation with the Leader, approval of the final
terms for, and the signing and sealing of, the Memorandum of Agreement (draft at Appendix
B) following due diligence.
3. That, subject to similar decisions to be taken by the other two Council, Rob Barlow
becomes the Joint Chief Executive and Head of Paid Services of South Holland District
Council, East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council from 3 August 2021. Rob
shall remain formally employed by East Lindsey District Council and this Council agrees to
him continuing to be placed at the disposal of this Council and at the disposal of Boston
Borough Council under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972. Thereafter, East
Lindsey District Council will contribute 46% of the cost of Mr Barlow’s remuneration, Boston
Borough Council will contribute 23% and South Holland District Council 31% of the same.
4. That, subject to similar decisions to be taken by the other two Councils, this Council agrees
to Mark Stinson becoming the Joint Monitoring Officer of South Holland District Council,
East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council from 3 August 2021. Mark shall
remain formally employed by this Council and this Council agrees to him being placed at the
disposal of East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council under Section 113 of
the Local Government Act 1972. Thereafter, East Lindsey District Council will contribute 46%
of the cost of Mr Stinson's remuneration, Boston Borough Council will contribute 23% and
South Holland District Council 31% of the same.
5. That, subject to similar decisions to be taken by the other two Councils, this Council agrees

Page 23

to Christine Marshall becoming the Joint Section 151 Officer of South Holland District
Council, East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council from 3 August 2021.
Christine shall remain formally employed by this Council and this Council agrees to her being
placed at the disposal of East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council under
Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972. Thereafter, East Lindsey District Council will
contribute 46% of the cost of Mrs Marshall's remuneration, Boston Borough Council will
contribute 23% and South Holland District Council 31% of the same.
6. To authorise the Joint Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service to commence consultation
immediately on the proposed integrated shared management structure (included in
Appendix A) and subject to there being no material changes to the senior management
structure following consultation with officers, delegated authority be given to the Head of
Paid Service in consultation with the Council Leaders to implement the said structure and
associated appointments from within the existing senior staffing partnership cohort (Tiers 2
and 3).
7. To establish a Joint Chief Officer Appointment Panel and a Joint Appointment Appeals
Committee, with terms of reference as agreed and set out in the Memorandum of
Agreement, and that the Joint Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any necessary
changes to the Constitution.
8. That the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP) and Policy Development Panel (PDP)
undertakes a review of the Partnership after 12 months and reports back to Council.

1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

Boston Borough Council, East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District Council
at their last meetings of full Council agreed in principle to the formation of a three-Council
Partnership to be known as the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, building
upon the foundations of the existing alliance between Boston Borough Council and East
Lindsey District Council.

1.2

In making the in principle decision to support the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership, the current Joint Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service of Boston Borough
Council and East Lindsey District Council, Rob Barlow, was placed at the disposal of South
Holland District Council on an interim basis to produce the following documents for further
consideration by each Council:





1.3

A Business Case for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership;
A draft structure, Tiers 1-3, for the integrated shared management arrangements for
the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership for the purpose of staff
consultation; and
A Memorandum of Agreement for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership
to provide a framework for how the relationship between the Councils would be
governed.

This report brings these documents back to Council for consideration and proposes:
(i) the appointment of the Head of Paid Service – a statutory position that
require Council approval; and

Page 24

(ii) the placing of this Council’s s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer at the
disposal of the other two councils. The three statutory roles would form part
of the integrated shared management arrangements for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.
1.4

Alongside the production of the three key documents has been a programme of scrutiny
and the findings of the scrutiny activity undertaken and associated recommendations are
appended to this report to help inform the debate at Council.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

In July 2020 Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council formed a strategic
alliance, which saw the creation of a shared management team across the two Councils.

2.2

In forming the alliance there was a clear ambition for both Councils to become more
financially efficient in the way they operated through greater collaboration and since July
2020 the Councils have identified £1.2m in savings and remain on track to deliver a further
£600k by March 2022. This means the Councils will achieve their initial target of £15.4m
over the ten-year period.

2.3

Whilst there have been many notable achievements for the alliance in its first year, a key
decision was taken on 15 February 2021 when Boston Borough Council agreed to become
a shareholder in Public Sector Partnership Services Limited – a company now jointly
owned by Boston Borough Council, East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District
Council. This decision has provided significantly more resilience to several key services
previously within the Borough Council.

2.4

During this time South Holland District Council has completed a strategic review of the
future of the integrated shared management structure and joint working arrangements with
Breckland District Council. The Council approved on 24 February 2021 the preferred
option of a new local strategic partnership and as a consequence South Holland District
Council has decoupled its relationship with Breckland District Council. This was
successfully achieved on 1 May 2021.

2.5

This has provided an opportunity for all three Councils to explore the opportunity for a new
strategic partnership in Lincolnshire and as a consequence of this opportunity have, in
principle subject to the business case, agreed to establish a new partnership to be known
as the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.

2.6

Since the in principle decisions by each Council at their last meeting of full Council, Officers
have further developed the Business Case for Member consideration. The Business Case
provides the strategic, commercial and financial case for the creation of the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.

2.7

The purpose of this report is to bring forward the Business Case for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, the governance arrangements in the form of the
Memorandum of Agreement to support the Partnership and the proposed structure (Tier 13) to enable the sharing of senior staff within and across the partnership.

Page 25

2.8

If the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership is to be formed, the participating
Councils would continue to retain their own sovereignty and democratic accountability to
their communities, as well as their own local decision making.

2.9

The Partnership would formally commence on 6 September 2021; with a further report back
to each Council in October setting out the following:




the scope of services identified in Phase 1 Integration for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership;
the identified scope of services as Phase 2 Integration for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership; and
the performance framework and the frequency of report for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership to Council.

3.

BUSINESS CASE

3.1

Members are presented with the Business Case at Appendix A to this report.

3.2

The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership would be ground-breaking in local
government in the UK – it would serve over 300,000 local residents, with a partnership
workforce of almost 1,000 officers, working across an area of 1,112 square miles and
supporting 122 elected members.

3.3

The outline business case for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership was
approved by each individual council over the period of 28 June, 30 June and the 1 July.
This demonstrated a compelling case for South Holland District Council, Boston Borough
Council and East Lindsey District Council to explore a more detailed Business Case for
approval which is the focus of this report and recommendations.

3.4

In developing the Business Case detailed consideration and reference has been given to
examples of successful partnerships which have been developed across the local
government sector.

3.5

The establishment of the partnership has been split into three distinct phases (in more
detail in Appendix A):

3.6



Phase 1 - Set Up (April 22) – the first six months would see the development of an
Annual Delivery Plan for each Council and the establishment of wider governance
and performance arrangements within the Partnership.



Phase 2 – Accelerate (22/23) – a programme of service reviews would commence
in order to seize opportunities created by the new partnership; along with a wider
programme of policy development and alignment (where there is appetite).



Phase 3 – Embed (23/24) – a focus on ambitious growth.

Financial analysis that supported the Business Case’s development demonstrates that
there is a financial opportunity of up to £42m available to the Councils collectively over the
next ten-year period through their partnership working if all opportunities to integrate
services (beyond a shared management structure) are embraced. Exploring wider service
integration where it makes sense to do so will reduce pressure on the Councils’ budgets in

Page 26

the years ahead whilst also creating capacity to invest in local priorities to achieve better
outcomes for local communities.
3.7

In addition, through combined working, the Councils as a partnership will collectively have a
stronger voice locally, regionally and nationally, when seeking resources to further their
priorities. The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership provides an increased
opportunity of success in improving key outcomes for local communities and places served.
A number of sub-regional priorities have been identified which will focus on the biggest
deprivation challenges facing our communities whilst identifying the biggest prosperity
opportunities for our communities.

3.8

PSPS, as a company owned by all three Councils, is a particular strength for the South
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership and will enable the opportunity for accelerated
improvements in efficiency and effectiveness across the partnership.

3.9

A key benefit of working together is in relation to our workforce. The partnership can better
support the development of its officers, provide them with greater opportunities to broaden
their skills and develop their knowledge and progress in their careers. At present each
Council has a number of vacancies and struggles to recruit to some particularly technical
professions, such as Building Control and Environmental Health. The South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership will also make the Councils’ more attractive employers
due to the scale of opportunity that can be provided for career development.

3.10

The Partnership has a commitment of no compulsory redundancy.

4.

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

4.1

It is important to establish governance arrangements that provide an appropriate level of
assurance to members about the performance of the Partnership and for the opportunity for
members to set the political priorities. Since members will continue to be politically
accountable it will need to be demonstrated that they retain the right to determine policy
direction.

4.2

The Memorandum of Agreement for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, at
Appendix B, sets out the purpose and aims of the shared management and agreed areas
of joint working and the basis on which the Councils shall operate. More importantly it
establishes the principles by which the relationship will operate, which is fundamental to the
success of the Partnership:








4.3

Trust, transparency, integrity and respect
Effective working relationships
Co-operation, collaboration and information sharing whilst respecting the
confidentiality of the other Councils
Accountability
Openness to change
Systematic and outcome focussed
Respect of the commercial sensitivity of relevant data

By approving the Memorandum of Agreement, all Members and Officers are agreeing to
co-operate with each other at all times in accordance with these principles.

Page 27

4.4

Following further due diligence and legal advice, Council is asked to delegate the signing
and sealing of the Memorandum of Agreement to Sam Knowles, Deputy s151 Officer, in
consultation with the Leader of the Council.

5.

SHARED MANAGEMENT TEAM

5.1

In most cases, the first step towards a deeper partnership is to share a chief executive and
Senior Management Team. Members have previously agreed, on an interim basis, the
sharing of a Joint Chief Executive for the purpose of developing the Business Case,
Memorandum of Agreement and the proposed structure for Tiers 1-3 as contained in this
report. The opportunity is to take forward proposals to share a wider Senior Management
Team. This will make better use of limited resources and puts all councils in a stronger
position to develop other shared roles or services that could make further efficiencies and
improvements. Using this opportunity to review the management structure to reflect
changing circumstances, opportunities and challenges helps position all councils for the
future.

5.2

Once a joint Senior Management Team is in place, this will allow for sharing to filter down
through the partnership and develop opportunities across all services within the
partnership.

5.3

Each council will retain its own identity and priorities but with common goals and shared
commitment to develop improved effectiveness and deliver further efficiencies to their local
communities. The most successful partnerships are those that consider which approach
might work best and adopt elements of it in one or all councils. The South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership has this distinct opportunity through the comparison of three councils.

5.4

Therefore, the proposed steps for the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership are:







Shared Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service
Shared Designated Officers, Monitoring Officer and Section 151
Shared Management Team (Tiers 1-3)
Phase 1 - review and opportunity implementation
Phase 2 - review and opportunity implementation
Phase 3 - review and opportunity implementation

5.5

The proposed structure (and the associated costs), which is set out in the Business Case at
Appendix A, covers Tiers 1-3 (Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives and Assistant
Directors). This is a draft proposal which will be subject to formal consultation with those
officers impacted.

5.6

Dedicated HR support has been established to support the Partnership to successfully
implement the proposals and to ensure enough resources are available to support all staff
affected by the proposals.

5.7

In addition, it is proposed that the appointments identified in recommendations 3, 4 and 5
be made at this point to the statutory roles of Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and
Section 151 Officer across the Partnership.

Page 28

5.8

The sharing of these staff and costs will be based on the population ratio apportionment
which underpins the Partnership based on the following percentages: South Holland District
Council 31%: Boston Borough Council 23% and East Lindsey District Council 46%.

5.9

Once consultation has concluded on the new structure, subject to there being no material
changes to the senior management structure following consultation with officers, delegated
authority be given to the Head of Paid Service in consultation with the Council Leaders to
implement the said structure and associated appointments from within the existing senior
staffing partnership cohort (Tiers 2 and 3). It is anticipated the consultation would
commence once the Council decision has been taken (if approved), with the full structure
being in place in advance of the Partnership commencing on 6 September 2021.

6.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1

The Business Case demonstrates the opportunities the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership would create, including:


the ability to work together to respond to and address shared and common
challenges and opportunities at a local, corporate and sub-regional level across the
south east region of Lincolnshire;



to realise a combined financial opportunity of up to £42m if all service integration
opportunities are embraced;



to build on the existing and successful PSPS Ltd relationship and improve service
effectiveness and efficiency;



an opportunity to improve service delivery and resilience across the partnership;



the sharing of expertise across the partnership;



the chance to create additional capacity and increased resilience to do more for our
communities;



a stronger voice locally, regionally and nationally through the creation of a South
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership identity;



to cement a solid foundation of partnership working ahead of the potential for
devolution and local reform;



the increased opportunity to secure external funding to enable the future prosperity
for our communities; and



greater career development opportunities for our workforce.

7.

EXPECTED BENEFITS

7.1

The expected benefits are set out in the Business Case as at Appendix A.

8.

IMPLICATIONS

8.1

Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues

Page 29

8.1.1 New technologies and ways of working provide the opportunity to reduce travel based
carbon emissions across the proposed Partnership. The proposed partnership also has the
potential to deliver greater climate change and environmental outcomes for the Councils
and the communities they serve.
8.2

Constitution & Legal

8.2.1 Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to enter into an
agreement with another local authority to place an officer of one at the disposal of the other
for the purposes of discharging the latter’s functions. Any officer placed at the disposal of a
Council other than his/her employer must first be consulted on the proposal. Once placed at
the disposal of the non-employing authority, the officer is classed in law as an officer of that
authority and is able to exercise powers delegated to him/her.
8.2.2 The partnership would be governed constitutionally through a memorandum of agreement
between the Councils. There will also be a need to make certain constitutional changes
(including, for instance, the creation of joint committees spanning all three councils).
8.3

Contracts

8.3.1 For the staff in scope of the integrated shared management arrangements, as set out in the
business case, there will be changes required to the contracts of employment.
8.4

Corporate Priorities

8.4.1 The proposed partnership will benefit all corporate priorities for all Councils within the
proposed partnership as set out in the draft Business Case at Appendix A. It will be
important to prioritise these for the proposed partnership to ensure the full benefit of
partnership working is able to impact on the outcomes for its local communities and places.
8.5

Crime and Disorder

8.5.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no implications associated with the
recommendations contained in this report.
8.6

Data Protection

8.6.1 The partnership will wish to shared information and data once established and therefore
there will be a requirement to put in place suitable data protection arrangements for the
partnership.
8.7

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

8.7.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no implications associated with the
recommendations contained in this report.
8.8

Financial

8.8.1 In forming the Alliance there was a clear ambition for both Councils (ELDC/BBC) to become
more financially efficient in the way they operated through greater collaboration and since

Page 30

July 2021 the Councils have identified £1.2m in savings and remain on track to deliver a
further £600k by March 2022.
8.8.2 With regards to this new partnership the financial analysis that supports the Business
Case’s development demonstrates that there is a financial opportunity of up to £42m
available to the Councils collectively, over the next ten-year period, through partnership
working, if all opportunities to integrate services are embraced. Exploring wider service
integration where it makes sense to do so will reduce pressure on the Councils’ budgets in
the years ahead whilst also creating capacity to invest in local priorities to achieve better
outcomes for communities whilst allowing local sovereignty. In addition, the successes in
each Council provide opportunities for further joint exploration and development looking
forward.
8.8.3 Significantly, the Councils as a partnership will collectively have a stronger voice locally,
regionally and nationally, when seeking resources to further their priorities. In addition,
PSPS as a company owned by all three Councils, is a particular strength for the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership and will enable the opportunity for accelerated
improvements in efficiency and effectiveness across the partnership.
8.9

Health and Wellbeing

8.9.1 As we commence the next steps towards the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership
it will be critically important to ensure we continue to support our officers and ensure they
are kept well informed, engaged and consulted throughout this phase. Our staff are our
greatest asset and we need to ensure we take good care of them and their health &
wellbeing at this critical time.
8.10

Reputation

8.10.1 A joint communications workstream will be established across the proposed partner
councils to ensure that the proposed alliance is able to respond to and engage with both
internal and external interests in a co-ordinated way reflecting the key early stages of
partnership working.
8.11

Risk Management

8.11.1 Partnership working is in essence built on a basis of trust, good leadership and good
communication. Throughout the last 5 months this has been demonstrated by all.
8.11.2 A section is included in the Business Case at Appendix A.
8.12

Safeguarding

8.12.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no implications associated with the
recommendations contained in this report.
8.13

Staffing

8.13.1 All senior managers (Tiers 1-3) have been informed of the proposed partnership direction
and have seen an early draft of the proposed structure. All staff will be informed following
the decision of the Council.

Page 31

8.13.2 A series of regular staff engagement sessions will now be established to ensure we support
our staff in the manner set out in paragraph 4.9.1.
8.13.3 The proposed partnership has a no redundancy policy.
8.14

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

8.14.1 Each Council has undertaken its own member briefing sessions in regard to the South East
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership.
8.14.2 An initial engagement meeting with the Unions has taken place and a regular set of
meetings will be established covering the period from decision to implementation.
9.

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

9.1

All Wards directly or indirectly.

10.

ACRONYMS

10.1

Not applicable.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Nathan Elvery, Strategic Advisor
07540 707448
Nathan.elvery@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:
Exempt Decision:

No
No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A: Business Case (including proposed structure for consultation)
Appendix B: Memorandum of Agreement
Appendix C: Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny Panel findings and recommendations
Appendix D: BBC Corporate and Community Scrutiny findings and recommendations
Appendix E: Joint SHDC PDP & PMP Panel findings and recommendations

Page 32

Page 33

SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
Business Case - Version 25.0

DRAFT DOCUMENT

1

South East Lincolnshire Council - Introduction

Welcome to the Business Case prepared to support the formation of the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership.
The three Councils – Boston, East Lindsey and South Holland - have an exciting opportunity to be bold and
ambitious by establishing a partnership of Councils that will be the largest in the country.

Page 34

Through joint working the Councils will have the opportunity to shape policy at a regional level, secure
more resources to deliver on their priorities and ultimately do more for the communities they serve, whilst
being more efficient in the way they operate. Working together the Councils can also have greater impact
in tackling the wider common challenges our communities face, such as health, education and transport.
On the 15th July, the Secretary of State for Local Government, the Rt Hon Robert Jenrick MP, wrote to all
Councils sharing the Government’s ambition for levelling up and the devolution of powers to local
areas. Moving now on the proposal for the Partnership’s formation positions the Councils – and the
Partnership – well for the future by placing the Councils in a stronger position to influence future
discussions for Lincolnshire.
By working together, we also have the opportunity to create a highly motivated workforce that is able to
succeed in one of the most exciting and forward thinking partnerships in Local Government.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

2

South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership Opportunity Summary
The Strategic Partnership

Efficiency

Value for money remains a key determinant
of resident satisfaction and therefore the
relationship between the local taxpayer who
pays and the Council who provides the
services they receive remains as important
today as it always has.

Page 35

This slide sets out a
summary of the
partnership
opportunity

Ambition

The scale and appetite of ambition is set by
the political leadership of the Council and is
reflected in the priorities of the Corporate
Plan. The scale of ambition determines both
the strategic capacity and strategic structure
of the organisation ensuring the organisation
is in tune with and can deliver the ambition
of its politicians.

Effectiveness

Opportunity

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•

South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership – a ground breaking strategic 3 Council partnership
operating with a shared management structure and partnership working across the workforce.

•

A partnership approach that sets the landscape for the future, by working together to deliver on key
priorities and improving service standards, with each Council retaining its political independence, public
accountability and local choice.

The Strategic Partnership will create both financial efficiency and greater capacity for the Councils to do
more for their communities, including:
•

Financial opportunity of £42m over a ten year period through a wide range of efficiencies through
partnership working based on an initial 6.5% baseline,
Developing a model for shared risk under a programme of commercial activities.
Establishment of a funding and bidding team for the SELCP to help deliver on priorities and attract new
investment to the sub-region.

•
•

To remain agile and responsive to the
modern day demands of local government
requires organisations to innovate and
transform at ever increasing pace and scale.
This requires both a pragmatic and long term
focus on the design, development and
implementation of the organisation’s target
operating model (TOM).

The Strategic Partnership

The Local Government Sector is full of
talented and skilled politicians and officers
alike. To be an attractive employer in a
competitive market requires an organisation
to be focussed on the opportunity it can offer
to and provide its workforce. Excellent
councils are where officers and members
work together with mutual trust and
confidence.

The Strategic Partnership opportunity is based on the following staffing principles:
•
•
•
•
•

•

PSPS Ltd

•

Welland Homes and South Holland Homes

•

Invest East Lindsey

•

Magna Vitae

•

Shared ICT infrastructure

•

Policy development

•

Regional
relationships

•

Aligned contracts

•

Shared terms and
conditions of employment

Shared values and behaviours.
An agile workforce.
Strong engagement with colleagues and Trade Unions.
An enjoyable culture of work that provides access to a broader range of experiences for colleagues to
develop and deploy skills.
An opportunity to work at the cutting edge of Local Government.

3

South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership Opportunity Summary

Capacity to the
Democratic Leadership

Partnerships of Place

Page 36

This slide sets out a
summary of the
partnership
opportunity

Places
&
Communities

National Policies

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Local councils are politically and
democratically led organisations with their
mandates supported and endorsed via local
elections. Ensuring sufficient capacity exists
within an organisation to deliver the policy
pledges and commitments made to the
electorate underpins the trust relationship
and foundations of the democratic process.

The Strategic Partnership:
• Circa 1,000 motivated employees to deliver 3 Annual Delivery Plans agreed by Councillors as a
partnership in support of South Holland DC, Boston BC and East Lindsey DC.
• Scale provides access to specialised skills to expand the delivery of services.
• Combining financial resources to deliver more for less.
• An ability to do a task once for the benefit of all.

The operating environment for local
government has significantly changed and
evolved since 2010. To achieve improved
outcomes for local communities and places
requires local government to work effectively
with a range of partners in the public, private
and third sectors in a complex partnership
place based environment.

The Strategic Partnership:
• A revised conversation with strategic partners such as PSPS.
• A single voice with Government departments.
• A coordinated discussion with Lincolnshire County Council, which represents the region.
• Combined delivery plans aligned with local partners in business, health, education and third sectors.
• A SELCP Economic Strategy for future growth and prosperity.

COVID-19 has highlighted the critical
importance of local government to their
places and communities and the deep
connections of understanding and
relationship that are required to ensure
community cohesion, resilience and
community identity is nurtured, developed
and supported at a local level.

The Strategic Partnership:
• Adoption of a standard model for community leadership.
• A SELCP Health and Wellbeing Programme.
• Explore a single partnership for delivery of a Leisure and Cultural Strategy.
• The ability to combine resources and deliver cross cutting community responses.
• Aligning resources to address common challenges which face our communities.
• Create an investment prospectus for the SELCP region.
• A SELCP housing building and management programme.

Local Government exists in a centralised
policy environment and thus should best
position itself to respond to the new policy
direction of any elected Government for the
improved outcomes for its communities
whilst being able to shape, influence and
deliver the local policy agenda for the
communities it serves.

The Strategic Partnership:
• A single approach to responding to the Environment Bill.
• A regional approach to generating economic prosperity post Covid 19 recovery.
• A future platform for Local Government Reform and devolution.

4

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition
• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

Page 37

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

The South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership:

•

Serving a population of 306,919 residents

•

A geography of 1,112 square miles

•

A workforce of 1,000 staff working in partnership

•

122 democratically elected members

Office for National Statistics 2019
Standard Area Measurement published by the Office for National Statistics

DRAFT DOCUMENT

5

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition
• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

Page 38

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

The proposal for a new local strategic partnership has identified 10 compelling reasons to support the
business case:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The proposed partnership will enable all three council’s to position themselves well for the future:•
•
•
•
•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Geography;
The Strategic Alliance is already delivering;
Building on an existing relationship – PSPS Ltd;
Financially sound, efficient and creative;
Financial opportunity of up to £42m available to the Councils collectively, over the next ten-year period,
through partnership working, if all opportunities to integrate services are embraced.
Shared and common challenges – employment, skills, training, house building, flood defence;
Attracting significant levels of private sector investment to support growth;
Securing external funding;
A partnership workforce of almost 1,000 – creates capacity to do new things; and
Greater opportunities for workforce development.

Devolution and Local Government Re-organisation or Reform;
A stronger voice locally, regionally and nationally through the creation of ‘South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership’ identity;
A collaborative approach to lobbying for resources to address common challenge;
The ability to respond to challenges and opportunities at a local, corporate and sub-regional level and
The proposed alliance provides for the opportunity of a fourth Council.

6

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition
• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

•

Individual Council sovereignty - combined with the opportunity to speak and influence as a single regional
voice within Lincolnshire. Each council retains its own identity and priorities but with common goals and a
shared commitment to manage financial and other challenges. The most successful partnerships are those
that consider which approach might work best and adopt elements of it in one, both or all councils. This
hybrid approach allows the best of each council to flow into the new alliance.

•

Partnership representation – the partnership provides the opportunity to co-ordinate partnership
representation in a more effective and cost efficient manner for all councils. The combined voice and
representation of a sub-region within Lincolnshire provides the opportunity to have a greater influence both
locally and nationally in relation to priority alignment and to influence future policy direction within the
partnership relationships to impact on the key outcomes which would make the biggest difference for the
local communities within the sub-region.

•

Partnership co-ordination – the last 18 months has demonstrated the importance of local government as a
partner of place, the understanding and relationship with local communities combined with the local
convenor role should never be underestimated. The partnership further enables the development of the role
of local government through the partnership relationships and network that exists between the councils and
in turn the wider partnership relationships within Lincolnshire. This will avoid duplication of effort whilst
providing the opportunity to engage with clear priorities and policies across all key partnerships.

•

Government engagement – to be improved through combining the voice of the partnership at a national
level and influencing outcomes as national policy translates to a local level. The ability to influence
Government funding will be a key opportunity for the partnership. The size and scale of the geography for
the partnership offers a meaningful opportunity to develop, test and implement new opportunities at a local
level.

•

Sub-regional voice – many of the challenges, and therefore opportunities, faced in each of the council’s
geographies are similar, the partnership offers the opportunity to identify common priorities and formulate
strategies and action plans to tackle these at a sub-regional level. The partnership, combined with more
effective partnership co-ordination and improved Government engagement, provides an increased
opportunity of success in improving key outcomes for local communities and places served by the
partnership arrangements.

Page 39

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

The partnership enables the following:-

DRAFT DOCUMENT

7

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition
• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

Page 40

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The partnership enables the following:-

•

Recruitment & Retention – the partnership offers the opportunity to attract talent to the new partnership as
well as retaining existing talent from across the partnership. There are no proposed redundancies for any
member of staff from SHDC and the existing Strategic Alliance has a no redundancy policy.

•

Talent & Development – the partnership will be committed to investing in the development of the workforce
to ensure our staff; are equipped to do their jobs, has opportunities to develop as individuals, are retained,
attractive as employers and access to succession planning and leadership opportunities.

•

Scale of opportunity – to all staff by working across the partnership councils, this provides a range of
opportunities to staff without the need to change employer or change location. This provides progressive
development opportunities and broadens the experience for all staff within the partnership.

•

Scope of opportunity – to all staff by working across different locations, local communities and local places
this provides staff with a broader range of experience and provides clear opportunities to progress both
within the individual Employer Councils but also across the wider partnership.

8

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Stages for Building the Partnership
Partnership –
Building the
Partnership

PHASE ONE - April 22
•
•
•
•
•

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.
•
•

•

PHASE TWO – 2022/23

Setting the foundations

•

Phase One - Set Up

•
•
•

Page 41

•

•

Post Covid Recovery Plan
One team approach and start of cultural alignment
Cross Council political working discussions
Common Governance framework/approach
Common performance framework and service
standards
Agree Annual Delivery Plans

Phase Two - Accelerate

•

Phase Three – Embed

The three Phases will run in
parallel and for illustrative
purposes are shown as distinct.

Transformation Plan - an order for planned and
opportunistic service reviews
Targeted service growth into areas of priority
New ways for working with partner organisations
Developed shared service policy through shared
Member working
Explore opportunities for constitutional alignment

Setting the foundations:

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Commitment to the new South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership
Shared CEX and Statutory Officers across the
partnership councils
Establish a Stakeholder Group
Establish Joint Appointments Panel
Appointment of shared officer team including T&C’s
(where necessary)
Establish legal basis including Memorandum of
Agreement
Establish Officer contact details for all Members

DRAFT DOCUMENT

PHASE THREE – 2023/24
•

Ambitious growth

•

Partnership expansion

•

Devolved functions

•

Structural reform possibilities

9

The principles which are
contained within are:-

SELCP – Financial Opportunity over a 10 year period 2022/23 to 2031/32

Cumulative General Fund Financial Opportunity – 10 years

• Scope & Scale - to scope the
level of financial opportunity
to support the Business Case
and demonstrate options and
opportunity for future
member decisions.

Page 42

• Confidence - the financial
opportunity is based on
controllable General Fund
expenditure only - thus
providing a level of confidence
in the baseline opportunity
and a clear linkage to Council
approved budgets across the
partnership.

20.000

£m per annum

• Plan - this provides a phasing
of service reviews across a 36
month period and provide a
balance to the areas being
reviewed over this period.

25.000

• Prudence - the financial
opportunity has been
modelled on a 6.5% baseline
of controllable expenditure.

15.000

10.000

5.000

South Holland DC
Boston BC
East Lindsey DC

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Year 1 2022/23

Year 2 2023/24

Year 3 2024/25

Year 4 2025/26

Year 5 2026/27

Year 6 2027/28

Year 7 2028/29

Year 8 2029/30

Year 92030/31

Year 10 2031/32

0.730
0.683
1.425

0.980
1.003
1.850

1.397
1.288
2.649

2.794
2.575
5.299

4.191
3.863
7.948

5.587
5.150
10.598

6.984
6.438
13.247

8.381
7.725
15.897

9.778
9.013
18.546

11.175
10.300
21.196
10

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enables the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 43

• On the structure - the
intention is to have a Deputy
Chief Executive lead for each
Council following
appointments to posts being
confirmed.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

11

Partnership –
Shared
Management
Structure
•

•

Cost of Proposed Shared Management Structure

South Holland DC are
bringing 6 x Assistant
Directors and 1 x Deputy
Chief Executive into the
shared management
partnership structure.
The Senior Management
costs will be shared on a
S113 agreement based on
a population
apportionment.

Page 44

•

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Proposed Shared Management Structure

FTE
Shared Posts
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Assistant Director
Total

1.00
4.00
13.00
18.00

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

South Holland DC

Total

£

£

£

£

26,335
91,373
209,214

52,671
182,746
418,428

35,496
123,155
281,984

114,502
397,274
909,626

326,922

653,845

440,635

1,421,402

Formal team mergers will
use population to share
costs.

Apportionment
ExistingSenior
seniorStructure
structure
Existing

21.60
21.60

23%

46%

31%

322,971
322,971

655,729
655,729

773,704
773,704

100%
1,752,404

Note
1. Principle that no individual council will be financially worse off under the shared management structure proposals.
2. BBC/ELDC shared management savings have already been achieved during Year 1 of the current strategic alliance.
3. SHDC shared management savings will count towards the Year 1 savings target.
4. The intention is that the apportionment be updated at the point of publication of new ONS population data.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

12

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Partnership Platform - Legal basis

•

•

Partnership
Platform
Legal basis

There are a range of provisions in law that make sharing possible. For example:

It will be important to
determining the legal
basis for the new strategic
partnership to enable the
development of the
appropriate structure and
governance arrangements
for the partnership.

• Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 makes a provision for councils to establish joint committees with other local authorities to discharge
their functions. Joint committees are invariably established through a legal agreement signed by the participating local authorities. There are many
joint committees in operation, delivering specific services such as revenues and benefits, building control, museums, highways and waste or a range of
services as in, for example, the East Kent Joint Arrangements Committee, Three Rivers and Watford, and Adur and Worthing.

Page 45

It will be important to
determine the
‘employing’ council for
the new strategic
partnership.

• Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows local authorities to delegate functions to other local authorities (subject to provisions contained
in other legislation). Although the delegating authority remains ultimately responsible for the execution of the functions, Section 101 makes it possible
for councils to perform functions on behalf of other councils.

• Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to enter into an agreement with another local authority to place an officer of
one at the disposal of the other for the purposes of discharging the latter’s functions.
• Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 allows local authorities and health bodies to pool funds and join together their staff, resources, and
management structures to integrate the provision of a health-related service from managerial level to the front-line.
• Councils also have powers to set up companies for the purpose of performing any of their ordinary functions. They will, however, need to be mindful of
competition law and state aid issues. In their dealings with companies they own, wholly or in part, they must also observe the restrictions imposed by
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006. There will be a number of other considerations in setting up a company and councils will need to seek specific
advice before doing so.

The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership will create a shared management arrangement based on Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972.
All employees will remain contracted to their sovereign councils.
There are a number of other provisions in law, identified above, which could provide a future opportunity for the partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

13

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Roadmap
Council(s)

Scrutiny Engagement

Council(s)

Preferred Partner Decision

Business Case
July 2021

Partnership Decision
July/August 2021

June/July 2021

Council(s)
Transformation Decision
September 2021

Page 46
Business Case

Report

Mobilisation Phase

July 2021

July 2021

August/September 2021

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Launch
Go Live
September 2021

14

Page 47

APPENDICES TO SUPPORT THE BUSINESS CASE
DRAFT DOCUMENT

15

Page 48

SECTION 1: AMBITION & PRIORITIES
DRAFT DOCUMENT

16

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership Determining the
Strategic Ambition
for the new
Partnership

A shared partnership will enable the following benefits to be achieved:
Sharing management or services is not an end in itself, but one of a number of means by which councils can achieve their strategic
ambitions.
Understanding the balance of these strategic ambitions will help inform the shape of the new local strategic partnership.

• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

Page 49

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

This means having a good understanding of:
• The needs and wants of local communities for services now and in the foreseeable future.
• The scale of the financial challenge facing the council (and other public services) in the short, medium and long term.
• The current range of services provided to meet local needs, their cost and effectiveness.
• The opportunities to significantly transform the way that public, private, not-for-profit and voluntary sector service providers work,
singly or collectively, to address local needs.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

17

South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership – Ambition & Priorities
Partnership –
Ambition &
Priorities
This section of the business case
sets out the following:
• The Strategic Ambition of the
partnership, the priorities for
the sub-region on behalf of
local communities.

Page 50

• The Corporate Priorities of
the partnership, recognising
the opportunity across the
partnership and the
sovereignty of the individual
councils.
• The Local Priorities for each
individual council which can
be supported by the
partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Strategic Ambition
Corporate
Priorities
Local Priorities

•
•
•
•

•

Markets
Local Plan Development
Community Safety
Partnership
Waste collection &
recycling
Public Protection

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Health & Safety
HR & OD
Legal
ICT
Internal & External
Audit
Risk Management
Customer Insight &
Services

Planning
Monitoring Officer
Data Protection
Democratic Services
S151 Officer
Finance Strategy
Financial Management
Treasury Management
Sundry Debtors

18

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition
• A new strategic partnership
has the opportunity to make
a real and tangible difference
to the outcomes for local
communities and local
places.

Page 51

• Consideration has been
given to the scale of
ambition and the size of
opportunity in the creation
of a new strategic
partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

IMD indicators local authority ranking for the proposed partnership
Indicator
Income
Employment
Education, Skills & Training
Health & Disability
Crime
Living Environment
Barriers to Housing & Services
Local Authority Rank

South Holland
140
140
9
171
285
228
123
144

Boston
92
85
1
113
237
135
180
85

East Lindsey
42
25
28
53
247
85
137
30

IMD indicators strategic priorities for proposed alliance
South Holland

Boston

East Lindsey

Income

Indicator

3

3

3

Employment

3

2

1

Education, Skills & Training

1

1

2

Health & Disability

5

4

4

Crime

7

7

7

Living Environment

6

5

5

Barriers to Housing & Services

2

6

6

19

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition (1/3)
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

South East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership

Income

To make a positive impact on improving Income the partnership should focus on:
•
•
•
•
•

The ability of the alliance to sustain its current spending, tax and other policies in the medium to long term.
The stability of the local economy, measuring key elements of the economy including the GVA per capita growth rate, inactivity shocks, economic shrinkage and SME growth.
The efficiency with which inputs can be converted into outputs. Competition enhances productivity by forcing firms to innovate new ways to reduce cost and time constraints.
The level of innovation and competition that occurs within the area by measuring the churn of businesses - the number of new start-ups entering and failing firms exiting an economy.
The rates of unemployment, economic activity rates, job satisfaction and degree of part-time and non-permanent employment.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: The Council—owned companies.

To make a positive impact on improving Employment the partnership should focus on:

Employment

Page 52

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

How well businesses can use the internet for commerce, measuring the speed of internet and how widespread access to superfast internet is.
The access of affordability of electricity and gas services.
The quality of water infrastructure and the reliability and cost of water.
The ease and efficiency for people and goods to travel within the UK. This measures the quality, diversity and penetration of road and rail transport within the area as well as access to key
transport hubs.
How open the market is to new participants, versus protection of the incumbents.
The legislative and policy driven factors that encourage entrepreneurialism, including property costs, compliance and local government restrictions.
How dynamic and flexible the workplace is for both employer and employee.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Lincolnshire County Council, Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership, Aging Better Steering
Group, Lincolnshire OPE Partnership.

Education, Skills & Training

To make a positive impact on improving Education, Skills & Training the partnership should focus on:

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•
•
•
•
•

How well education is attended and the educational outcomes of early childhood education. It supports the development of linguistic, cognitive, social and emotional skills.
The provision and outcomes of primary education in the local authority area including core literacy and numeracy skills.
The provision and outcomes of secondary education in the local authority area, including core literacy and numeracy skills. Attaining level 2 qualification in English and Maths are an
important step in an individual’s educational journey opening up tertiary education opportunities as well as employment pathways.
The extent to which students from a particular local authority area will go on to further education, either through apprenticeships or university.
The level of skills in a local authority population, by measuring the number of adults with different levels of qualifications.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Lincolnshire County Council, Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership, Colleges, Business networks
that exist to identify skills gaps.

20

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition (2/3)
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

South East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership

Health & Disability

To make a positive impact on improving Health & Disability the partnership should focus on:

•
•

The set of physiological characteristics and lifestyle patterns that increase the likelihood of developing disease, injury or illness, or of suffering from premature death.
The extent to which a health system prevents diseases, illness and other medical complications from occurring, to save many children and adults from an early death.
The ability of a health system to treat and cure diseases and illnesses once they are present in the population.
The level and burden of mental illness on the living population. Mental health can have a significant impact on an individual’s wellbeing and ability to participate effectively in the labour
market and in society more broadly.
The level and burden of physical illness on the living population. Physical health can have a significant impact on an individual’s wellbeing and ability to participate effectively in the labour
market and in society more broadly.
The mortality rate of the areas population through different stages of life.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Integrated care system (including actively supporting its development), NHS, CCG, Mental Health Trust, LCC
Public Health (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment), Lincolnshire County Council, Health and Wellbeing Board (will become Integrated Care System Board), District Council partners, DWP,
Department of Health, Adult’s Safeguarding Board, Children’s Safeguarding Board
To make a positive impact on improving Crime the partnership should focus on:

Crime

Page 53

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

The level of violent crime based on the extent of knife crime, robbery, sexual offences, domestic abuse, homicides, modern slavery and forced marriages.
The level and impact of property crime, based on criminal damage, theft, burglary and fraud.
The level of disorderly behaviour, looking at public order offences, possession of weapons, firearms offences and perceived anti-social behaviour.
The deliberate and targeted harm inflicted by non-state actors on a community, taking into account the number of incidents, injuries and also death that result.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Safer Lincolnshire Strategic Partnership, Office of Police and Crime Commissioner, Lincolnshire Police,
South East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership, Safeguarding Partnerships and Public Protection Board
To make a positive impact on improving the Living Environment the partnership should focus on:

Living Environment

•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•
•
•
•

The level of emissions of greenhouse gas and other gases from within the alliance councils. This captures the long-term effect of pressure on the atmosphere that the alliance councils will
have.
The level of pollution to which local communities are physically exposed and the effect this has on mortality.
The quality of the outdoor spaces and forest.
The quality of the area’s water and the risk of flooding.
The quantity of waste collected and the level of recycling.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Lincolnshire County Council, Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust, Natural England, Greater Lincolnshire Nature
Partnership, Lincolnshire Waste Partnership, Great Lincolnshire Energy Efficiency Network, Environment Agency, Drainage Board, Anglian Water, DEFRA, Forestry Commission, Health
and Wellbeing Networks

21

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition (3/3)
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

South East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership
Barriers to Housing & Services

To make a positive impact on Barriers to Housing & Services the partnership should focus on:

•
•
•

The proportion of individuals with the minimum amount of resources that is necessary to survive and attain wellbeing. This element should include the number of children in poverty.
The quality of accommodation and the impact of the accommodation environment on the health of residents. Including measures of sleeping rough, homelessness, overcrowding,
housing availability, hazardous housing and energy efficiency.
The extent to which individuals are able to access the core services that citizens of society require such as schools, local shops and the GP.
The extent to which individuals are able to interact with society through digit technology.
The safety of the environment that individuals live and work in, measuring injuries and accidental deaths from workplace based activities.

The partnership should prioritise and co-ordinate with the following partners: Housing Health and Care Delivery Group (formal sub group of the Health and Wellbeing Board), National
Centre for Aging Better (Rural Strategic Partnership), Housing and Homelessness Network (infrastructure currently under review), Housing Infrastructure Group, Transport Boards,
Community and Voluntary Recovery Cell at LRF, LCC Digital Strategy, Health and Safety, Executive, Registered Providers, MHCLG, Homes England, Financial Inclusion Partnership, DASH –
Landlord Accreditation Support, Private Landlords, Community and voluntary sector and Infrastructure Groups, Voluntary Executive Team

Page 54

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

•
•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

22

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 55

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

23

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 56

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

24

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 57

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

25

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 58

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

26

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 59

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

27

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition
Partnership –
Strategic Ambition

Page 60

The strategic ambition of
the partnership, the
priorities for the subregion on behalf of local
communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

28

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership– Corporate Priorities (1/4)
Partnership –
Corporate Priorities

South Holland
Work in partnership with key partners in the education sector
to ensure that both businesses and residents have access to
the necessary skills to support economic growth and
prosperity.

•

Be a landlord of choice for our council housing tenants.

•

Work to prevent and mitigate homelessness.

•

Enable effective planning and delivery of housing solutions to
meet local needs and aspirations to ensure that our residents
have access to a range of housing options in the district.

Education

•

•

Housing

Page 61

The Corporate Priorities
of the partnership,
recognising the
opportunity across the
partnership and the
sovereignty of the
individual councils.

•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Deliver new homes for our residents and provide a dividend to
Council through our Welland Homes housing company. Use
our Community interest Company South Holland Homes to
protect community assets. Maintain our commitment to
Council Housing by building new council homes to replace
those that have been lost.

Boston

•

Invest and support growth to meet local housing
needs by co-funding affordable housing delivery.

East Lindsey

•

We want to develop and help to deliver an ambitious Housing
Strategy that will enable and facilitate the delivery of a range of
mixed tenure homes across the district including through
collaboration with other partners.

•

A supply of well designed, safe and suitable homes in the right place
whether it be for families, older people or those with more individual
needs; in order to contribute to overall community wellbeing and
personal sense of place.

•

Deliver high quality housing services which are targeted to help our
most vulnerable residents and ensure that the Council is there to
support and help when it is needed through an improved support
pathway that is easy for people to use and focus on preventing
people from becoming homeless.

Work to support elderly people to live independently and in
their own home, including working with partners to support
the delivery of a new ‘extra care’ housing development in the
district. Ensure that our residents are enabled to live in high
quality housing no matter the tenure.

29

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership– Corporate Priorities (2/4)
Partnership –
Corporate Priorities

Health

•

Lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of improved local
community, cultural and art facilities that support the enhanced
wellbeing of South Holland’s communities.

•

Lead the provision of contracted leisure facilities and explore options
for future delivery to enhance the wellbeing of South Holland’s
communities.

•

Ensure that our public protection services continue to enable our
communities to remain healthy and safe through our regulatory
activities.

•

Target leisure facilities to provide a programme of activities to tackle
obesity and inactivity in South Holland.

•

Lead and support activities, partnerships and recommend
interventions to help address key local health and wellbeing issues
such as mental health, housing health and care and increasing physical
activity. Support the delivery and development of Early Help
collaborative working with partners and use shared resources earlier
to prevent vulnerable people reaching to crisis point. Proactively
influence the Lincolnshire CCG Neighbourhood Team to ensure the
best health outcomes for South Holland. Ensure our residents are
given advice to help maximise their income and manage their debts.

•

Work together with partners, businesses and local communities to reestablish the Pride in South Holland programme to improve the quality
of public spaces to be cleaner, greener and safer.

•

Create further outdoor spaces and new woodlands to enhance the
natural environment and to encourage our communities to have active
lifestyles.

•

Continue to engage with all Internal drainage boards in South Holland
to ensure that the district is prevented from flooding and its
importance to national food production is maintained. Support
Parishes to deliver capital works and improvements through the new
community reserve loan scheme.

Environment

Page 62

The Corporate Priorities
of the partnership,
recognising the
opportunity across the
partnership and the
sovereignty of the
individual councils.

South Holland

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Boston
•

Make Boston a healthy and safe place
to work.

•

The Council declared a climate change
emergency in January 2020, coming to
reduce the Council’s carbon footprint
and become net zero carbon in
advance of the timetable declared by
UK Parliament.

•

The Borough Council will play its role
to ensure we begin to reverse the
impact on climate change. We will
encourage others to follow our
example and be more
environmentally aware.

East Lindsey
•

We want to work with our partners to improve the health of East Lindsey
residents, particularly through our role in preventing people from
developing poor health in the first place, or helping people to live better if
they are not fully fit. We want to encourage healthy lifestyles and provide
support where it is needed.

•

Continued good health means people will contribute more to the
economy, be active in their communities and reduce the need for social
and health care services.

•

The Council should look to reducing its own carbon emissions, but also
help to play a role in working with other organisations and the wider
community to do everything we can to contribute at a local level. We
want to play a significant role in helping to better manage the waste we
collect, and increase the amount that can be recycled or used to generate
energy; but with a longer term focus on playing a role in reducing the
amount of waste coming into the system in the first place.

•

To prioritise resources to enable us to adapt to a changing climate, both
as an organisation and on behalf of the district; in order that the district
continues to develop and grow economically despite the challenge of
being a coastal district. To be a strong partner in protecting our natural
environment for residents and visitors.

30

Page 63

The Corporate Priorities
of the partnership,
recognising the
opportunity across the
partnership and the
sovereignty of the
individual councils.

South Holland

Community

Partnership –
Corporate Priorities

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership– Corporate Priorities (3/4)

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•

Protect the community and environment Support Spalding and
Holbeach to be attractive places that people want to visit, live and
work while supporting all other towns and villages in the district to
meet the needs of their communities.

•

Support Parishes to deliver capital works and improvements through
the new community reserve loan scheme.

•

Ensure that our services are digitally enabled and efficient to meet the
expectations of our changing communities. Ensure that our staff have
the skills needed to drive the organisation forward and meeting the
changing expectations of our residents.

•

Help shape, influence and respond to emerging national policy to
ensure that we maximise the opportunity for South Holland.

•

Keep residents, businesses, and partners informed about council
services and latest opportunities through clear and effective
communications.

Boston
•

There is continued pressure on
funding to Local Government,
whilst at the same time the
demand is increasing for many of
the services we deliver.

•

Making use of the latest
technology will increase the
efficiency of our services so we
can deliver more for our
communities.

•

There is also the opportunity to
be more creative in the ways we
generate income to fund our core
services.

East Lindsey
•

We want to move the Council as far as we can towards being independent of
government funding by investing in income generating projects and activities
in order to protect and grow our core services.

•

We want to make full use of the latest technologies to both increase the
efficiency of service provision so we can deliver more, as well as take full
advantage of the opportunities for using technology to meet the needs of
people in a large rural district.

31

Partnership –
Corporate Priorities

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership– Corporate Priorities (4/4)
South Holland

•

Proactively work with partners to identify and optimise funding
opportunities that will draw resources into the district to support our
plans for substantial and continued growth. Work in partnership
across the public and private sector to retain and build on the key
business sector strengths within South Holland, whilst also working
proactively to attract new inward investment that will bring further
prosperity to our district.
Continue to deliver a clear “Open for Business” approach across all
Council services that promotes and supports business growth
Continue to deliver a full range of services and initiatives that support
our businesses, including our Grants4Growth programme. Stimulate
further growth, productivity and prosperity in the food sector through
the delivery of a Food Enterprise Zone in Holbeach.

•

As a regional sub-centre of the
county, we want to grow Boston’s
economy to ensure it remains a
thriving town where people
choose to live, work and visit. In
doing so it is important we under
stand the needs of our
communities and achieve growth
in a way that is inclusive.

East Lindsey
•

•

•
•

Page 64

The Corporate Priorities
of the partnership,
recognising the
opportunity across the
partnership and the
sovereignty of the
individual councils.

Employment

•

Boston

•

Deliver substantial and continued growth as proposed through our
Local Plan, in conjunction with our key partners

•

Work with our key partners to ensure that the infrastructure required
to support our community to grow and flourish, including key roads,
rail, broadband and telecommunications, are planned for and
delivered.

•

Work with our partners such as Lincolnshire Community Safety
Partnership and Parish Councils to reduce and prevent crime and antisocial behaviour
Ensure that national policies relating to modern slavery and the
safeguarding of vulnerable children and adults are embedded
effectively throughout all aspects of our services.

Crime

•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•

Town centres have over time adapted to wider changes in society, evolution of
working practices and technological advances. Positive and proactive place
leadership through community supported initiatives is a key part of ensuring
buy-in to changing places. We therefore want to identify and empower those
who have an interest in their town to collaboratively take forward initiatives
that help to reposition, reinvent, rebrand and restructure each town centre
within the district. We also know that town centres can contribute to meeting
social needs, not just through residential provision but also through health and
wellness activities, education facilities and providing opportunity for increased
physical activity and social interaction promoting healthy lifestyles; so we will
ensure that there is integration with our other strategic aims.
We want to work with businesses and partners to increase skill levels which
will help drive up average wage levels and increase participation in the labour
market.
Providing confidence to businesses that East Lindsey is an area of economic
growth into the future is vitally important and requires a strategic approach to
a range of issues.
Help businesses to access all the support that is available to them, especially in
the current changing environment that could result in both challenges and
opportunities - in the short term this could be about our exit from the
European Union and changes to legislation; in the medium term it could be the
impact of a changing climate and green technologies.

32

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Local Priorities (1/2)
Partnership – Local
Priorities

South Holland

DRAFT DOCUMENT

To work in partnership with key partners in the education
sector, including Boston College and University of Lincoln, to
ensure that both businesses and residents have access to the
necessary skills to support economic growth and prosperity

•

To work to prevent and mitigate homelessness, including
continuing to work with partners across Lincolnshire to deliver
countywide solutions to rough sleeping

•

To enable effective planning and delivery of housing solutions
to meet local needs and aspirations to ensure that our
residents have access to a range of housing options in the
district

•

To continue to deliver new homes through the HRA and
Welland Homes

•

To lead and support activities, partnerships and recommend
interventions to help address key local health and wellbeing
issues such as mental health, housing health and care and
increasing physical activity

Health
Environment

Page 65

The Local Priorities for
each individual council
which can be supported
by the partnership.

Housing

Education

•

Boston
•

Strong partnership working with Boston College and
schools

East Lindsey
•

Construction of Horncastle Hub in partnership with Boston
College

•

New learning facility in Skegness.

•

New Leisure and Learning Centre, Mablethorpe

•

Further Education opportunities for Louth

•

Ambition to construct new houses.

•

Invest East Lindsey developing a housing construction
programme.

•

Maintaining services at the Pilgrim Hospital.

•

Aging Better Programme

•

Continue to provide and improve access to leisure
provision to support active communities.

•

Magna Vitae Leisure and Culture Trust to enable a healthy and
active community,

•

Carbon Reduction Programme for the Council.

•

Climate Change Assembly targeting key sectors.

•

Working with the Environment Agency on improved coastal
defences.

•

To target leisure facilities to provide a programme of activities
to tackle obesity and inactivity in South Holland

•

To create further outdoor spaces and new woodlands to
enhance the natural environment

•

Carbon Reduction Programme for the Council including
Climate Change Assembly targeting key sectors.

•

To support our local industries with the transition to low
carbon, especially in agri-foods sectors

•

Ensure the successful bedding in of the paper and card
recycling service in Boston and its success thereafter.

33

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Local Priorities (2/2)
Partnership – Local
Priorities

Crime

Page 66

The Local Priorities for
each individual council
which can be supported
by the partnership.

Employment

Community

South Holland

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•

To lead the provision of contracted leisure facilities and
explore options for future delivery to enhance the wellbeing
of South Holland’s communities

•

To lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of
improved local community, cultural and art facilities that
support the enhanced wellbeing of South Holland’s
communities

•

Deliver an improvement plan for Spalding and Holbeach
town centres, supporting high street economy and the town
centres as a community hub

•

Growing South Holland’s agri-food cluster and horticulture
sector, and creating higher value jobs through projects such
as the FEZ

•

Enabling housing growth as a driver of local employment.

•

Deliver a clear “Open for Business” approach across all
Council services that promotes and supports business
growth and inward investment

•

Continue to deliver a full range of services and initiatives
that support our businesses, including our Grants4Growth
programme

•

CCTV Partnership

Boston
•

Empowering Healthier Communities Programme – funded
by MHCLG.

•

Towns’ Fund – Boston

•

East Lindsey
•

Towns’ Fund – Mablethorpe and Skegness

Attracting investment/new businesses to the Borough.

•

Attracting investment/new businesses in the Borough

•

Strong focus on working with the Port of Boston.

•

Extending the visitor economy/season.

•

CCTV Partnership

•

CCTV Partnership with BBC and Town Councils.

34

Page 67

SECTION 2: BUILDING THE PARTNERSHIP
DRAFT DOCUMENT

35

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Stages for Building the Partnership
Partnership –
Building the
Partnership

PHASE ONE - April 22
•
•
•
•
•

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.
•
•

•

PHASE TWO – 2022/23

Setting the foundations

•

Phase One - Set Up

•
•
•

Page 68

•

•

Post Covid Recovery Plan
One team approach and start of cultural alignment
Cross Council political working discussions
Common Governance framework/approach
Common performance framework and service
standards
Agree Annual Delivery Plans

Phase Two - Accelerate

•

Phase Three – Embed

The three Phases will run in
parallel and for illustrative
purposes are shown as distinct.

Transformation Plan - an order for planned and
opportunistic service reviews
Targeted service growth into areas of priority
New ways for working with partner organisations
Developed shared service policy through shared
Member working
Explore opportunities for constitutional alignment

Setting the foundations:

PHASE THREE – 2023/24
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Commitment to the new South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership
Shared CEX and Statutory Officers across the
partnership councils
Establish a Stakeholder Group
Establish Joint Appointments Panel
Appointment of shared officer team including T&C’s
(where necessary)
Establish legal basis including Memorandum of
Agreement
Establish Officer contact details for all Members

DRAFT DOCUMENT

•

Ambitious growth

•

Partnership expansion

•

Devolved functions

•

Structural reform possibilities

36

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Baseline Principles
Partnership Determining the
baseline principles
for the new
Partnership

Experience has shown that trusting partners and sharing common goals is the key to working together successfully.
Partners will benefit from having a history of working together on projects so that they can build on an existing relationship.
Strong leadership from politicians and management is essential for persuading staff and service users that pooling resources with partner organisations
is worthwhile.
Leaders will need to make the case for change so that everybody is committed to delivering it.

•

Page 69

This slide sets out the
baseline principles which
support the creation of the
partnership and to
maintain a focus on the
compelling vision to
support the partnerships
aims and ambitions for its
local communities.

The following are the proposed baseline principles for the partnership:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

The ability to work together to respond to and address shared and common challenges and opportunities at a local, corporate and sub-regional
level across the south east region of Lincolnshire;
To realise a combined financial opportunity of up to £42m if all service integration opportunities are embraced;
To build on the existing and successful PSPS Ltd relationship and improve service effectiveness and efficiency;
An opportunity to improve service delivery and resilience across the partnership;
The sharing of expertise across the partnership;
The chance to create additional capacity and increased resilience to do more for our communities;
A stronger voice locally, regionally and nationally through the creation of a South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership identity;
To cement a solid foundation of partnership working ahead of the potential for devolution and local reform;
The increased opportunity to secure external funding to enable the future prosperity for our communities; and

10.

Greater career development opportunities for our workforce.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

37

Page 70

SECTION 3: ENABLERS AND OPPORTUNITIES
DRAFT DOCUMENT

38

Partnership –
Enablers &
Opportunities
•

Each individual
transformation
programme shared

•

Identify synergies and
economy of scale
opportunities

•

Consider amalgamation of
transformation projects
to accelerate learning,
sharing and delivery

•

•

Each organisation will have in place an individual transformation programme or service improvement plans to help meet the challenges set out in their MTFS and drive
service performance, this provides an opportunity to support and deliver these programmes at scale and pace across the partnership.
Plan/Programme

The Plan and
Programme is to
be developed by
Portfolio Holders
from each
Council, feeding
into the 2022/23
Annual Delivery
Plans.

Enables alignment of
organisational based
efficiencies
Enables alignment for
future partnership
integration

Enables alignment for
potential LGR positioning

South Holland DC

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

October 2021 - first phase would be to look at immediate opportunities.

Page 71

•

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Enablers & Opportunities

December 2021 – engagement with Councillors and opportunities for the 2022/23 Annual Delivery Plans.

February 2022 – work programme targets to be included in the 2022/23 financial strategies.

April 2022 – the establishment of cross Council working groups to oversee a collaborative work programme.

IDENTIFIED EARLY OPPORTUNITIES
• PSPS – we recognise PSPS as an important strategic partner to allow the Councils to realise their ambitions. There is an opportunity to increase both
the scale and pace of working with PSPS. PSPS have been asked to provide content for the final business case which will articulate their thoughts on
how they can assist the SELCP.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

39

Partnership –
Enablers &
Opportunities
•

•

•

•

•

Identify synergies and
economy of scale
opportunities
Consider amalgamation of
transformation projects
to accelerate learning,
sharing and delivery

Page 72

•

Each individual
transformation
programme shared

Enables alignment of
organisational based
efficiencies
Enables alignment for
future partnership
integration

Enables alignment for
potential LGR positioning

SELCP – Summary of the Enablers and Opportunities for the Partnership
Enabling Opportunity

South Holland DC

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

Public Sector Professional Services Ltd - PSPS currently provide a range
of professional services to South Holland and East Lindsey DC and are
currently ‘Onboarding’ Boston BC.

✓

✓

✓

Housing Delivery – attractiveness to developers and partners such as
Homes England to support funding applications and bring forward
strategic sites.

✓

✓

✓

New Local Plan – If White Paper outcomes are introduced, the
Partnership would be ideally placed to develop a new plan across the
wider geography.

✓

✓

✓

Increased attractiveness to new staff – based on diversity and
opportunity as well as geography and unique nature of the Partnership.
May make us more attractive for hard to fill roles.

✓

✓

✓

Aligned leisure and cultural provision – to improve health outcomes.

✓

✓

✓

Visitor and Destination Strategy – to raise the profile of the visitor
offer across the three destinations.

✓

✓

✓

Shared Investment Prospectus – producing a prospectus to excite
investors in the region.

✓

✓

✓

Responding to the Environment Bill – learning from each other in the
delivery of new waste collection requirements to customers.

✓

✓

✓

Strong Partnership Engagement with health and education provides,
along with Government bodies – using our scale of influence.

✓

✓

✓

DRAFT DOCUMENT

40

Partnership –
Enablers &
Opportunities
•

Each individual
transformation
programme shared

•

Identify synergies and
economy of scale
opportunities

•

Consider amalgamation of
transformation projects
to accelerate learning,
sharing and delivery

•

•

Enabling Opportunity

Finance

PSPS Financial Services Department take pride in their ability to deliver a wide range of fully managed finance
functions for the councils. The department of professionally qualified accountants and accounting technicians are
experienced in the local government landscape, and provide high quality end-to-end financial management of
budgets totalling over £47m on behalf of the councils whilst providing advice and support to a wide range of service
departments. The Finance Team will support the new partnership to ensure robust financial arrangements exists for
each individual Council. The service also supports the provision to the Councils companies.

Customer Contact

Customer Contact provides the first point of contact for many of the councils' customers and residents, providing
high quality services through a range of different contact methods including telephony, face-to-face, social media,
post administration and email. Supporting a significant property base across three Councils and responding to
approximately ½ million contacts per year, PSPS consistently deliver exceptional standards of customer satisfaction
and have many years' experience in dealing with high volumes and peaks in demand. The service operates as a multiskilled function providing resilience and capacity across three Councils. Recent investment in telephony and digital
solutions which are to be rolled out in 21/22, will see the service transform into a flag-ship model of delivery enabling
24/7 access to a number of Council functions.

Health and Safety

PSPS’ Health and Safety experts support more than 1250 employees and their respective services across the
Company and client councils.

Enables alignment of
organisational based
efficiencies
Enables alignment for
future partnership
integration

South Holland DC
Boston BC
East Lindsey DC

Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd, is a Local Authority Trading Company and has delivered a range of shared customer facing and enabling services to SHDC and
ELDC Councils for over 10 years. These services include HR and Payroll, Financial services, ICT and digital, Customer Contact, Revenue and Benefits and Health &
Safety. The Company started delivering these services to Boston Borough Council in April 2021. The Company has delivered an extensive programme of
transformation and financial savings since its inception in 2010 which has contributed to delivering significant organisational change and improvement.

Page 73

•

SELCP - Enablers and Opportunities for the Partnership – PSPS Ltd (1/2)

Enables alignment for
potential LGR positioning

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The team all hold Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (IOSH) accredited qualifications, and have overall
responsibility for implementing and monitoring the Health and Safety Framework for the Councils . This includes
ensuring that a suitable and legally compliant framework is in place and that it is followed correctly by employees.
PSPS write policies, procedures and guidance for staff, provide in-house training, and complete audits and
inspections to help ensure compliance. Protecting staff and customers is their number one objective and passion,
closely followed by their responsibilities in protecting the organisations they provide Health and Safety services for.

41

Partnership –
Enablers &
Opportunities
•

Each individual
transformation
programme shared

•

Identify synergies and
economy of scale
opportunities

•

Consider amalgamation of
transformation projects
to accelerate learning,
sharing and delivery

•

•

Enabling Opportunity

The PSPS HR service delivers end to end organisational and employee support from recruitment to retirement and is
complemented by an HMRC recognised in-house payroll service, a specialist recruiter service, a learning and development
team, an HR &OD project resource and a team of specialist employee relations advisors. PSPS support the delivery of HR
services across four organisations and in excess of 1250 employees. The HR service also supports the transactional delivery,
employee support services and tailored benefits to attract and retain high performing individuals and teams across the range of
Council services. With recent investment in a new People Management Systems, First 4 HR will see all three Councils operating
from a single HR platform from September 21, enabling a seamless approach to employee engagement. PSPS would support
the partnership in developing its People Plan and Workforce Strategy across three Council

Revenues & Benefits

PSPS’ experienced Revenues and Benefits Department collects and recovers a combined £198million in Council Tax and
Business Rates each year on behalf of the client councils. PSPS serves a caseload of 10,500 claimants on housing benefit, and
19,000 on Council Tax Support. The service extends to the recovery of a further £16million in respect of sundry debt and
Housing Benefit overpayment. They are focused on delivering high quality professional services and achieve this through an
end-to-end service model and detailed performance monitoring and management. Maximising revenue, and minimising loss
and avoidance is a primary objective, and they operate pro-actively through a range of activity including interventions, fraud
investigation, review and visiting programmes. An attention to detail and accuracy has ensured client councils achieved the
highest level of government subsidy and customers are supported with processing times that are in line with or better than
national and East Midland averages. PSPS’ vision to become a shared service provider with outstanding customer focus will be
supported by digital solutions in 2022 as part of their programme of transformation.

Enables alignment of
organisational based
efficiencies
Enables alignment for
future partnership
integration

South Holland DC
Boston BC
East Lindsey DC

HR and Payroll

Page 74

•

SELCP - Enablers and Opportunities for the Partnership – PSPS Ltd (2/2)

ICT

Enables alignment for
potential LGR positioning

ICT is no longer a support service, it has become a key enabler for the development, delivery and transformation of corporate
services, improving efficiency and enhancing the customer journey.
Supporting over 15000 requests per annum, the team of trained and certified ICT staff offer specialist services across the client
councils. Delivering a range of ICT disciplines from core technical skills to web application development and print & design
consultancy, the ICT team has the strategic and operational skills to support even the most complex of organisations.
With combined Public Sector experience in excess of 250 years, the ICT provision is delivered by experts with real world
knowledge of the challenges and difficulties being faced on a daily basis. PSPS’ vision is to be at the forefront of delivering high
quality, accessible, secure and efficient ICT services to the Public Sector. Achieving a customer satisfaction score of 98.06%
demonstrates their customer-centric approach to service delivery. The ICT vision for the partnership would be to develop a
new partnership ICT strategy which will deliver a joined up approach to ICT innovation across three Councils, with a cloud-first
approach.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

42

SELCP - Enablers and Opportunities from within the Partnership
Partnership –
Opportunities &
Benefits
•

•

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through the
geographic location of the
councils which would form
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 75

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through
ambitious strategic
opportunities, clearly there
is a trade off between the
scale of ambition for the
partnership and the level
of savings which are
enabled through this
ambition.

Education

Crime

Housing

Quality
of Life
Employment

Health

Community

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Environment

43

SELCP - Enablers and Opportunities from within the Partnership
Partnership –
Opportunities &
Benefits
•

•

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through the
geographic location of the
councils which would form
the new strategic
partnership.

South Holland DC

Education

Strong links with education providers, including Boston
College (that covers all three district areas)

Housing

South Holland has considerable expertise in all aspects
of housing, including tenancy management, property
management, direct housing delivery, housing
companies and housing ‘enabling’ across the market
and affordable sectors.

Health

Wellbeing – South Holland is a strategic partner in the
county-wide Wellbeing Service.

Boston BC
Strong links with Education providers

East Lindsey DC
Strong links with Education providers
Invest East Lindsey housing development programme
could be supported by SHDC’s housing management
function

Wellbeing – promoting the positive outcomes of the
wellbeing service.

Food safety – SHDC has a strong food safety expertise
given the economic base of the district around agrifood, and its agri-food cluster

Magna Vitae – Magna Vitae provides leisure and
cultural services in East Lindsey under a contract to
the Council. This includes running all leisure centres.
Food Safety – ELDC has a significant requirement
during the summer month for food safety inspectors
due to summer businesses on the coast. The
opportunity for a team to work across the three areas
and allocating resources based on seasonal demand
presents an opportunity to improve service provision.

Page 76

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through
ambitious strategic
opportunities, clearly there
is a trade off between the
scale of ambition for the
partnership and the level
of savings which are
enabled through this
ambition.

Enabling Opportunity

Wellbeing – raise the profile of the wellbeing service
and services it provides in Boston and South Holland
to increase resident take up.
Environment

South Holland has influence through its role on the
DCN around waste management and Environment Bill

Boston was first in Lincolnshire to roll out paper and
card trial and can therefore share learning.

Learn from other partners to introduce kerbside glass
collections.

Community

External funding – South Holland has a track record of
securing external funding, including a dedicated
external funding officer and experience of using
political influence to lobby for investment.

External Funding – securing external funding to
deliver on local priorities is important if the Council is
to be ambitious. Working as a partnership we have
the opportunity through a combined voice to lobby
for resources and develop bids jointly to address our
community’s needs.

External Funding – securing external funding to
deliver on local priorities is important if the Council is
to be ambitious. Working as a partnership we have
the opportunity through a combined voice to lobby for
resources and develop bids jointly to address our
community’s needs.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

44

SELCP - Enablers and Opportunities from within the Partnership
Partnership –
Opportunities &
Benefits
•

•

Enabling Opportunity
Employment

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through the
geographic location of the
councils which would form
the new strategic
partnership.

South Holland DC
Economic Growth
South Holland is the home of the most concentrated
agri-food cluster in the UK, supporting 44% of jobs
and 38% of GVA. The district has strong and long
standing relationships with local businesses, and has
played a leadership role on regional projects to
support the sector e.g. Holbeach FEZ, lobbying of
government, and infrastructure investment. The agrifood economy in Boston, whereas not as
concentrated as South Holland, is still a major driver
of employment. This bring about scope for strategic
opportunity.
Town Centres – South Holland has a desire to further
support and improve its town centres. Current focus
is on an improvement plan for Spalding and
Holbeach, but there is scope to develop this into a
regeneration programme with suitable expertise and
capacity.

Page 77

A range of savings
opportunities can be
released through
ambitious strategic
opportunities, clearly there
is a trade off between the
scale of ambition for the
partnership and the level
of savings which are
enabled through this
ambition.

Visitor economy / heritage – Whereas visitor
economy is not a major driver of employment, South
Holland has a small number of visitor economy
assets which have potential to further support the
local economy e.g. Ayscoughfee Hall. Heritage is an
area where there is scope for the council undertake
further activity.
Crime

DRAFT DOCUMENT

CCTV and Community Safety - SHDC already works in
collaboration with Boston Borough Council on CCTV

Boston BC
Economic Growth
Boston has the ability to develop the Gateway
to Growth project (Boston Port development)
leading to the creation of improved Sea port
infrastructure that delivers a more efficient
logistics hub, supports local supply chains and
job growth as an integrated business network
partner. Also supporting the Agri food industry
and other business growth and jobs creation
across the three alliance areas and wider
Lincolnshire.

East Lindsey DC
Visitor economy – East Lindsey has a significant visitor
economy comprising of the Wolds, Market Towns and
coast. There is opportunity to work together to raise the
profile of the visitor economy in our three areas and
wider Lincolnshire.

Visitor economy – Boston Borough has a
significant visitor economy comprising of
Boston Town Centre heritage assets and the
surrounding area and the associated heritage of
the area. There is opportunity to work together
to raise the profile of the visitor economy in our
three areas and wider Lincolnshire capitalising
on Boston’s cultural heritage and historic
international importance.
Heritage - Boston has a unique and cultural
offer that can be used to lever visitors and
increase dwell time across the partnership area.

CCTV and Community Safety – existing
arrangements provide for early shared
management opportunity

45

Page 78

SECTION 4: SCOPE OF SERVICES
DRAFT DOCUMENT

46

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Service Opportunities
Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

The partnership could
work on the principle that
all services are shared or
joint unless there is a
business reason not to do
so.

Page 79

The partnership could set
it’s aspirations to match
or succeed the very best
examples within the Local
Government Sector as
pioneers.

Good examples of shared services exist across the Local Government Sector

Essex Legal Services Partnership has created a new model for
local government services, which enables the teams to improve
services to clients and communities. The new way of working
provides a ‘virtual’ team approach with each council maintaining
its own legal experts yet pooling resources to meet client needs
through an extranet Internal Market Place, reducing costs from
sharing and from joint approaches to procurement.
Through the Building Control Partnership the management cost
of the Building Control services in Babergh District Council,
Ipswich Borough Council and Suffolk Coastal District Council is
shared. The partnership is investigating joining the three teams
into a single unit.

South Holland and Breckland District Councils began sharing
management in 2010 as a way of increasing capacity and
resilience while reducing costs and safeguarding services. The
partnership now saves £1.1 million a year and has developed the
opportunity for further joint arrangements.
Adur and Worthing Shared Services and Management. Joint
Chief Executive and joint management team, plus shared
services including refuse and recycling, street cleansing,
financial services, legal and democratic services, corporate
services and customer services. Second tranche of shared
services will include planning, parks, ICT, building surveying, and
environmental health
Boston and East Lindsey Councils work together as a strategic
alliance with a plan to deliver £15.4m in savings over a 10 year
period whilst increasing capacity and resilience to deliver for
their communities
Working across the four districts the partnership (hosted by
Exeter City Council) provides a comprehensive empty homes
service. Specifically - identifying long term empty properties and
returning them back to use, procuring Private Sector Leased
properties and other forms of accommodation.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

David Clarke is the new Chief Executive of both West Dorset District Council
and Weymouth and Portland Borough Council. The two councils will also
share officers and have said the combined workforce of about 850 people
will reduce as a result. Mr Clarke was previously West Dorset's chief
executive for seven years. The councils will continue to be two separate
authorities, each setting its own budget and council tax, a spokesperson
said. He said: "The WestWay Partnership is the most significant change for
our two authorities in the past 35 years.
The agency contract negotiated on behalf of Teignbridge, South Hams and
West Devon will produce annual savings of over £150K for the participating
authorities. Similarly, large savings have been or are likely to be obtained on
a number of other contracts where councils have collaborated, for instance
the abandoned vehicle contract, the stair lift contract and the advertising
contract.
South West One delivers back-office services including finance, ICT,
procurement, property facilities management, human resources, design and
print and others. It aims to transform the workings of the partner
organisations, to modernise, reduce the costs and improve support services,
to invest in world-class technologies to improve productivity and generate
economic investment that might not otherwise be available to the public
sector. This will result in a better value-for-money service for local Council
Tax-payers and result in improved access to services for residents.
A group of local authorities in Essex joined together to form a shared
services hub for procurement thereby vastly reducing duplication of effort
between member authorities and enabling procurement arrangements
arrived at for one authority in the group to be made available to all other
members - and to a wider base wherever possible. In addition, hub
members have access to experienced, qualified procurement staff when
needed. In the first year of operation the savings and income targets
established for the hub were either all met or exceeded.
These three councils agreed the Fylde Coast Framework agreement to share
services. The councils currently share ten different services across front
and back office functions including council tax and revenues collection,
waste and recycling.

There are a range of services which have
been successfully shared across multiple
local authorities.
For example:
• Chief Executive – Tier 1
• Senior Management – Tiers 2 & 3
• Back Office services
• HR&OD, Legal, Democratic
Services, ICT, Finance,
Performance, Contracts &
Procurement, Communications,
Elections and Transformation
• Economic Development
• Planning & Building Control
• Emergency Planning
• Public Protection & Regulatory Services
• Transport
• Environment
• Waste collection, Street cleaning,
Grounds maintenance,
Environmental management
• Leisure & Communities
• Property, Assets & Facilities Management
• Housing - General Fund
• Housing - HRA
• Customer Services
• Revenues & Benefits
• Health & Safety

47

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Opportunities & Benefits
Partnership –
Opportunities &
Benefits
•

•

A shared partnership will enable the following benefits to be achieved:
• Avoid duplication

It is important to challenge
the options with the
identified sources of
benefit so size the scale of
opportunity and benefits
available to the new
strategic partnership.

• Increase investment, for example, in more advanced IT systems, as partners’ resources are pooled

Page 80

The new strategic
partnership opportunities
and benefits can be
derived from a number of
sources.

• Secure economies of scale from greater utilisation of fixed assets
• Increase purchasing power that results in procurement savings

• Adopt of best practices across service delivery partnerships
• Opportunity to redesign services to better meet the needs of users
• Improve service performance, for example, improved response times
• Opportunity to implement new ways of working and management arrangements
• More interesting, varied, or specialised work for staff – aiding recruitment and retention.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

48

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 81

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Economic Development
• Inward Investment
• Business Development
• Town Centre Services and Place
Management
• Local Business and Skills Support
• Regeneration
• Markets Promotions
• Arts Culture and Heritage
• Strategic Capital Project
Development

South Holland DC
Economic Development
• Inward Investment
• Town Centre Management
• Local Business Support
• Regeneration

Boston BC
Economic Development
• Inward Investment
• Business Development
• Town Centre Services and Place
Management
• Local Business and Skills Support
• Regeneration
• Markets Promotions
• Towns Fund
• Levelling Up Fund
• Vital and Viable
• Arts Heritage and Culture
• Strategic Capital Project Development

East Lindsey DC
Economic Development
• Inward Investment
• Business Development
• Town Centre Services and Place
Management
• Local Business and Skills Support
• Visitor Economy
• Markets Promotions
• Towns Fund
• Levelling Up Fund
• Vital and Viable
• Arts Heritage and Culture
• Strategic Capital Project development

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

An Inward Investment Strategy for South East Lincolnshire.
Joint Market Town development initiative
Joint Investment Prospectus
Joint Destination Management Strategy
Regional liaison with Port of Boston

Baseline
•
•
•
•

SH –, Grants for Growth funded posts, Opportunity Peterborough
BBC – Port of Boston, High level Inward Investment
ELDC – High level Market Town investment, Visitor Economy and culture expertise, Destination Strategy
ELDC/BBC – Combined Growth Team, Joint Cultural Strategy, Levelling Up fund application pending

DRAFT DOCUMENT

49

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 82

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Planning & Building Control
• Local Plan Development
• Planning Enforcement
• Building Control
• Strategic Planning
• Planning Applications

South Holland DC
Planning & Building Control
• Local Plan Development
• Planning Enforcement
• Building Control
• Strategic Planning
• Planning Applications
• Land Charges

Boston BC
Planning & Building Control
• Local Plan Development
• Planning Enforcement
• Building Control
• Strategic Planning
• Planning Applications

East Lindsey DC
Planning & Building Control
• Local Plan Development
• Planning Enforcement
• Building Control
• Strategic Planning
• Planning Applications

Partnership Potential

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

To develop synergy between local plans.
Pooling of specialist expertise.
Resilience in Building Control
Shared ICT platform
Easier to recruit and retain specialist officers
Regional Developer relationships

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•
•

SH/BBC – shared local plan and policy unit
SHDC/BBC – Joint Plan review by 2024.
BBC/ELDC – Building Control not resilient
ELDC – Bespoke work with EA on coastal defences
ELDC – Reviewing Local Plan
BBC/ELDC – Shared Planning Team

DRAFT DOCUMENT

50

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 83

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Leisure & Communities
• Community Safety Partnership
• CCTV
• Arts & Museums
• Leisure Centres
• Public Health & Wellbeing
• Tourism
• Sports Development

South Holland DC
Leisure & Communities
• Community Safety Partnership
• Community protection
• CCTV
• Arts & Museums
• Leisure Centres
• Public Health & Wellbeing
• Tourism
• Sports Development

Boston BC
Leisure & Communities
• Community Safety Partnership
• Arts & Museums
• Leisure Centres
• Public Health & Wellbeing
• Tourism
• Sports Development

East Lindsey DC
Leisure & Communities
• Community Safety Partnership
• Arts & Museums
• Leisure Centres
• Public Health & Wellbeing
• Tourism
• Sports Development

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Joint procurement of leisure facilities
Chance to encourage wider take up of the support by Wellbeing Lincs.
Linked tourism marketing opportunities.
Shared heritage expertise.
Relationships with national sporting organisations

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•
•

SH – South Holland Centre, Peel Sports Centre
BBC – Diverse Leisure operating model
ELDC – Significant Leisure and Culture trust
BBC - historic cultural fabric and international links
ELDC – Wellbeing lead for Lincolnshire
ELDC/BBC – New leisure centres being developed

DRAFT DOCUMENT

51

Partnership –
Scope of Services
This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

•

Page 84

•

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.
Service Building Blocks
Environment
• Waste collection & recycling
• Fleet Vehicle Maintenance
• Green Waste Service
• Street Cleaning
• Grounds Maintenance
• Environmental Management
• Pollution
• Flood Management & Drainage
• Public Conveniences
• Parks, open spaces and cemeteries

South Holland DC
Environment
• Waste collection & recycling
• Fleet Vehicle Maintenance
• Green Waste Service
• Street Scene
• Car Parking
• Facilities Management
• Grounds Maintenance
• Environmental Management
• Pollution
• Flood Management & Drainage
• Public Conveniences
• Parks, open spaces and cemeteries
• Markets

Boston BC
Environment
• Waste collection & recycling
• Fleet Vehicle Maintenance
• Green Waste Service
• Street Cleaning
• Grounds Maintenance
• Environmental Management
• Pollution
• Flood Management & Drainage
• Parks, open spaces and cemeteries

East Lindsey DC
Environment
• Waste collection & recycling
• Fleet Vehicle Maintenance
• Green Waste Service
• Street Cleaning
• Grounds Maintenance
• Environmental Management
• Pollution
• Flood Management & Drainage
• Parks, open spaces and cemeteries

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Shared approach to implementing the Environment Bill
Cross-border refuse collection opportunity for depots and reduced vehicle mileage
Commercial waste collection service opportunities.
Single climate change team
Aligned approach to working with Internal Drainage Boards.
Improved risk management of fleet maintenance

Baseline
• SH – Pride team
• SH – blending team and agency
• ELDC – Strong waste performance
• BBC/ELDC – IDB relationships
• ELDC – In house fleet maintenance garage
• BBC/ELDC – Climate change team
• BBC – Commercial waste operator
• ELDC preparing for commercial waste service.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

52

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 85

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Public Protection
• Licensing & Enforcement
• Streetscene
• Food Safety
• Community Protection
• Pest Control
• CCTV

South Holland DC
Public Protection
• Licensing & Enforcement
• Streetscene
• Food Safety

Boston BC
Public Protection
• Licensing & Enforcement
• Streetscene
• Food Safety
• Community Protection
• CCTV

East Lindsey DC
Public Protection
• Licensing & Enforcement
• Streetscene
• Food Safety
• Community Protection
• CCTV

Partnership Potential
1.
2.

Shared Food Safety resources
Resilience in specialist service areas.

Baseline
•
•

BBC – existing provision of CCTV services across the partnership.
BBC/ELDC – shared community safety service.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

53

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 86

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Property & Facilities
• Estates Management
• Asset Strategy
• Facilities Management
• Fleet Management
• Car Parking

South Holland DC
Property & Facilities
• Estates Management
• Asset Strategy
• Fleet Management

Boston BC
Property & Facilities
• Estates Management
• Asset Strategy
• Facilities Management
• Fleet Management
• Car Parking
• Public Conveniences

East Lindsey DC
Property & Facilities
• Estates Management
• Asset Strategy
• Facilities Management
• Fleet Management
• Car Parking
• Public Conveniences

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.

Shared commercial opportunities
Shared construction and maintenance contracts.
Single approach to cash collection on car parks.
Asset rationalisation

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•

BBC/ELDC – £70m commercial property portfolio
SHDC – service hub model – LCC, DWP and CAB co-located
ELDC – Danfo PC contract
ELDC – Commercial caravan site operator
BBC – Service Hub model with DWP, LCC, CVS, Registrar, Probation Trust and CAB being co-located within the Municipal Building

DRAFT DOCUMENT

54

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Emergency Planning
• Local Resilience Forum
• Business Continuity

South Holland DC
Emergency Planning
• Local Resilience Forum
• Business Continuity

Boston BC
Emergency Planning
• Local Resilience Forum
• Business Continuity

East Lindsey DC
Emergency Planning
• Local Resilience Forum
• Business Continuity

Partnership Potential

•

Page 87

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

1.
2.
3.

Single officer representation on the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum
Single Emergency and Business Continuity Plan
Officer resilience in emergencies

Baseline
•
•
•

LRF partnership
SHDC – own emergency planning resource
BBC/ELDC – shared approach to emergency planning – single EP and BC plan

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

55

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 88

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Housing
• Housing Strategy
• HRA
Housing Landlord
• Housing Management
• Repairs & Maintenance
• Careline and supported housing
• Homelessness
• Housing Options
• Tenants Engagement
• Affordable Housing Delivery
• Housing Standards
• Private Sector Housing
• Disabled Facility Grants

South Holland DC
Housing
• Housing Strategy
• HRA
Housing Landlord
• Housing Management
• Repairs & Maintenance
• Careline and supported housing
• Homelessness
• Housing Options
• Tenants Engagement
• Affordable Housing Delivery
• Housing Standards
• Private Sector Housing
• Disabled Facility Grants

Boston BC
Housing
• Homelessness
• Affordable Housing Delivery
• Housing Standards
• Housing Options
• Housing Strategy
• Private Sector Housing
• Disabled Facility Grants

East Lindsey DC
Housing
• Homelessness
• Affordable Housing Delivery
• Housing Standards
• Housing Options
• Housing Strategy
• Private Sector Housing
• Wellbeing Lincs
• Disabled Facility Grants

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.

Shared ICT solutions
Enhanced construction programmes
Shared learning around reducing rough sleeping.
Shared housing management expertise.

Baseline
• Include in scope Council House building programmes
• SH – Welland Homes (private sector)
• SH - South Holland Homes (affordable)
• ELDC – Invest East Lindsey
• ELDC – Low rough sleeping stats
• ELDC/BBC – teams being brought together
• Close links to planning, in particular affordable housing delivery and partnerships with RPs/developers.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

56

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Health & Safety
• Buildings and Programmes

South Holland DC
Health & Safety
• Buildings and Programmes

Boston BC
Health & Safety
• Buildings and Programmes

East Lindsey DC
Health & Safety
• Buildings and Programmes

Partnership Potential
1.

Single policies on health and safety, where appropriate.

Baseline
•

SH/EL/BBC - PSPS Ltd

Page 89

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (External)

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

57

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 90

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
HR & OD
• Human Resources & Organisational
Development
• Payroll
• Health & Safety
• Training & Development

South Holland DC
HR & OD
• Human Resources & Organisational
Development
• Payroll
• Health & Safety
• Training & Development

Boston BC
HR & OD
• Human Resources & Organisational
Development
• Payroll
• Health & Safety
• Training & Development

East Lindsey DC
HR & OD
• Human Resources & Organisational
Development
• Payroll
• Health & Safety
• Training & Development

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Accelerated transformation with PSPS
Single Workforce Development Strategy
Consider aligned Terms and Conditions of employment.
Greater career development opportunities for colleagues.
Single HR policies.
Single approach to values and behaviours.
Single training plan.

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

SH – PSPS Ltd
BBC/ELDC – Adopted workforce strategy
BBC/ELDC – Future Leaders Programme
BBC/ELDC – Organisational Development capacity
BBC/ELDC – Single training plan
BBC/ELDC – single employee reference group
BBC/ELDC – single Joint Consultative Committee
BBC/ELDC – HR policy alignment programme underway
BBC/ELDC/SHDC – training budgets all managed by PSPSL.
BBC/ELDC – single values and behaviours framework

DRAFT DOCUMENT

58

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 91

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

Partnership Model – Shared Services (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the Partnership Model.

Service Building Blocks
Legal
• Monitoring Officer
• Legal
• Land Charges
• Data Protection

South Holland DC
Legal
• Monitoring Officer
• Legal
• Land Charges
• Data Protection
• Land Charges

Boston BC
Legal
• Monitoring Officer
• Legal
• Land Charges
• Data Protection

East Lindsey DC
Legal
• Monitoring Officer
• Legal
• Land Charges
• Data Protection

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.

Shared Monitoring Officer
Shared Data Protection Officer
Shared Legal Advice
Performance improvements in Land Charges

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•

SH – Land Charges – Building Control
SH – Legal with Breckland
BBC/ELDC – In house legal advisor /Legal Services Lincolnshire.
ELDC – Land Registry transfer completed
BBC/ELDC – single data protection officer

DRAFT DOCUMENT

59

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 92

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
ICT
• ICT Strategy
• Infrastructure
• Operations
• Digital
• Systems & Data Management

South Holland DC
ICT
• ICT Strategy
• Infrastructure
• Operations
• Digital
• Systems & Data Management

Boston BC
ICT
• ICT Strategy
• Infrastructure
• Operations
• Digital
• Systems & Data Management

East Lindsey DC
ICT
• ICT Strategy
• Infrastructure
• Operations
• Digital
• Systems & Data Management

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.

Single ICT Strategy
Single ICT infrastructure – including cloud hosting.
Improved customer access channels through digital.
Aligned Member ICT provision.

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•

SH/BBC/ELDC – PSPS Ltd
BBC/ELDC moving towards a single ICT infrastructure – PSPS Ltd
BBC/ELDC – tech is essential to agile working approach.
ELDC – deploying Uniform case management system across planning, env health, enforcement, neighbourhoods, building control and housing. BBC procuring migration to Uniform at
present.
BBC/ELDC - Teams Rooms deployed to allow flexibility on how and where officers attend meetings from.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

60

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 93

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Finance
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors
• Collection Fund
• Internal & External Audit
• Business Rates
• Risk Management
• Anti-Fraud
• Insurance

South Holland DC
Finance
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors
• Collection Fund
• Internal & External Audit
• Business Rates
• Risk Management
• Anti-Fraud
• Insurance
• HRA

Boston BC
Finance
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors
• Collection Fund
• Internal & External Audit
• Business Rates
• Risk Management
• Anti-Fraud
• Insurance

East Lindsey DC
Finance
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors
• Collection Fund
• Internal & External Audit
• Business Rates
• Risk Management
• Anti-Fraud
• Insurance

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Shared S151 Officer
Single Risk Management Framework
Investment opportunities with shared risks.
Common debt recovery policy
Combined audit framework.

Baseline
•
•
•
•

SH – PSPS Ltd
ELDC – PSPS Ltd
BBC – PSPS Ltd
BBC/ELDC – shared S151 Officer

DRAFT DOCUMENT

61

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Performance
• Corporate Plan
• Performance Management

South Holland DC
Performance
• Corporate Plan
• Performance Management

Boston BC
Performance
• Corporate Plan
• Performance Management

East Lindsey DC
Performance
• Corporate Plan
• Performance Management

Partnership Potential

•

Page 94

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

1.
2.

Single approach to Performance Management
Shared priorities.

Baseline
•
•

BBC/ELDC – single service manager overseeing this area of work.
Separate Corporate Plans reflecting individual political accountability

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

62

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 95

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks

South Holland DC

Contracts & Procurement
• Procurement Strategy
• Contract Management
• Procurement administration

Contracts & Procurement
• Procurement Strategy
• Contract Management
• Procurement administration

Boston BC
Contracts & Procurement
• Procurement Strategy
• Contract Management
• Procurement administration

East Lindsey DC
Contracts & Procurement
• Procurement Strategy
• Contract Management
• Procurement administration

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.

Single Procurement Strategy
Shared procurement resource
Efficiency through alignment of contracts

Baseline
SH – Contracts & Procurement Breckland DC
BBC – KLWN procurement
ELDC – In house /Lincs Procurement (ad-hoc)

DRAFT DOCUMENT

63

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 96

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Communication
• Internal Communications
• External Communications
• Stakeholder Engagement
• Marketing

South Holland DC

Boston BC

Communication
• Internal Communications
• External Communications
• Stakeholder Engagement
• Marketing
• Digital Design

Communication
• Internal Communications
• External Communications
• Stakeholder Engagement
• Marketing

East Lindsey DC
Communication
• Internal Communications
• External Communications
• Stakeholder Engagement
• Marketing

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Single Communications functions.
Joined up approach to internal communications.
Chance to give SELCP area a louder voice in media.
Reduced marketing costs through joint procurement.
Strong communications platform with national press and central government.

Baseline
•

BBC/ELDC – single comms team focusing on internal and external comms.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

64

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 97

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Customer Services
• Customer Insight & Services
• Revenues & Benefits
• Benefit Fraud
• Revenues Collection
• Revenues Enforcement
• Benefits Administration

South Holland DC
Customer Services
• Customer Insight & Services
• Revenues & Benefits
• Benefit Fraud
• Revenues Collection
• Revenues Enforcement
• Benefits Administration

Boston BC
Customer Services
• Customer Insight & Services
• Revenues & Benefits
• Benefit Fraud
• Revenues Collection
• Revenues Enforcement
• Benefits Administration

East Lindsey DC
Customer Services
• Customer Insight & Services
• Revenues & Benefits
• Benefit Fraud
• Revenues Collection
• Revenues Enforcement
• Benefits Administration

Partnership Potential
1.

To be picked up as part of a refreshed PSPS transformation plan.

Baseline
•
•
•

SH – PSPS Ltd for Customer Services and Revenue & Benefit Services
BBC – PSPS Ltd for Customer Services and Revenue & Benefit Services
ELDC – PSPS Ltd for Customer Services and Revenue & Benefit Services

DRAFT DOCUMENT

65

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 98

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks

South Holland DC

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

Democratic Services and Elections

Democratic Services and Elections

Democratic Services and Elections

Democratic Services and Elections

•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

Democratic Services
Local Elections
Electoral Services

Democratic Services
Local Elections
Electoral Services

Democratic Services
Local Elections
Electoral Services

Democratic Services
Local Elections
Electoral Services

Partnership Potential
1.
2.
3.
4.

Greater resilience in election teams
Reduced costs through shared procurement.
Single Democratic Services function.
Joint Member Briefings.

Baseline
•
•
•
•
•

ELDC – large electoral footprint with 189 Parishes/Parish meetings
BBC - 18 Parish Councils
SHDC – 22 Parishes
BBC/ELDC – single service manager
BBC/ELDC - Officer attendance at meeting hybrid

DRAFT DOCUMENT

66

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

Opportunity exists to
improve service
performance across the
partnership through
councils who have a
stronger performance
record within the
partnership.

Page 99

•

This will help to map the
short, medium and long
term shared services/joint
working arrangements
within and across the
partnership.

SELCP – Shared Opportunities (Internal)
To identify the shared service and joint working arrangements within and across the partnership.

Service Building Blocks
Transformation
• Commercialisation
• Change agenda

South Holland DC
Transformation
• Commercialisation
• Change agenda

Boston BC
Transformation
• Commercialisation
• Change agenda

East Lindsey DC
Transformation
• Commercialisation
• Change agenda

Partnership Potential
1.

Commercial ventures available to all three partners.

Baseline
•
•
•
•

ELDC – Invest East Lindsey Commercial Arm
BBC/ELDC – single service manager overseeing transformation agenda
ELDC – financial sustainability strategy in place.
SHDC – strong commercialisation experience from multiple companies, including Breckland LAGBI.

Collective sharing this
opportunity could help
accelerate performance
improvement across the
region and therefore
provide a higher quality of
service at a lower cost to
all communities.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

67

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

Strengthens from within
the Partnership could be of
benefit to all partners
organisations
Joint learning, experience
and service improvement
from within a single council
could be to the collective
benefit of the Partnership

•

Lead specialisms could be
developed leading to
reduce cost of external
support and advice

•

The initial performance analysis has identified that there are strengthens within the Partnership Model which could be to the advantage of all partnership
organisations.
Plan
Map the service areas across
the region where the DC is
recognised as a lead
specialist.

Page 100

•

SELCP – Lead Specialisms/Highly Performing Services (1 of 2)

High performance councils
could help lower
performing councils
improve at an accelerated
pace

DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland

Boston

East Lindsey

Partnerships and influence – South
Holland has strong partnerships at an
officer and political level with a range of
partners and influencers, including gov
ministers, civil service, the LGA, LCC,
GLLEP, Homes England and the local
business community.

Heritage - Boston has a good
relationship with Heritage
England and Partnership with
Heritage Lincolnshire for the
management and improvement
of significant heritage assets.

Culture – a strong relationship
with Arts Council England
through our leisure provider
that has enabled access to
significant opportunities
around cultural development
bringing value to the
community and the visitor
economy.

Housing management and housing
delivery – SHDC manages 3900 homes
with in-house teams, and a wellestablished housing delivery team and
programme.

External Funding - a positive
track record of securing
external funding to support
economic growth and
community support and
development.

External Funding - a positive
track record of securing
external funding to support
economic growth and
community support and
development.

External funding – the council has
established a strong track record of
securing external funding. E.g. the
council has ‘investment partner status’
with Homes England to delivery HRA
property

Securing external funding for
community benefit – for
example, Towns Fund, Housing
Infrastructure Fund, Controlling
Migration fund, Community
Champions fund.

Wellbeing – leading the
Wellbeing contract for
Lincolnshire.

Enabling strategic growth – the council
has a strong track record of working
with partners, funders and the private
sector to unlock strategic growth and
infrastructure

Success in the delivery of
affordable housing through
various partnerships – 750 new
affordable homes over the last
five years, one new home every
2.43 days.

Visitor Economy – strong
approach to visitor economy.

Region

68

Partnership –
Scope of Services
•

•

•

Joint learning, experience
and service improvement
from within a single council
could be to the collective
benefit of the Partnership

The initial performance analysis has identified that there are strengthens within the Partnership Model which could be to the advantage of all partnership
organisations.
Plan

South Holland

Map the service areas across
the region where the DC is
recognised as a lead
specialist.

Property expertise and project delivery –
the council has a highly experienced team in
respect of property and project delivery

Lead specialisms could be
developed leading to
reduce cost of external
support and advice

Page 101

•

Strengthens from within
the Partnership could be of
benefit to all partners
organisations

SELCP – Lead Specialisms/Highly Performing Services (2 of 2)

High performance councils
could help lower
performing councils
improve at an accelerated
pace

Boston
Strategic partner
engagement – for example,
with Boston College, Port of
Boston, Platform Housing
Group.

East Lindsey

Region

Aging Better – strong focus
on enabling people to age
well with national
recognition.

Financial management and
commercialisation – The council has a strong
reputation for sound financial management
and commercialisation, supported by
experienced senior officers and political
oversight
Council companies – the council has
considerable experience of establishing
council-owned companies which have
delivered outcomes
Food safety – The council has developed a
high level of expertise in respect of food
safety, with strong links to local businesses in
the agri-food sector
Governance – The council has considerable
experience and expertise in respect of
governance and decision making
Environmental Services – The council has a
high performing in-house environmental
services function
Building control – The council has an awardwinning and well established building control
function

DRAFT DOCUMENT

69

Page 102

SECTION 5: FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITY
DRAFT DOCUMENT

70

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Baseline
Partnership –
Financial Baseline

•

This can enable
accelerated delivery of
organisational/back office
savings whilst protecting
front-line services across
the partnership.

Page 103

•

The opportunity exists
across the partnership to
enable all partners to
respond to their collective
financial challenge.

This opportunity could
enable the ‘levelling-up’
agenda within the subregion through more
effective and efficient
investment and
programme delivery
supported by the
proposed structure.

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/25
– Budget Gaps
2.5
2.187

2.081

2.035

2

£m per annum

•

Individual partner councils have budgetary gaps over the next 3 years, the partnership will help to respond to this financial challenge across the sub-region.

1.5
1.242

1.172
1

0.862
0.613

0.555

0.490

0.5

0.484
0.000

0
2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Financial Year
South Holland DC

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

71

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial baseline and budget pressures
Partnership –
Financial baseline
data
•

•

Baseline – MFTS projected budget gaps 2022-25
MTFS – Budget Gap

Understanding the
baseline financial challenge
of each council and the
new strategic partnership
will help to shape the
potential focus and
priorities of the
partnership.

2023/24
£000’s

2024/25
£000’s

South Holland DC

2.081

2.187

2.035

Boston BC

0.862

0.490

0.484

East Lindsey DC

1.172

1.242

0.613

Total

4.115

3.919

3.132

2022/23
£000’s

2023/24
£000’s

2024/25
£000’s

Budget Pressures

Page 104

Understanding the
underlying financial
pressures of each council
will help target
opportunities,
transformation and
performance management
to best address these
issues to help contribute to
the budgetary gap faced
across the new strategic
partnership.

2022/23
£000’s

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Financial Year
South Holland DC
• Pay Award Inflation 2%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

•
•
•
•

150
74
52
721

•
•
•
•

152
76
53
1,205

•
•
•
•

154
78
54
1,256

Boston BC
• Pay Award Inflation 1%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

•
•
•
•

100
75
40
1,258

•
•
•
•

101
83
41
1,547

•
•
•
•

103
93
42
1,665

East Lindsey DC
• Pay Award Inflation 2%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

•
•
•
•

280
99
76
2,367

•
•
•
•

285
99
78
2,773

•
•
•
•

281
99
79
2,773

72

Partnership –
Shared
Management
Structure
•

•

Cost of Proposed Shared Management Structure

South Holland DC are
bringing 6 x Assistant
Directors and 1 x Deputy
Chief Executive into the
shared management
partnership structure.
The Senior Management
costs will be shared on a
S113 agreement based on
a population
apportionment.

Page 105

•

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Proposed Shared Management Structure

FTE
Shared Posts
Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Assistant Director
Total

1.00
4.00
13.00
18.00

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

South Holland DC

Total

£

£

£

£

26,335
91,373
209,214

52,671
182,746
418,428

35,496
123,155
281,984

114,502
397,274
909,626

326,922

653,845

440,635

1,421,402

Formal team mergers will
use population to share
costs.

Apportionment
ExistingSenior
seniorStructure
structure
Existing

21.60
21.60

23%

46%

31%

322,971
322,971

655,729
655,729

773,704
773,704

100%
1,752,404

Note
1. Principle that no individual council will be financially worse off under the shared management structure proposals.
2. BBC/ELDC shared management savings have already been achieved during Year 1 of the current strategic alliance.
3. SHDC shared management savings will count towards the Year 1 savings target.
4. The intention is that the apportionment be updated at the point of publication of new ONS population data.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

73

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Opportunity
Partnership –
Financial
Opportunity

•

The additional financial
opportunity for the
partnership is initially
scoped as £3.803m over a
3 year period.

•

£000’s per annum

Shared Management
Structure provides a net
benefit of £331,003
across the partnership,
attributable mainly to
South Holland DC.

Page 106

•

Partnership Financial Opportunity 2021/25

At this stage no additional
resources have been
assumed to the subregion as a consequence
of the ability to act as a
sub-region in its
relationship with
Government.

900.00
800.00
700.00
600.00
500.00
400.00
300.00
200.00
100.00
(100.00)
SHDC Staffing
BBC Staffing
ELDC Staffing
SHDC Additional
BBC Additional
ELDC Additional
SHDC Total
BBC Total
ELDC Total

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

333.07
(3.95)
1.89
396.60
286.90
623.10
729.67
282.95
624.99

250.80
320.40
425.10
250.80
320.40
425.10

416.40
284.20
799.40
416.40
284.20
799.40

Financial Year
SHDC Staffing
ELDC Additional

DRAFT DOCUMENT

BBC Staffing
SHDC Total

ELDC Staffing

SHDC Additional

BBC Total

ELDC Total

BBC Additional

74

The principles which are
contained within are:-

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Baseline v Financial Opportunity

• Scope & Scale - to scope the
level of financial opportunity
to support the Business Case
and demonstrate options and
opportunity for future
member decisions.

Page 107

• Confidence - the financial
opportunity is based on
controllable expenditure only
- thus providing a level of
confidence in the baseline
opportunity and links the
analysis back to approved
budgets.

2.187
2.081

2.035

2.000

£m per annum

• Plan - this provides a phasing
of service reviews across a 36
month period and provide a
balance to the areas being
reviewed over this period.

Financial Baseline v Financial Savings 2021/25

2.500

• Prudence - the financial
opportunity has been
modelled on a 5% target, this
equates to less than 5% across
the 3 years of the phasing.

1.500
1.242

1.172
1.000

0.862
0.730
0.625

0.799
0.613
0.484
0.416
0.284

0.490
0.425
0.320
0.251

0.500
0.283

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Financial Year

DRAFT DOCUMENT

SHDC MTFS Gap

SHDC Partnership Opportunity

BBC MTFS Gap

BBC Partnership Opportunity

ELDC MTFS Gap

ELDC Partnership Opportunity

75

The principles which are
contained within are:-

SELCP – Financial Opportunity over a 10 year period 2022/23 to 2031/32

Cumulative General Fund Financial Opportunity – 10 years

• Scope & Scale - to scope the
level of financial opportunity
to support the Business Case
and demonstrate options and
opportunity for future
member decisions.

Page 108

• Confidence - the financial
opportunity is based on
controllable General Fund
expenditure only - thus
providing a level of confidence
in the baseline opportunity
and a clear linkage to Council
approved budgets across the
partnership.

20.000

£m per annum

• Plan - this provides a phasing
of service reviews across a 36
month period and provide a
balance to the areas being
reviewed over this period.

25.000

• Prudence - the financial
opportunity has been
modelled on a 6.5% baseline
of controllable expenditure.

15.000

10.000

5.000

South Holland DC
Boston BC
East Lindsey DC

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Year 1 2022/23

Year 2 2023/24

Year 3 2024/25

Year 4 2025/26

Year 5 2026/27

Year 6 2027/28

Year 7 2028/29

Year 8 2029/30

Year 92030/31

Year 10 2031/32

0.730
0.683
1.425

0.980
1.003
1.850

1.397
1.288
2.649

2.794
2.575
5.299

4.191
3.863
7.948

5.587
5.150
10.598

6.984
6.438
13.247

8.381
7.725
15.897

9.778
9.013
18.546

11.175
10.300
21.196
76

Page 109

SECTION 6: STRUCTURE (PROPOSED FOR CONSULTATION)
DRAFT DOCUMENT

77

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
•

•

There are pros and cons in
any option and first step,
but many successful
partnerships have started
from a small and build
philosophy rather than a
big bang approach.

Page 110

•

It will be important to
identify the steps envisage
to implement the new
strategic partnership.

The pace of savings is
determined by the nature
of the first steps but
importantly so is the scale
of risk to the new strategic
partnership.

The first step is the most important step in developing the new local strategic partnership

Steps towards a shared leadership and management:
• In most cases, the first step is to share a chief executive and senior management team. This immediately makes better use of limited resources and
puts councils in a stronger position to develop other shared roles or services that could make further savings. Councils use this opportunity to review
their management structures to reflect changing circumstances and challenges and to ready their organisations for the future.
• Once joint senior management is in place, sharing often filters down through the tiers to include some (and sometimes all) services. Staff may be
moved into one organisation with a single set of terms and conditions, or may remain employed by their own organisation but on harmonised terms
and conditions.
• Each council retains its own identity and priorities but with common goals and a shared commitment to manage financial and other challenges. The
most successful partnerships are those that consider which approach might work best and adopt elements of it in one, both or all councils. This hybrid
approach allows the best of each council to flow into the new partnership.
• Partnerships typically go on to share a broad range of services such as HR, finance, procurement, audit, ICT, customer services, public protection,
building control, land, legal, property and revenues. Services may be delivered in-house, with councils optimising their collective staffing resources, or
commissioned from external providers. In a few cases, councils have opted for a full merger.
Most partnerships are ‘horizontal’, involving councils at the same level of local government. There are a few examples of ‘vertical’ sharing and this is seen
by some as an untapped opportunity for efficiency and service improvement.
Both horizontal and vertical partnership opportunities should be identified and considered to maximise the benefits opportunity available to a new local
strategic partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

78

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small

The catalyst for change to deliver the scale of ambition available to the new local strategic partnership.

• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.

A shared leadership and management team should enable the following benefits to be achieved:

• The advantages of this first
step enable the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

• Cost savings and efficiency - the main driver for shared management is the potential to get ‘more for less’ – making cost savings while
improving services through transformation and shared resources.

• Resilience and greater collective capacity - at its most effective, cross-council collaboration is used to bring the best of both (or all) the
councils together. By combining their strengths, councils can deliver more efficient and effective public services while simultaneously
increasing their sustainability and resilience.

• Wider transformation - shared management provides an opportunity to look at things from a fresh perspective and is often used to
drive major transformation programmes to improve efficiency and effectiveness across a council’s services.

Page 111

DRAFT DOCUMENT

79

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enables the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 112

• On the structure - the
intention is to have a Deputy
Chief Executive lead for each
Council following
appointments to posts being
confirmed.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

80

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enable the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 113

DRAFT DOCUMENT

81

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enable the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 114

DRAFT DOCUMENT

82

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enable the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 115

DRAFT DOCUMENT

83

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Shared Leadership and Management Benefits
Partnership – First
Steps – Big or Small
• In all examples of
partnership working a shared
Chief Executive followed by a
Shared Leadership Team is
the first step.
• The advantages of this first
step enable the
opportunities and benefits to
the new strategic
partnership.

Page 116

DRAFT DOCUMENT

84

Page 117

SECTION 7: PARTNERSHIP PLATFORM
DRAFT DOCUMENT

85

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Partnership Platform - Mechanisms
Partnership
Platform Mechanisms
•

Keeping the structure of
the partnership as clear
and as simple as possible
provides a more effective
platform for the delivery
of improvements and
benefits whilst
maintaining clarity for
governance and decisionmaking purposes.

Page 118

•

It will be important to
determining the
partnership platform for
the new strategic
partnership to enable the
development of the
appropriate structure and
governance arrangements
for the partnership.

There are a number of mechanisms available to councils for sharing services and management.
1. Joint working, in which participants try to consolidate functions within existing institutions, the least sophisticated of the three types. This often
begins by merging internal services into a single unit, but can be extended to apply across organisations. However, each partner acts independently
and retains responsibility for the service in-house. For example, several local authorities might collaborate on commodities procurement and agree to
negotiate jointly with suppliers, but they each continue to employ and manage their own purchasing staff.
2. Principal partner-led, in which one organisation (private or public sector) assumes responsibility for running services for others. For example,
Tewkesbury Borough Council provides a legal service for Cheltenham Borough Council, while Cheltenham provides a building control function for
Tewkesbury. Insourcing, outsourcing and PFI initiatives also fit into this category.
3. Third party, in which participating bodies decide to establish another organisation to deliver services for them at arms-length. This is already in place
via PSPS Ltd.

Keeping the structure of the partnership as clear and as simple as possible provides a more effective platform for the delivery of improvements and
benefits whilst maintaining clarity for governance and decision-making purposes.

The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership will adopt the most effective and efficient model for the delivery of its services that provides value for
money for the residents it serves whilst ensuring the most effective model for service delivery based on the needs of our residents.
The partnership has examples of each model currently as a good starting basis for this future opportunity.
Any proposals for the future transformation of the existing service model are subject to a future decision of Members as part of the service review
programme of opportunities and benefits identified as part of this business case.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

86

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Partnership Platform - Legal basis

•

•

Partnership
Platform
Legal basis

There are a range of provisions in law that make sharing possible. For example:

It will be important to
determining the legal
basis for the new strategic
partnership to enable the
development of the
appropriate structure and
governance arrangements
for the partnership.

• Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 makes a provision for councils to establish joint committees with other local authorities to discharge
their functions. Joint committees are invariably established through a legal agreement signed by the participating local authorities. There are many
joint committees in operation, delivering specific services such as revenues and benefits, building control, museums, highways and waste or a range of
services as in, for example, the East Kent Joint Arrangements Committee, Three Rivers and Watford, and Adur and Worthing.

Page 119

It will be important to
determine the
‘employing’ council for
the new strategic
partnership.

• Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows local authorities to delegate functions to other local authorities (subject to provisions contained
in other legislation). Although the delegating authority remains ultimately responsible for the execution of the functions, Section 101 makes it possible
for councils to perform functions on behalf of other councils.

• Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to enter into an agreement with another local authority to place an officer of
one at the disposal of the other for the purposes of discharging the latter’s functions.
• Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 allows local authorities and health bodies to pool funds and join together their staff, resources, and
management structures to integrate the provision of a health-related service from managerial level to the front-line.
• Councils also have powers to set up companies for the purpose of performing any of their ordinary functions. They will, however, need to be mindful of
competition law and state aid issues. In their dealings with companies they own, wholly or in part, they must also observe the restrictions imposed by
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006. There will be a number of other considerations in setting up a company and councils will need to seek specific
advice before doing so.

The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership will create a shared management arrangement based on Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972.
All employees will remain contracted to their sovereign councils.
There are a number of other provisions in law, identified above, which could provide a future opportunity for the partnership.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

87

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Partnership Platform - Partnership Plans
Partnership
Platform Partnership Plans
•

South Holland DC

Boston BC

East Lindsey DC

The remainder of 21/22 would be used to undertake an enabling programme which in turn would allow time for Officers and Member to create a joint working platform
from which to undertake significant and well developed pieces of work in 22/23. This work would provide a programme of delivery for the Annual Delivery Plans of 22/23
and give everyone time to breath.

To be adopted

✓

✓

A project to align staff terms and conditions across the shared management team

✓

✓

✓

An analysis of policy development resulting in an aligned programme

✓

✓

✓

Decisions to take immediate opportunities where gaps and performance challenges
exist

✓

✓

✓

A discussion with PSPS for accelerated ICT integration

✓

✓

✓

A constitutional and governance review including schemes of delegation

✓

✓

✓

Performance alignment to set common standards where sensible to do so

✓

✓

✓

Undertake a cultural alignment project built around values and behaviours

To be adopted

✓

✓

Political engagement workshops with Executive and Scrutiny Councillors to define
expectations for joint and sovereign working models

✓

✓

✓

Creation of 2022/23 Annual Delivery Plans which alongside local priorities focus on a
medium term plan to align key services in an order which makes sense and deliver
additionality to each partner and support the MTFS

✓

✓

✓

The immediate creation of an external partner communications and engagement plan
to promote both interest and investment

✓

✓

✓

The development of thinking for a Community, Place and Corporate Strategies.

✓

✓

✓

Where strategic priorities
are identified across the
sub-region joint plans
could be developed to
support the partnership
and potentially on a wider
geography within South
East Lincolnshire

Workforce Development Strategy

Opportunity exists across
the partnership to
develop plans across the
partnership district
councils and beyond

Page 120

•

Plan

DRAFT DOCUMENT

88

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Partnership Platform - One Team
Partnership
Platform One Team
•

Page 121

•

The alignment between
the officer and member
interface for the
partnership will be
important to enable a
whole partnership
approach across both
organisations focussing on
key priorities and
outcomes for local
communities.

Future opportunities and
benefits are enabled
through good political and
officer alignment
supporting the proposed
structure of portfolios and
political portfolios.

Leader - Authority Reorganisation Strategic Positioning –
Lord Porter of Spalding

Leader of the Council – Councillor Paul Skinner

Leader of the Council – Cllr Craig Leyland

Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member - People, Places &
Corporate – Cllr Nick Worth

Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Economic Development and Planning
– Cllr Nigel Welton

Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Partnerships – Cllr Graham Marsh

Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member - Finance, Strategy,
Partnerships – Cllr Peter Coupland
Cabinet Member - Environmental Services – Cllr Roger
Gambba-Jones

Cabinet Member - Health & Wellbeing, Conservation &
Heritage – Cllr Elizabeth Sneath
Cabinet Member - Communities & Facilities – Cllr Gary
Taylor
Cabinet Member - Public Protection – Cllr Anthony Casson
Cabinet Member - Commercialisation & Growth – Cllr Harry
Drury
Cabinet Member - Assets & Planning – Cllr Rodney Grocock
Cabinet Member - HRA & Private Sector Housing – Cllr
Christine Lawton
Performance Monitoring Panel – Cllr Bryan Alcock

Portfolio Holder for Planning – Cllr Tom Ashton
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Commercial –
Cllr Jonathan Noble

Portfolio Holder for Operational Services – Cllr
Martin Foster

Portfolio Holder for Heritage – Cllr Richard
Austin

Portfolio Holder for Finance – Cllr Richard Fry

Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services –
Cllr Deborah Evans

Portfolio Holder for Aging Better – Cllr William
Gray

Portfolio Holder for Town Centre – Cllr Tracey
Abbott

Portfolio Holder for Market Towns and Rural
Economy – Cllr Adam Grist

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Communities –
Cllr Martin Griggs

Portfolio Holder for Coastal Economy – Cllr
Steve Kirk

Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee
Chairman – Cllr Stephen Woodliffe

Overview Committee Chairman – Cllr Mrs Fiona
Martin

Performance and Environment Scrutiny
Committee Chairman – Cllr Judith Skinner

Governance & Audit Committee – Cllr Paul
Hibbert-Greaves

Governance & Audit Committee – Cllr Peter
Watson

Policy Development Panel – Cllr Andrew Robert Woolf
Governance & Audit Committee – Cllr Tracey Carter

DRAFT DOCUMENT

89

Page 122

SECTION 8: RISKS, DEPENDENCIES & CONSTRAINTS
DRAFT DOCUMENT

90

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Risks & Mitigations
Partnership –
Risks & Mitigations

Page 123

In order for a partnership to
be successful, like any good
relationship, it needs to be
constantly worked on,
nurtured and developed. The
following risks have been
identified, it is recommended
that these factors are
considered in the partnership
governance arrangements on
a regular basis.

Risk

Mitigation

A lack of clear and shared vision; the reasons for shared
management and sharing of joint services

• The partnership exploration phase has developed this understanding.
• Engagement with members to ensure the objectives of the business case are clearly understood, through
the proposal recommendations, scrutiny process and final Council decisions.

A poor relationship or lack of trust between members, leaders
or senior staff

• Openness, transparency and accessibility for all groups.
• Building on the existing positive relationships between Members and Officers.

Concerns around the loss of sovereignty of a council

• Each Council continues to be governed by its own Constitution which is a key principle of the
Memorandum of Agreement between the three Councils.

Fears of a ‘takeover’ by one council

• First steps are defined by a shared management structure and each Council will retain its own ability to
delivery services in the way considers best for its communities through local decisions taken by its
Members.

A fundamental difference in the organisational culture of the
councils

• An initial expectation that many things will be similar and a commitment to use the best elements of
each partners cultural difference. This would be one of the early pieces of work upon the adoption of the
Workforce Development Strategy across the partnership.

Local Government Reorganisation

• The South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership is designed to have a positive influence should Local
Government Reorganisation be required of Lincolnshire.
• The partnership strengths the case for ‘locally-led deals’ which benefit South East Lincolnshire.

Local Government Funding

• Local Government funding challenges are inevitable and evidenced by each partner’s funding gaps. The
business case assumes a shared opportunity for efficient services and shared commercial opportunities
and provides a significant opportunity to respond to this on-going challenge.

Staff retention and resilience

DRAFT DOCUMENT

• Adopt a Workforce Strategy and an ambitious programme of work that makes the South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership a place of choice to work for staff.

91

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Dependencies & Solutions
Partnership –
Dependencies &
Options

Page 124

In order for a partnership to
be successful, like any good
relationship, it needs to be
constantly worked on,
nurtured and developed. The
following dependencies have
been identified, it is
recommended that these
factors are considered in the
partnership governance
arrangements on a regular
basis.

Dependency

Solution

The content and process of work – what is actually done, the
procedures that are followed, the skills involved and the (re)
training needed

In preparation for any identified area for improvement and/or financial opportunity a ‘understanding’
baselining exercise will be completed to ensure a thorough understanding of the current situation to better
inform the opportunity for improvements in efficiency and effectiveness.

Technology and information used – the tools that people work
with, how they access data and documents, and how
communications takes place with others (such as over the IT
system, rather than face-to-face)

In preparation for any identified area for improvement and/or financial opportunity a ‘understanding’
baselining exercise will be completed to ensure a thorough understanding of the current situation to better
inform the opportunity for improvements in efficiency and effectiveness.

Organisational structure – lines of responsibility (who reports to
whom), how work groups are formed (who works with whom)
and spans of control
Job roles and grades – the duties each person must carry out,
their areas of responsibility and their authority to make decisions
(which may also have consequences for salary scales)

This has been taken into account for the proposed shared management structure in support of the aims and
ambitions of the partnership. As opportunities are identified for future service integration opportunities it
will be equally important to ensure there are clear roles and responsibilities, accountabilities and that the
any structural changes provide effective spans of control. This will be identified in the proposed
recommendations as part of the service review programme.
The new partnership has made a commitment to review the arrangements for staff within the shared
management arrangements of the partnership. All partner councils have experienced officers who have
worked in a partnership environment and whom form the proposed staffing cohort of the shared
management.

Location – where work is to be undertaken, and whether
relocation and commuting costs will be compensated for

The partnership proposes working in such a way to support, develop and nurture good and effective
Member and Officer roles whilst recognising the distinct nature of the role of local members and officers.
The need for the shared management staff cohort to work in the most effective way across the partnership
councils will be critical to the success of the partnership.

Employment relationship and branding – who the employer will
be and what implications there are for the employee’s sense of
identify

Staff will remain employed by their sovereign council whilst playing a crucial role in supporting and
embracing the concept of partnership working across the 3 x Councils under the One Team philosophy and
branding. Through this approach each council benefits from the combined skills within each partner council
whilst maintaining their own individual council identity.

Staffing levels and structures – How many posts will be needed
and whether this will mean redundancies. This will also have
implications for career structures and possible progression and
promotion.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

The proposed shared management structure provides for increased resilience for all partner councils whilst
providing efficiencies to the benefit of each partner council. The benefits for ELDC and BBC have already
been achieved in Year 1 of the Strategic Alliance, the benefits identified in this business case for SHDC arise
as a consequence of joining the new strategic partnership. The partnership has a no redundancy policy.

92

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Constraints & Actions
Partnership –
Constraints & Actions

Page 125

In order for a partnership to
be successful, like any good
relationship, it needs to be
constantly worked on,
nurtured and developed. The
following constraints have
been identified, it is
recommended that these
factors are considered in the
partnership governance
arrangements on a regular
basis.

Constraint

Action

What are the financial benefits of sharing?
• Will there be economies of scale?
• Will there be opportunities to re-design systems and
processes to be more cost effective?
• Will there be procurement savings?
• How will savings be distributed between partners?

The business case had identified the scale of financial opportunity arising from the sharing of the senior
management team and the wider benefits available to the partnership. This has been identified in Section 4
– Scope of Services, Section 5 – Financial Opportunity and Section 6 – Structure (Proposed for Consultation).
The scale of financial opportunity will be dependent on the future political decisions and the programme of
work identified in Section 9 – Programme Governance & Management.

What investment will be needed and where will it come
from?
• What resources will different partners contribute to the
shared service?
• Is external funding available to support the shared service
development?
• Will there be costs to get out of existing contracts? What
will redundancies, if any, cost and who will pay for these?

For some areas of financial opportunity there will be a need to invest resources to achieve the identified
benefits, this is a natural position for a programme of this size and scale and provides each partner council
the opportunity not only to share the cost of the investment but to achieve a greater scale of return than
would be achievable alone.

What are the non-financial costs and benefits?
• What changes will there be in the quality of service?
• What will be the impact of change on service users and
staff?

Section 4 – Scope of Services has identified a range of ‘Partnership Potentials’ to be further explored and
recommendation as part of the service review programme. This provides the opportunity to review the
baseline level of service quality and service cost across the partnership councils and to identify
improvements, where this is a political priority. The partnership platform provides the opportunity to
improve service outcomes for all communities it serves across South East Lincolnshire.

Will sharing deliver benefits quickly enough?

Initial benefits have already been identified through the sharing of the senior management team across the
partnership. Section 4 – Scope of Services and Section 3 – Enablers and Opportunities begin to identify the
early opportunities. A timeline for October 2021 has been set out to achieve this aim.

What is the exit strategy?
• What will be the costs of withdrawing?

The Memorandum of Agreement sets out the arrangements for the termination of the partnership and the
basis for attributing costs.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

93

Page 126

SECTION 9: PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT
DRAFT DOCUMENT

94

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Programme objectives
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

Page 127

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

The objectives of the programme are:
1.

To develop the culture of the partnership.

2.

To established good and effective political and officer
relationships across the new partnership team.

3.

To establish a programme for service reviews

4.

To identify and target growth into areas of political priority.

5.

To establish new ways of working with partner
organisations.

6.

To develop shared service policy through shared Member
working.

7.

To explore opportunities for constitutional alignment.

8.

To develop plans for Ambitious Growth.

9.

To develop plans for Partnership expansion.

10. To develop plans for locally led deals, devolution and reform
in South East Lincolnshire.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Key Deliverables:

Phase One – Set Up
-

Common governance framework and approach
Common performance framework and service standards
Annual Delivery Plans

Phase Two - Accelerate
-

Service Review Programme
Resource Priority Strategy

Phase Three - Embed
-

Ambitious Growth Strategy
Partnership Expansion Strategy
Public Sector Reform Strategy

Programme Stages:
-

Phase One – April 2022
Phase Two – 2022/23
Phase Three – 2023/24

95

South East Lincolnshire Council Partnership – Scope and Governance
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

The scope of this programme
includes all aspects of the
opportunities and benefits
contained within the business
case.
The detailed programme will be
subject to further member
approval (October 2021).

Joint Strategy Board – Members
•

Stakeholder Group – Council Leaders - Members
•

Page 128

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

The recommendations resulting
from any aspect of the service
reviews will also be subject to
further member approval.

To support the joint management structure and joint working of the councils, the Joint Strategy
Board will be held to consider matters of interest, opportunities for joint working and any
potential further joint working of the partnership in accordance with the Memorandum of
Agreement.

•
•
•

To be responsible for strategic assurance and monitoring of the programme across
organisations, ensuring the programme delivers to agreed strategic objectives.
To report on a Monthly basis.
To be attended by the Chief Executive (or a nominated Deputy in their absence)
To be chaired alternatively by the Leaders who act as joint programme SROs.

Programme Board - Officers
• To provide overall management, guidance and control to the programme ensuring the
programme delivers agreed outputs and the work streams are on point for delivery. It is
responsible for the direction approval and decision-making of the programme.
• To report on a Monthly basis.
• To be chaired by the Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service.
Delivery Team - Officers
•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

To be responsible for day-to-day delivery and support of the programme.

96

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) Roles & Responsibilities
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

A SRO will:

A SRO needs to:

A SRO must:

1.

•

•

Broker relationships with stakeholders

•

Deploy delegated authority to ensure the project
achieves its objectives

•

Provide advice and guidance to project leads as
necessary

•

Acknowledge their own skills or knowledge
gaps and structure the project accordingly

•

Give the time required to perform the role
effectively

•

Negotiate well and influence people

•

Be aware of the broader perspective and how it
affects the project

•

Represent the interests of the project through
effective networking with peers and key
stakeholders

•

Be honest and frank about project progress

2.

Page 129

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

3.

4.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Be the visible owner
of the programme
and key leadership
figure in driving it
forward
Make decisions and
be proactive in
providing leadership
and direction
throughout the life of
the programme
Be accountable for
delivering the
programme and
associated outcomes
and benefits
Actively promote and
champion the
programme,
including its
contribution to
corporate priorities

•

•

Take responsibility – including
putting things right when they
go wrong, and ensuring
recognition is given when they
go right
Have a good understanding of
the business issues
associated with the project
Be a senior figure with the
relevant delegated authority
for the project

•

Be active and engaged, not
just a figurehead

•

Have sufficient experience to
carry out responsibilities

97

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Programme Management Resources
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

Initial assessment of staff resources required to
complete Phase One of the programme:
•

Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service

•

Deputy Chief Executives

•

Project Administration and support

•

Communications

Page 130

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Further resource considerations:
Additional expertise maybe required dependent on the risks identified
and the implementation plan requirements.
It is anticipated, at this stage, that additional resource considerations will
include:•

HR expertise, support and advice

•

Legal expertise, support and advice

•

Financial expertise, support and advice

•

Procurement, commercial and contract management expertise,
support and advice

98

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Programme Board Terms of Reference
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

Purpose

Membership

•

•

The Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service will act as the
Chair of the Board.

•

The Board comprises the following decision-making members:
Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service
Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer
Deputy Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Assistant Director - Governance

•

The Board is quorate if the Chair (or his designated lead) and
at least two other decision-making members are present. If
Board members are unable to attend meetings, they may send
a proxy with appropriate experience, knowledge and delegated
authority to contribute towards discussion or make decisions, in
their stead.

•

Where the Board is not in agreement the Chair, in consultation
with the SRO’s, has a casting vote on all matters.

•
•
•

•

Page 131

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

•
•
•

•

•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

To provide overall leadership, direction and steer to the
programme.
To provide support and hold officers accountable for delivery.
To establish and embed a robust and effective governance
framework for transformation initiatives.
To hold discussions and make decisions that will enable the
programme to be delivered to time, cost and quality
requirements.
To manage delivery of transformation initiatives, including
variances between plans and performance.
To champion the programme to ensure obstacles and barriers
to delivery are removed.
To ensure sufficient resources are released or made available
as required.
To deliver the programme plan and ensure effective controls
are in place to manage risks, assumptions, issues,
dependencies and agreed changes.
To ensure a smooth transition from the programme to
business as usual and that outcomes and benefits of
transformation are realised.
To co-ordinate and champion programme communication.

99

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Programme Board Roles & Responsibilities
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

Page 132

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

Roles and Responsibilities
Programme Board Members should:

The Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service:
•

Attend Board meetings or if unavailable send a deputy with the authority
to make decision on their part

•

Chairs the Board

•

Takes personal responsibility for ensuring that
the programme successfully delivers benefits

•

Contribute to discussion and decision making from the perspective of
specific directorates and collective corporate roles and responsibilities

•

Has clear authority, ensuring that the change
maintains its business focus, and that the wider
context, including risks and change control are
actively managed

•

Provide independent challenge, assurance and support to approvals
and decisions affecting programme progress throughout the programme
lifecycle

•

Actively communicate and champion the programme

•

Cascade a broader understanding of transformation activity affecting the
councils, encourage matrix working and collaboration, and build
effective rigour in the decision-making process

•

Invests time and commits to furthering
programme priorities

•

Provides approvals and decisions affecting the
programme

•

Ensures the Board functions effectively in its
decision making and oversight responsibilities

DRAFT DOCUMENT

100

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Administration & Governance
Partnership –
Programme
Governance &
Management

Page 133

This section of the Business
Case sets out the proposed
arrangements for the delivery
of the opportunities and
benefits contained within the
business case.

Administration

Governance

•

The Board will hold monthly meetings. The Delivery Team will
provide administration support for these meetings.

•

These Terms of Reference are effective from [DATE] and
continue until [DATE] unless early termination by the Executive
Board.

•

Meetings agendas will be agreed with the Chair. Standing
agenda items will be agreed with the Chair. Board members
will select work streams for deep dives on a monthly basis.
Progress reporting will generally be by exception against
tolerances.

•

The powers of the Board are a delegation of powers as
specified in the Council’s constitution and scheme of
delegation.

•

The Board is expected to report programme progress to the
Executive Board/Cabinet and respective Councils.

•

The Delivery Team is responsible establishing links and
dependencies across all strategic programme and forums.

•

These Terms of Reference may be amended, varied or
modified in writing after discussion and agreement by the
Executive Board.

•

These Terms of Reference will be reviewed every six months
from the date of approval by the Executive Board.

•

•

•

•

DRAFT DOCUMENT

Papers will be circulated at least two days before meetings.
Papers may be tabled on the day of the meeting with the
consent of the Chair.
An assumption will be made that all Board members have
read circulated papers before meetings with focus on areas
of contention or dissent at the meeting.
Decisions will be made by consensus. If this is not possible
the Chair will make a final decision. Decisions and actions
arising will be circulated within three days of meetings being
held.
Any post-meeting notes may be included with the consent of
the Chair.

101

Page 134

DRAFT DOCUMENT

102

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
AND
EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL
AND
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

RELATING TO AN INTEGRATED SHARED WORKFORCE STRUCTURE AND THE
DEVELOPMENT OF AN ALLIANCE BETWEEN THE THREE COUNCILS (TO BE
KNOWN AS THE SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP)

Page 135

Commented [SM1]:
General Note 1 – external legal advice will be obtained
on the drafting of this Agreement generally, but also on
some specific points flagged throughout the Agreement.
This may lead to some changes to the Agreement.
General Note 2 – some matters yet to be incorporated
in the Agreement, or yet to be agreed are also flagged.

CONTENTS
Clause

Description

Page

1.

Introduction

2

2.

Background and Overview

2

3.

Definitions

3

4.

Preliminary

5

5.

The Joint Committees and Joint Strategy Board

6

6.

Shared Workforce Structure

7

7.

Finance

8

8.

Termination and Review

9

9.

Head of Paid Service

10

10.

Head of Paid Service: Supplementary

11

11.

Dispute Resolution

11

12.

No Fetter of Discretion

12

13.

Liabilities

12

14.

Intellectual Property Rights

12

15.

Notices

13

16.

Rights and Duties Reserved

13

17.

Legal and other Fees

13

18.

Provision of Statistical Information Accounts and other Documents etc. 13

19.

Audit

13

20.

No partnership

14

21.

Anti-Corruption

14

22.

Discrimination

14

23.

Human Rights

15

24.

Freedom of Information

15

25.

Survival of this Agreement

15

26.

Whole Agreement

15

27.

Waiver

15

28.

Severance

15

29.

Headings

16

30.

Governing Law

16

31.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

16

32.

Non-assignment

16

33.

Disruption

16

34.

Health and Safety

16
1

Page 136

Memorandum of Agreement
Dated: XXXXXX
The Parties
(1)

East Lindsey District Council whose principal office is at Tedder Hall,
Manby Park, Louth, Lincolnshire LN11 8UP
and

(2)

Boston Borough Council whose principal office is at The Municipal Buildings,
West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire PE21 8QR.
and

(3)

South Holland District Council whose principal office is at Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding PE11 2XE

1.

Introduction

1.1 This Memorandum of Agreement between the Councils sets out:

2.

a)

The purpose and aims of the South East Lincolnshire Councils
Partnership.

b)

The purpose and aims of the shared workforce structure and agreed
areas of joint working; and

c)

The basis on which the Councils shall operate.

Background and Overview

2.1 Section 113 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that a local
authority may enter into an agreement with another local authority for the
placing at the disposal of the latter for the purposes of their functions, on such
terms as may be provided by the agreement, the services and officers
employed by the former. An officer placed by one local authority at the disposal
of another remains employed by the first local authority.
2.2 East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council entered into a
Strategic Alliance on 1st July 2020 and that alliance will be superseded by the
South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. Those councils placed certain
members of their staff at the disposal of the other pursuant to an agreement
under s113 of the Local Government Act 1972 dated 1 July 2021.
2.3 South Holland District Council was formerly part of a shared management
arrangement with Breckland District Council. Those arrangements came to an
end on 30 April 2021. Some services (Legal Services and Procurement,
2

Page 137

together with one Environmental Services Officer) continue to be provided by
Breckland District Council to South Holland District Council.
2.4 The Councils are desirous of securing further benefit to their communities by
establishing a three-council strategic alliance, and propose to share the costs
and subsequently benefit from the potential efficiency savings that may be
secured through such a strategic alliance.
2.5 East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council and South Holland
District Council respectively decided to prepare proposals for an integrated
Shared Management Team that is intended to facilitate the development of a
South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership and any additional posts agreed
by the Councils to be incorporated in the Shared Workforce Structure between
the three councils.
2.6 The Shared Management Team structure is set out at Schedule 4.
2.7 At their respective meetings on 28th July 2021, East Lindsey District Council
and 2nd August 2021, Boston Borough Council and 29th July 2021, South
Holland District Council resolved to enter into the South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership supported by the Shared Management Team but with
the potential for the Councils to agree to share additional posts. The
development of the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership is to be
overseen and implemented by the joint Head of Paid Service.
2.8 At its meeting on 28th July 2021 East Lindsey District Council agreed to
continue to place its Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service at the disposal
of South Holland District Council supported by similar approval by Boston
Borough Council at its meeting on 2 August 2021and at its meeting on 29th July
2021 South Holland District Council approved the continuation of the
designation of its Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service in a joint
arrangement with East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council.
2.9 At its meeting on 29th July 2021 South Holland District Council agreed to place
its Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer at the disposal of East Lindsey
District Council and Boston Borough Council and at their meetings on 28th July
2021 and 2nd August 2021 East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough
Council respectively designated the holders of those posts as their Monitoring
Officer and Section 151 Officer in a joint arrangement with South Holland
District Council.
2.10 More particularly, at its meeting on 1 July 2021, South Holland District Council
approved the designation of East Lindsey District Council’s Head of Paid
Service as South Holland District Council’s Head of Paid Service and Chief
Executive for an interim period being the period necessary to prepare and
submit to the Council a business case, draft Memorandum of Agreement and
proposed Senior Management Team structure .
2.11 The objects of the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership facilitated by a
3

Page 138

Commented [SM2]: Local Plan arrangements with
BBC to be added to recitals

Shared Workforce Structure are:
o To provide adequate capacity and resilience to the three Councils so that they
are individually and collectively better able to deliver on their priorities to local
people.
o Acting together to develop, promote jointly and secure investment in
strategic infrastructure that will benefit the three Council areas by
assisting economic growth and regeneration, including, but not limited
to roads, railways, flood defences and land drainage, educational,
health and well-being infrastructure and acknowledging that East
Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council have been
awarded funding under the Towns Fund for Boston, Mablethorpe and
Skegness.
o For each council individually to continue to exercise democratically
accountable local government in their respective areas and have their
own governance arrangements whilst sharing management of agreed
internal and external services.
o To provide opportunity and ease the transition to more joint
commissioning of services and sharing resources where a business case
supports such a decision.
o To provide more efficient and economical services to local people whilst
maintaining or improving the quality of the services that are provided to
them.
o To make financial savings to the combined staffing costs of the existing
management structures.
o To provide an operating platform which may have relevance for future
devolved powers and/or Local Government structures.
o To create greater opportunities for the partnership’s workforce to
develop their careers.
2.12 Although the Shared Workforce Structure may provide opportunities and ease
the transition to joint commissioning of services, this agreement does not commit
any council to the commissioning of joint services.
2.13 East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council acknowledge
and confirm that their agreement dated 1 July 2020 has been terminated
and superseded by this Agreement.
2.14 It is the intention of the Parties that a programme of service reviews will be
agreed with a view to the Councils considering additional service areas in
which the sharing of officers might be beneficial. In the absence of formal
sharing of officers in any given service area, it is the intention of the
Councils to offer each other mutual assistance and support informally and
4

Page 139

Commented [SM3]:
Some specific advice is needed on the implications (if
any) of the previous strategic alliance between ELDC
and BBC on the new strategic alliance (which includes
SHDC).
This will include advice as to whether SHDC should
have an indemnity against any liabilities that may arise
under the previous agreement.

on an ad-hoc basis by adopting a ‘one team’ ethos.

5

Page 140

NOW IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows
3.

Definitions

In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:
Term

Meaning

Chief Executive

the officer for the time being appointed as Chief
Executive of the Councils

Clause

a Clause in this Agreement

Commencement Date

XXXXXX

Council

East Lindsey District Council or Boston Borough
Council or South Holland District Council (as the
case may be)

Councils

Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District
Council and South Holland District Council

Cabinet

The Executive of East Lindsey District Council or the
Cabinet of Boston Borough Council or South Holland
District Council as the case may be, appointed in
accordance with Part II of the Local Government Act
2000

Executive Arrangements Construed in accordance with Part II of the Local
Government Act 2000
Expenses

Shall be interpreted in accordance with Clause 7

Head of Paid Service

The officer for the time being appointed under Section 4
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
(currently the Chief Executive)

Intellectual Property
Rights

All patents, rights to inventions, copyright and related
rights, trademarks and service marks, business names
and domain names, rights in get-up, goodwill, rights in
designs, rights in computer software, database rights,
rights to use, and protect the confidentiality of,
confidential information (including know-how) and all
other intellectual property rights, in each case whether
registered or unregistered and including all applications
and rights to apply for and be granted, renewals or
extensions of, and rights to claim priority from, such
6

Page 141

rights and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of
protection which subsist or will subsist now or in the
future in any part of the world.
Leader of the Council

Leader of East Lindsey District Council or Leader of Boston
Borough Council or Leader of South Holland District
Council for the time being as the case may be.

The Joint Committees

the Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel,
the Joint Appointments Appeals Committee

The Joint Appointment
Appeals Committee

the Joint Appointment Appeals Committee
established by the resolutions of the Councils at their
respective meetings on XXXXX, XXXXX and XXXXX
and the terms of reference set out at Schedule 2

The Joint Chief Officer
Employment Panel

The Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel
established by the resolutions of the Councils at their
respective meetings on XXXX, XXXXX and XXXX and
with the terms of reference set out at Schedule 1

The Joint Strategy Board The advisory body established with the terms of
reference set out at Schedule 3
Legal Adviser

The person for the time being appointed by East Lindsey
District Council or Boston Borough Council or South
Holland District Council to provide legal advice to the
Council or Councils and may be an officer of the Council
or Councils or an external person who is legally qualified

Monitoring Officer

The officer for the time being appointed under Section 5
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Shared Workforce
Structure

The Shared Management Team together with such
other officers as the Councils may agree in writing
from time to time all of whom shall be appointed by
one Council and placed at the disposal of the other
Councils.

Shared Management
Team

The top three tiers of the Partnership’s Management
Structure more particularly detailed in Schedule 4 to
this Agreement

Section 151 Officer

The officer for the time being appointed under Section
151 of the Local Government Act 1972

South East Lincolnshire
Councils Partnership

A strategic alliance established under the terms of
this Memorandum of Agreement comprising Boston
7

Page 142

Borough Council, East Lindsey District Council and South
Holland District Council
4.

Preliminary

4.1 This Agreement is made pursuant to
(a) Sections 101 and 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 (delegation to
joint committees);
(b) Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972 (duty to appoint officers);
(c) Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 (power to place staff at the
disposal of other local authorities);
(d) Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 (local authorities’ general power of
competence);
(e) Sections 14 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000 and The Local
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England)
Regulations 2000/2851 (joint arrangements for the exercise of executive
functions)
(f)

Sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000.

and all other enabling powers.
4.2 This Agreement has been entered into by the Councils by virtue of the resolutions
of the Councils at their respective meetings on 28th July 2021 East Lindsey
District Council and 2nd August 2021Boston Borough Council and 29th July 2021
South Holland District Council
4.3 This Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and subject to
Clause 8 (Termination and Review) shall continue in full force and effect
unless and until the Councils agree to terminate it.
4.4 The Councils shall at all times co-operate with each other and shall observe the
following key principles:
trust, transparency, integrity, and respect
effective working relationships
co-operation, collaboration, and information-sharing whilst respecting the
confidentiality of the other Council
accountability to their council taxpayers and each other
openness to change, including the addition of further partners
to recognise the values and behaviours of each partner’s culture.
systematic and outcome focused in their approach to working together
sensitivity to the fact each council operates in a political environment
8

Page 143

4.5 The Councils shall each use their best endeavours to ensure that their
contractors and other partners operate and provide their services and servicerelated information and data to the relevant Council in such a manner as to
support the aims of this Agreement generally and in a manner which observes
and supports the obligations set out in sub-clause 4.4 above
5.

The Joint Committees and Joint Strategy Board

5.1 The Councils have established the Joint Committees/Panels:
Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel
Joint Appointments Appeals Committee
5.2 The Joint Committees/Panels shall have the terms of reference set out in
Schedules one to three of this Agreement or such other amended terms of
reference as they may recommend to the Councils and as the Councils shall
approve.
5.3 The Councils have established a Joint Strategy Board which shall not be a formal
shared committee within the meaning of the Local Government Acts unless and
until resolved otherwise. It shall meet, operate, and be serviced in accordance
with its terms of reference at Schedule 3. In practical terms this means that in the
first instance the Board will be advisory in nature and that any decisions affecting
any of the councils will be made by their respective Executives or Full Council,
as appropriate.
5.4 The Joint Chief Officers Employment Panel and the Joint Appointment Appeals
Committee shall be joint committees within the meaning of section 101 (5) of the
Local Government Act 1972 and shall be politically balanced for each Council in
accordance with Part I of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989.
5.5 The Joint Chief Officers Employment Panel and the Joint Appointment Appeals
Committee shall be serviced by staff from the Councils unless otherwise agreed
in writing between the Councils and where there is any conflict with the terms
of this Agreement then this Agreement shall prevail.
5.6 Notwithstanding Clause 7 (Finance) below each Council shall meet any cost
that they incur arising from meetings of the Joint Committees and/or the Joint
Strategy Board.
5.7 The Joint Committees shall take into account advice from officers of the
Councils.
5.8 The Joint Chief Officers Employment Panel and the Joint Appointment
Appeals Committee shall meet as and when necessary having regard to
their terms of reference.
5.9 Where decisions are taken by the Joint Committees, the following principles and
9

Page 144

Commented [SM4]:
In addition to the Joint Strategy Board, a ‘Stakeholder
Group’ to be added. The role of the Stakeholder Group
will be to have a strategic view and monitoring role. It is
referenced in the Business Plan. It doesn’t necessarily
need to be captured in the MoA but may be useful to
include.

conditions shall apply:
(a) the Joint Committees shall have proper regard to any relevant resolution of
one Council provided that such resolution is not to the detriment of the other
Council;
(b) the Joint Committees shall satisfy themselves that any inter Council
consultation has been carried out;
(c) the taking of decisions shall be subject to there being appropriate and
adequate budgetary provision by the Councils;
(d) any decision which could have legal implications shall be taken in
consultation with the Monitoring Officer and Legal Adviser;
(e) any decision which could have financial implications shall be taken in
consultation with the Section 151 Officer;
5.10 The Joint Committees shall not be bodies corporate nor shall they have the
functions of acquiring or holding assets employing staff or entering into
contracts.
5.11 The Councils will observe the key principles of joint working when
participating in decisions of the Joint Committees through mutual
cooperation in order to support the development of the partnership.
6.

The Shared Workforce Structure

6.1 The Councils agreed at their respective meetings on XXXXXX to enter into the
South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership supported by the Shared
Management Team together with such other officers as the Councils may agree
in writing from time to time will form part of the Shared Workforce Structure.
6.2 The development of the South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership and the
Shared Workforce Structure is to be overseen and implemented by the Joint
Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service.
6.3 The expectation is that the balance of staff employed by each Council within the
Shared Workforce will remain proportionate and reflect that at the creation of the
partnership and that where an officer leaves a post that is part of the Shared
Workforce Structure, the Council that was his or her employer shall employ that
officer’s replacement.
6.4 Staff within the Shared Workforce Structure may be employed by any one of
the Councils and having been so employed shall forthwith be placed at the
disposal of the Councils who are not their employer
6.5 For superannuation purposes, service rendered by an officer of one of the
Councils whose services are placed at the disposal of the other in pursuance of
section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 and hence in pursuance of this
10

Page 145

Commented [SM5]: Some specific advice is needed on
the implications (if any) of the previous strategic alliance
between ELDC and BBC on the new strategic alliance
In particular, ELDC and BBC already have a shared
workforce in some areas. This will likely need capturing
in this Agreement.

Agreement is service rendered to the Council by whom he/she is employed
6.6 Any officer falling within the definition at 6.4 above shall be treated for the
purposes of any enactment relating to the discharge of functions of a local
authority as an officer of the other Councils and members of the Shared
Workforce Structure may act and shall have powers to act under the
constitutions of the Councils.
6.7 The members of the Shared Workforce Structure shall divide their time fairly
and reasonably between the Councils and shall not show bias towards one
Council vis-à-vis the other. This is important in order to ensure the precepts
on each Council’s taxpayers do not cause gain or loss for the other Councils’
taxpayers.
6.8 The Chief Executive shall be the shared Head of Paid Service in respect of the
workforce of the Councils. The Chief Executive shall lead the Shared
Management Team. Attendance at and frequency of meetings, terms of
reference and other matters relating to the Shared Management Team shall be
at the discretion of the Chief Executive.
6.9 The Councils shall agree in writing financial arrangements as to the allocation of
pension contributions including those relating to payments due in respect of the
pension deficits of the Councils upon the transfer appointment to or employment
of staff within the Shared Workforce Structure
7.
7.1

Finance

Commented [SM6]:
Two key points on Finance:

The costs arising from the creation of the Shared Workforce Structure
shall be apportioned as follows:
7.1.1 East Lindsey District Council shall meet 46% per cent and Boston Borough
Council 23% per cent and South Holland District Council 31% percent of
any redundancy and associated pension strain costs and subsequent
redundancy, Employment Tribunal or other dismissal claim costs arising
from the creation or ongoing operation of the Shared Workforce Team after
the commencement of this Agreement;
7.1.2 East Lindsey District Council shall meet 46% per cent and Boston
Borough Council 23% per cent and South Holland District Council 31%
percent of the ongoing salary and on-costs superannuation national
insurance training travel and incidental costs of the Shared Workforce
Structure;
7.1.3 any proposal to apportion new on-going costs other than in the proportions
that East Lindsey District Council shall meet 46% per cent and Boston
Borough Council 23% per cent and South Holland District Council shall
meet 31% percent of the same shall only be made following a resolution
of each Council’s Cabinet/Executive on the recommendation of the S151
Officer and in the case of an apportionment that is a departure from the
budget framework of each Council by its full Council.

11

Page 146

1.The basis of sharing savings will be referenced
here – we are seeking external legal advice at this
stage
2.Changes will be made to the drafting to reflect the
fact that the percentage split of costs (which is based
on population figures) will be revised when new ONS
data is released.

7.2
8.

Costs incurred upon termination shall be apportioned in accordance with
clause 8 below.
Termination and Review

8.1 This Agreement shall continue unless terminated in accordance with this Clause
8 PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT the provisions of this Clause 8 shall be subject to
any other provision of this Agreement extending financial liability beyond
termination.
8.2 Where one of the Councils proposes to withdraw from the Agreement for
whatever reason (including any allegation of fundamental breach) that Council
shall prepare a report to the Joint Strategy Board, setting out its reasons. If the
Joint Strategy Board acting reasonably cannot remedy the problem (and such
remedy shall include invoking Clause 11 Dispute Resolution unless both
Councils agree otherwise in writing) within a reasonable time and to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Councils then the Council proposing to withdraw
shall be at liberty to withdraw from this Agreement and to bring the
arrangements for a Shared Workforce Structure to an end.
8.3 Where all the Councils jointly agree to terminate or withdraw from this
Agreement they shall do so by each giving the other not less than 12 months’
prior written notice and such a decision to terminate or withdraw may only be
made by all the Councils acting by their full Council. If any of the Councils
unilaterally terminates or withdraws from this Agreement they shall do so by
giving to the other Councils not less than twelve months’ prior written notice
and such a decision to terminate or withdraw may only be made by that Council
acting by its full Council.
8.4 In the event of a termination for any reason the Councils shall:
(a) co-operate in terminating modifying restructuring assigning or novating
contractual arrangements entered into to mutual advantage and properly
and timeously execute any documents necessary;
(b) use best endeavours to secure an amicable and equitable financial
settlement;
(c) as soon as possible and in any event within three months transfer or
return any property including data belonging to the other Councils;
(d) to the extent that any of the Councils has a materially disproportionate
number of shared officers compared to the proportions at Commencement
Date, ensure that each Council is allocated a fair and reasonable
proportion of the members of the Shared Workforce Team subject to any
necessary actions being taken as required by employment law or by the
policies of the transferring council so that (1) each Council can maintain
continuity in the provision of its services at a reasonable level of
effectiveness and efficiency and (2) they become employed by the Council
to which they are transferred.
12

Page 147

Commented [SM7]: Some specific advice is needed on
drafting (i) to ensure that arbitration is not required if
there is a no-fault decision by one council to withdraw;
and (ii) to enable two councils to continue under the
Agreement if the third chooses to withdraw.

8.5 In the event of any dispute which cannot be resolved in respect of any matter
referred to under Clause 8.4, Clause 11 shall apply.
8.6 In the event of a termination however and whenever occurring the costs
consequential upon such termination including costs of recruitment selection
administration but not salary costs, after the date of termination shall subject
always to clause 7.1.3 be apportioned between the Councils and each
Council shall indemnify and keep indemnified the other Councils in respect of
that Council’s share from and against any actions and causes of action,
claims, demands, proceedings, damages, losses, costs, charges and
expenses whatsoever arising from or in connection with such termination or
withdrawal and such indemnity shall continue after the termination of this
Agreement.
8.7 The Councils will through a scrutiny process undertake an annual review of
the Partnership to understand its effectiveness and opportunities for further
development and will include a review of the Key Principles in 4.4.
8.8 No deletion, addition, or modification to this Agreement shall be valid
unless agreed in writing and sealed by the Councils.
9.

Head of Paid Service: Application of section 4 of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989

9.1 The Chief Executive has been appointed Head of Paid Service by the Councils.
9.2 The Councils shall provide that officer with such staff accommodation and other
resources as are in his/her opinion sufficient to allow his/her duties to be
performed.
9.3 It shall be the duty of the Head of Paid Service where he/she considers it
appropriate to do so in respect of any proposals of his/hers with respect to any
of the matters specified below to prepare a report to either one or each of the
Councils setting out his/her proposals. The matters are:
9.3.1 the manner in which the discharge by the Councils of their different
functions is coordinated;
9.3.2 the number and grades of staff required by the Councils for the discharge
of their functions;
9.3.3 the organisation of the staff of the Councils; and
9.3.4 the appointment and proper management of the staff of the Councils.
9.4 It shall be the duty of the Head of Paid Service, as soon as practicable after
he/she has prepared such a report, to arrange for a copy of it to be sent to
each member of the three Councils as the case may be.
13

Page 148

9.5 It shall be the duty of each of the Councils separately to consider any such
report by the Head of Paid Service at a meeting held not more than three
months after copies of the report are first sent to councillors at each Council.
10. Head of Paid Service: Supplementary
10.1 Without prejudice to Clause 9 above it shall be the duty of the Head of Paid
Service to ensure that all Councillors have such access to and support from
all officers of their Council and in particular to the Head of Paid Service and
Shared Workforce Team as they may reasonably expect.
10.2 Without prejudice to Clause 9 above the duties of the Head of Paid Service
shall include advising the Joint Committees and advising the Cabinet of each
Council in respect of executive functions within the meaning of the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) Regulations 2000 (as amended)
and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions)
(England) Regulations 2012 or the full Council or relevant committee of each
Council in respect of non-executive functions within the meaning of the said
regulations and the duty of the Head of Paid Service to advise the Councils
shall include but not be limited to providing advice on:
(a) The structure of the Shared Workforce Structure of the Councils;
(b) The host employer for each post; and
(c) Performance management of the Shared Workforce Structure.
11. Dispute Resolution
11.1 In the event of a dispute concerning the construction or effect of this Agreement
it should first be discussed for resolution by the Joint Strategy Board. The Joint
Strategy Board shall take all reasonable steps to conciliate and resolve such
dispute or difference whether by negotiation, mediation or any other form of
dispute resolution procedures (with a view to resolution by discussion and
negotiation).
11.2 In the event that a matter in dispute cannot be resolved under Clause 11.1
above the matter shall (unless the Councils agree otherwise in writing) be
referred to an arbitrator under Clause 11.3 below.
11.3 The arbitrator shall be appointed with the agreement of the Councils or in the
event that agreement cannot be reached, by the President or other chief
officer of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators or such other professional body
appropriate to the matter in dispute (such body to be determined by the Chief
Executive). The costs of arbitration shall be borne by the Councils in the
following proportions: East Lindsey District Council shall meet 46% per cent
and Boston Borough Council 23% per cent and South Holland District Council
31%.
11.4 The resolution of unresolved disputes in respect of the expenses of any Joint
14

Page 149

Committee to which section 103(b) the Local Government Act 1972 applies
shall be determined in accordance with that section by a single arbitrator agreed
on by the Councils or in default of agreement appointed by the Chief Executive
of the Local Government Association.
11.5 For the avoidance of doubt this Clause shall remain in effect after the
termination or expiry of this Agreement to confer powers on the Councils to
resolve matters remaining in dispute.
12. No Fetter of Discretion
12.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall fetter the discretion of the Councils.
13. Liabilities
13.1 The Councils shall be jointly and severally liable to any third parties in respect of
all actions and causes of action claims demands proceedings damages losses
costs charges and expenses directly arising from this Agreement. Each council
shall indemnify and keep indemnified the other Council from and against the
extent of the indemnifying Council’s liability for any actions and causes of action
claims demands proceedings damages losses costs charges and expenses
directly arising from or in connection with this Agreement and such liability and
indemnity shall continue after the termination of this Agreement.
13.2 Each Council shall ensure that it has all appropriate insurances relating to
public liability, employee liability, professional indemnity and Member
indemnity to cover any liabilities arising under this Agreement.
14. Intellectual Property Rights
14.1 Each Council shall retain the ownership of all Intellectual Property Rights it
owns as at XXXXXX in any materials which it has created or the creation of
which was undertaken by a third party which it commissioned to create those
materials.
14.2 Any new material created jointly by the Councils in the course of provision of the
Shared Workforce Team shall belong to the Councils jointly unless otherwise
agreed in writing.
14.3 Each Council hereby grants a license to the other to use its Intellectual Property
Rights incorporated in or appearing from the materials referred to in clauses
14.1 and 14.2 for the purposes of the performance of this Agreement and the
delivery of all services by the Councils.

15

Page 150

15. Notice
15.1 Any notice to be served under this Agreement shall be valid and effective if it is
addressed to the Chief Executive and delivered by email, prepaid recorded
delivery post, or delivered by hand to the other Councils’ principal office.
16. Rights and Duties Reserved
16.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or fetter the proper exercise of any
function by the Councils or their officers.
17. Legal and other Fees
17.1 Each Council shall bear its own legal and other fees in relation to the
preparation and completion of this Agreement.
18. Provision of Statistical Information Accounts and other Documents etc.
18.1 Each Council shall make available to the other such statistical information which
each Council may from time to time reasonably require.
18.2 Without prejudice to any provision in this Agreement requiring the keeping of
records the supply of statistics or the provision of information the Councils shall
keep such other records and details of or concerning the Shared Workforce
Team or their performance as the Councils may require and shall produce or
provide to the other copies whether kept electronically or in paper format of
such accounts invoices orders contracts receipts statistics and other information
or documents touching or concerning or arising from this Agreement or their
performance of this Agreement as and when and in such form as each Council
may reasonably require.
18.3 Without prejudice to any provision in this Agreement the Councils shall keep
and maintain all necessary information and shall provide all necessary
assistance to enable each Council to complete all necessary official returns or
statistics related to this Agreement.
18.4 The Councils shall supply each other with such assistance and information as
each Council may require to enable it to allocate such expenditure as each
Council may incur under this Agreement.

16

Page 151

19. Audit
19.1 Each Council’s external and internal auditors shall have the like powers set out
in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and any subsequent amending
repealing and superseding legislation. Each Council shall at all reasonable
times (including following the termination for whatever reason of this
Agreement) allow or procure for any auditor for the purposes of an external or
internal audit immediate access to and permission to copy and remove any
copies of and permission to remove the originals of any books records and
information in the possession or control of the Councils which in any way
relates to or are or were used in connection with this Agreement including (but
without limitation) any of each Council’s data and any such information stored
on a computer system operated by a contractor servant or agent of the other
Council.
19.2 Each Council will provide all practicable co-operation and afford all appropriate
access to personnel and records in order to assist the requesting Council in
carrying out any investigations which are already under way at the
Commencement Date and any investigations which are carried out after the
termination or expiry of this Agreement but which relate to any period during
which the Shared Workforce Structure was in effect.
20. No Partnership
20.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as establishing or implying any
legal partnership or joint venture between the Councils although the parties
may decide to form partnerships and joint ventures as they develop closer
collaborative working arrangements. Any such partnership or joint venture
shall only be effective if approved by the Council meeting of each authority
and set out in a deed sealed by each authority.
21. Anti-Corruption
21.1 Any of the Councils may cancel this Agreement at any time and recover
from such other Council(s) as may be at fault the amount of any loss
resulting from such cancellation if any of the following apply:
(a) One or both of the other Councils has offered or given or agreed to give to
any person any gift or consideration as an inducement or reward (1) for
doing or forbearing to do or for having done or forborne to do any action in
relation to the obtaining or execution of the Agreement or any other
contract with the Council (2) for showing or forbearing to show favour or
disfavour to any person in relation to the Agreement or any other contract
with the Council;
(b) any person employed by or acting on behalf of one of the other Councils
(whether with or without the other Councils’ knowledge or consent) acts
in similar manner to that set out in sub Clause (a) above;
17

Page 152

(c) in relation to any contract or potential contract with the Council one or both
of the other Councils or any person employed by or acting on behalf of one
or both of the other Councils shall have committed any offence under the
Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889 to 1916 or any amendment or
replacement of them or shall have given any fee or reward the receipt of
which is an offence under Sub Section (2) of Section 117 of the Local
Government Act 1972.
22. Discrimination
22.1 The Councils shall not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning and scope of
the provisions of the Equality Act 2010 and any other legislation prohibiting
discrimination on any grounds whatsoever. The Councils shall take all
reasonable steps to secure the observance of these provisions and any
statutory provisions amending or replacing the same by its employees in the
performance of the Agreement.
23. Human Rights
23.1 The Councils in the performance of this Agreement shall comply with the
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 in all respects as if the Joint
Committees were public bodies within the meaning of the Act. The Councils
shall indemnify and keep indemnified one another against all actions and
causes of action claims, demands, proceedings, damages, losses, costs,
charges, and expenses whatsoever in respect of any breach of this Clause and
such indemnity shall continue after the termination of this Agreement.
24. Freedom of Information
24.1 It is agreed that the Councils are subject to the provisions of the Freedom of
Information Act 2000. Any release of or exemption applicable to this
Agreement shall be considered under that Act.
25. Survival of this Agreement
25.1 In so far as any of the rights and powers of the Councils provided for in this
Agreement shall or may be exercised or exercisable after the termination or
expiry of this Agreement the provisions of this Agreement conferring such rights
and powers shall survive and remain in full force and effect notwithstanding
such termination or expiry.
25.2 In so far as any of the obligations of the Councils provided for in this Agreement
remain to be discharged after the termination or expiry of this Agreement the
provisions of this Agreement imposing such obligations shall survive and remain
in full force and effect notwithstanding such termination or expiry.
26. Whole Agreement
26.1 This Agreement constitutes the whole agreement and understanding of the
Councils as to its subject matter.
18

Page 153

26.2 This agreement expressly acknowledges any prior agreements each
Council has with any one or more other Council in respect of any matters
that shall continue under those prior agreements. This agreement is not
intended to supersede those prior agreements or amend or replace any
matters existing or agreed within them.
27. Waiver
27.1 Failure by any of the Councils at any time to enforce any provision of this
Agreement or to require performance by the other or others of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any such
provisions and shall not affect the validity of this Agreement or any part or the
right of that party to enforce any terms and provision of this Agreement.
28. Severance
28.1 If any term or provision of this Agreement shall in whole or in part become or
shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unenforceable in any way such invalidity or unenforceability shall in no way
impair or affect any other term or provision all of which shall remain in full
force and effect.
29. Headings
29.1 Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall
not affect the validity or construction of this Agreement.
30. Governing Law
30.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with
English law and the Councils submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English
courts.
31. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999
31.1 The Councils do not intend that any term of this Agreement should be
enforceable by any third party as provided by the Contracts (Rights of Third
Parties) Act 1999.
32. Non-assignment
32.1 None of the Councils shall be entitled to assign this Agreement or any of its
rights and obligations under it without the written consent of the others
(which consent the other Councils may in their absolute discretion withhold).
33. Disruption
33.1 The Councils shall take reasonable care to ensure that in the execution of this
Agreement it does not disrupt the operations of the other Councils, their
19

Page 154

employees or any other third party.
34. Health and Safety
34.1 Each Council shall promptly notify the others of any health and safety hazards
which may arise in connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall
promptly notify each of the others of any health and safety hazards which may
exist or arise at a Council’s premises and which may affect the performance of
this Agreement.
34.2 While on Councils premises, the Shared Workforce Team shall comply with
any health and safety measures implemented by the Council in respect of
employees and other persons working on those premises.
34.3 Each Council shall notify the others immediately in the event of any incident
occurring in the performance of this Agreement on the Council’s premises
where that incident causes any personal injury or damage to property which
could give rise to personal injury.
34.4 The Councils shall comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at
Work etc. Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations, and codes of
practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to employees and other
persons working on Council premises in the performance of this Agreement.
34.5 The Councils shall ensure that their health and safety policy statements (as
required by the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974) are made available
to each other on request.

20

Page 155

IN WITNESS of which this Agreement has been executed as a Deed on the first
day before written

The Common Seal of East
Lindsey District Council was
fixed here in the presence of:

Authorised Officer

The Common Seal of Boston
Borough Council was fixed here
in the presence of:

Authorised Officer

The Common Seal of South Holland
District Council was fixed here
in the presence of:

Authorised Officer

21

Page 156

SCHEDULE 1
Quorum

JOINT CHIEF OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PANEL

6

Composition

Note:

3 members appointed by East Lindsey District Council and
3 members appointed by Boston Borough Council and
3 members appointed by South Holland District Council;
Appointments shall be made in accordance with the Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1989;
At least one member of the Committee shall be a member of
East Lindsey District Council’s Executive Board and at least one
member shall be a member of Boston Borough Council’s
Cabinet and at least one member shall be a member of South
Holland District Council’s Cabinet.
A quorum of 6 must comprise two members (including at least one
Cabinet member) from each Council
No member of this Joint Committee shall be appointed to the
Joint Appointment Appeals Committee

Substitutions:

The Councils shall appoint named members who may act as
substitutes

Terms of Reference:
After the appointment of the Joint Chief Executive, and with the exception of the
Statutory Officer appointments, which are a matter reserved for Council, the Chief
Executive will have delegation to make the first appointments to the shared
management structure.
The Committee’s terms of reference will be as follows:
(a)

The making of recommendations to the full Councils on the appointment and
dismissal of the Head of the Paid Service/Chief Executive, or the taking of
disciplinary action against him/her;

(b)

The appointment of any Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer and the dismissal of,
or the taking of any disciplinary action against any Chief Officer or Deputy Chief
Officer except the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer;

(c)

The making of recommendations to the full Councils on the appointment and
dismissal of the Monitoring Officer or Section 151 Officer, or on the taking of
disciplinary action against him/her;

Page 157

Commented [SM8]: External advice to be obtained on
terms of reference/policies/procedures (and
constitutional provisions) in respect of the mechanics
and operation of joint committees when dealing with
shared officers in a three-council partnership and
whether any additional powers are needed (e.g. of
suspension).

Note: In the exercise of these functions the Committee must act in accordance with the
Local Authority (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 including:
No disciplinary action (other than to suspend) may be taken against the Head of the Paid
Service/Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Section 151 Officer other than in
accordance with recommendations given by a designated independent person (agreed
between the authorities and the officer or alternatively nominated by the Secretary of
State) in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 3 of the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders)(England) Regulations 2015, the requirements of the Standing Orders
of each Council in respect of the appointment and removal of senior officers, and the JNC
Conditions of Service.
No offer of appointment nor notice of dismissal may be issued until notice of the
proposed appointment or dismissal (as the case may be) has been given by the proper
officer to each Council’s executive members and no well-founded objections have been
submitted within the period allowed for response.
Place of Meeting:
Meetings of the Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel may be held wherever it is
considered to be most appropriate depending on the agenda for the particular meeting.
The Chairman of the Joint Committee may give directions.
Training:
Members of the Joint Committee shall undertake appropriate training in selection and
interviewing skills and the taking of disciplinary action.
Chairing Joint Chief Officers Employment Panel:
Chairmanship of the Joint Committee alternates between the three Councils for
each meeting
Servicing the Joint Committee:
The Joint Committee may be serviced by staff from any of the Councils
Legislation:
This Joint Committee has been established in accordance with Section 102 of the
Local Government Act 1972 (appointment of Committees)
NOTE: In exercising these functions the Joint Committee must have regard to the Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 as amended by the Local
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2015

Page 158

SCHEDULE 2
JOINT APPOINTMENT APPEALS COMMITTEE
Quorum

6

Composition

Note:

3 members appointed by East Lindsey District Council and
3 members appointed by Boston Borough Council and 3
members from South Holland District Council;
Appointments shall be made in accordance with the Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1989;
At least one member of the Committee shall be a member of
East Lindsey District Council’s Executive Board, at least one
member shall be a member of Boston Borough Council’s
Cabinet and at least one member shall be a member of South
Holland District Council’s Cabinet.
No member shall be appointed to the Joint Appointment Appeals
Committee who is a member of the Joint Chief Officer Employment
Panel.
A quorum of 6 must comprise two members (including at least one
Cabinet member) from each of the Councils.

Substitutions:

The Councils shall appoint named members who may act as
substitutes.

Terms of Reference:
(a)

Determining appeals from relevant persons in respect of decisions of the Joint
Chief Officer Employment Panel relating to the appointment of Deputy Chief
Executives.

Note: In the exercise of these functions the Committee must act in accordance with
the Local Authority (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 as amended by
the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2015.
Place of Meeting:
Meetings of the Joint Appointment Appeals Committee may be held wherever it is
considered to be most appropriate depending on the agenda for the particular meeting.
The Chairman of the Joint Committee may give directions.
Training:
Members of the Joint Committee shall undertake appropriate training in disciplinary
action.

Page 159

Chairing Joint Appointment Appeals Committees:
Chairmanship of the Joint Committee alternates between the three Councils at
each meeting
Servicing the Joint Committee:
The Joint Committee may be serviced by staff from any of the Councils
Legislation:
This Joint Committee has been established in accordance with Section 102 of the
Local Government Act 1972 (appointment of Committees)
Note:

In exercising these functions the Joint Committee must have regard
to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001

Page 160

.
SCHEDULE 3
East Lindsey District Council and Boston
Borough Council and South Holland District
Council Joint Strategy Board

Terms of Reference
Background
East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council and South Holland District
Council entered into a shared workforce arrangement from XXXXX. The Agreement
remains in force until terminated by any of the three Councils. To support the shared
workforce structure and joint working of the councils, it has been agreed that meetings
of the Joint Strategy Board will be held to consider matters of interest, opportunities for
joint working and any potential further joint working of the two councils.
Role and function
The Shared Strategy Board is an informal non-decision-making group.
The Shared Strategy Board will have the following roles and functions:
1. Monitoring the shared workforce arrangements
2. Considering proposals to withdraw from the arrangements (clause 8) and disputes
(clause 11) referred to by any of the Councils
3. To identify, develop and oversee the implementation of, opportunities for the joint
and mutually advantageous promotion of, and investment in, each of the
authorities’ areas by central and local government, other bodies and agencies
(including, but not limited to the Environment Agency, the Lincolnshire Enterprise
Partnership, Historic England, Highways England, The Arts Council, Sports
England and Homes England), Lincolnshire County Council)
4. To consider and develop (if so minded) proposals for the expansion of the South
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership insofar as that would be consistent with
the purposes of this Agreement
5. To identify those issues which arise and are likely to affect the future prosperity
and democratic arrangements in both areas and project a joint voice in respect of
such matters with the object of ensuring any change benefits to the greatest
extent the Councils and their inhabitants
6. Advising on proposals brought forward on shared workforce arrangements
and other joint working between the councils
7. To explore areas of Corporate Planning that are of mutual interest
8. To consider areas of innovation and budget efficiencies across both Councils
9. To submit proposals arising from 2 to 7 above through formal decisionmaking process at each council.

Page 161

Membership/Attendance
The Joint Strategy Board will comprise:
o
o

All Cabinet members of each Council
The Chief Executive

No substitutions to be allowed
Other officers and/or members may be invited to attend meetings of the Joint Strategy
Board by the Chief Executive or by the Leaders of the three Councils (who must
agree any such an invitation in advance of the meeting)
Meetings
The Joint Strategy Board will meet on at least two occasions in each year normally in
March, and September.
The meetings will be chaired alternately by the Leader of each Council.
Administration for the meeting will be undertaken by the Democratic Services Team at
each Council
Minutes of each meeting will be prepared by the Chief Executive within fourteen days
of the meeting and will be circulated to all members of the Joint Strategy Board.
Action points will be prepared by the Chief Executive and will be circulated to all
shared managers.
Shared staff shall undertake all actions allocated to them or shall allocate and
disseminate those actions to staff for whom they are responsible. Shared staff shall
report back to the Joint Strategy Board as required by the Board.

Page 162

Schedule 4
Proposed Shared Management Team Structure

It is the intention of the Councils that each Council has a Deputy Chief Executive lead
following appointment to posts being confirmed

Page 163

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL OF THE STRATEGIC
PARTNERSHIP
Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the proposal for SHDC to
become part of the Partnership
Councillors ELDC: F. Martin (Chairman), E. Mossop, H. Matthews, S. Devereux, D.
Mangion
Councillors BBC: S. Woodliffe, J. Welbourn, J. Skinner, A. Dani, K. Chalmers, P.
Goodale (Vice-Chairman), T. Ashton
Officers: James Gilbert (Interim Deputy Chief Executive (People)), Rebecca James
(Scrutiny Officer)
Witnesses: Councillor Craig Leyland (Leader, ELDC), Councillor Paul Skinner (Leader,
BBC), Councillor Graham Marsh (Deputy Leader, ELDC), Rob Barlow (Joint Chief
Executive), Nathan Elvery (Strategic Advisor to BBC, ELDC and SHDC)
Introduction
When the Strategic Alliance was first established in July 2020 it was recognised that
there might be an opportunity for a third partner to join. South Holland District
Council has approached the Councils to indicate their interest at joining the alliance.
The initial proposal was agreed in principle by all 3 Councils; further decisions are
required in July/August, and October. This joint scrutiny panel was tasked by BBC
and ELDC to review the report and associated documentation in advance of the next
Council decisions.
In advance of the meeting Members received the draft Council report, the draft
Business Case, and draft Memorandum of Agreement.
Panel Discussion / Analysis
Following the Joint Chief Executive’s presentation of the draft Business Case the
following comments were made by councillors:




That the workforce development strategy needs to manage the cultural
differences and priorities of each council, and bring together teams the way it
has done for the existing alliance;
There is a need to grasp this opportunity and preserve the democratic
accountability of the three areas;

Page 165

1

Appendix C









There are three effective councils that can work together whilst keeping their
local connection and local identities. There is a need to be innovative and
show leadership;
Calling the partnership the ‘East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership’ was
considered to better reflect the geographical location of all three areas;
There is a need to align email addresses to ensure residents are clear on
where council staff are contacting them from;
Councillors were keen to ensure that officer time will be fairly split to ensure
action where and when it is needed;
The scrutiny of the current strategic alliance has not yet taken place and
councillors are keen to ensure that recommendations from that panel can
feed into the new partnership;
Recommendations from Boston Borough Council’s scrutiny were considered,
including the issues of identity, funding, housing, and engagement.

Following a number of questions from councillors, the following information was
provided:













MOA states that staff are employed by their own council and the sharing of
the Management Team is through Section 113 of the Local Government Act;
‘Partnership’ is a description of how we will work and not a legal entity;
Regarding devolution, the government want to hear about successful options
for different ways of working together, we have worked well as an alliance,
and need to progress this and showcase the possibilities of a 3-way
partnership in terms of key issues such as flooding, tourism, coast. That way
we can be taken much more seriously;
The partnership will protect our democratic accountability, enable us to stay
close to our communities but make our voice heard by government so we
can deliver for all our districts;
We have common issues to all 3 councils: deprivation; rural isolation; low
wages; poor transport. The current alliance brought capacity and skills and a
new ‘one team’ partnership will allow us to demonstrate how staff and
councillors can work together for residents from all areas;
Consultation on the Management Structure will be 30 days so there will be
no need for an interim structure;
This partnership is about grasping the opportunity to do what we want to do,
rather than others deciding the direction. We are future proofing our
existence so we can work meaningfully at a local level;
South Holland were actively looking for a partnership within Lincolnshire,
they saw the way we have been working as an alliance and were keen to take
advantage of people with current experience of successful partnership
working. We already have a relationship with them through PSPS Ltd. Which
has worked well;

Page 166

2

Appendix C




The partnership makes sense geographically and economically;
Regarding the senior staff structure, the reduction has been planned carefully
and will be reviewed in 12 months’ time to ensure it is working as planned;
It was noted that the new partnership would not ‘solve’ deprivation issues,
but it does put all 3 councils in a better position to help tackle issues through
health, education, and skills partnerships. Dealing with covid has highlighted
vulnerable residents and areas, this knowledge can help us find a better way
forward.

Recommendations
1. To consider dropping the ‘South’ from the name of the Partnership, so it
becomes the ‘East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership’;
2. To ensure that the strategic direction of the new partnership focuses on key
areas such as education, skills, deprivation, and environmental ambition;
3. To use the ‘bigger voice’ that the three councils will have to ensure
opportunities are created for more partnership working, greater funding, and
increased influence;
4. To create a new way of working, ensuring that the work the councils do is
meaningful;
5. To take full advantage of the levelling-up agenda to make sure no area is left
behind;
6. To ensure service areas have some ‘good to go’ proposals, ready for any
funding opportunities that are presented;
7. To bring forward the recommendations from the scrutiny of the current
alliance, so we can learn the lessons for the new partnership;
8. To ensure the new partnership looks to work with all of our diverse
communities to encourage maximum engagement from residents.

Page 167

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D

RESOLUTION OF THE CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE OF 20TH JULY 2021
SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
Following the Chief Executive’s presentation of the draft Business Case and Memorandum
of Agreement, Members’ comments included:
 Recognition of the significant opportunities the partnership would present in terms of
economic development and speaking as a region with one voice
 The important increase in resilience that a larger workforce would provide and the ability
to access more experienced staff to achieve more ambitious projects and attract more
funding
 The chance to improve marketing to increase tourism and attract more businesses to the
area
 The opportunities for staff to advance their careers and specialise
 Appreciation of the pace the process was taking
The following concerns were addressed by the Chief Executive:
 The Council could risk losing its individual identity; it needed to be strengthened, not
simply retained
 The financial projections appeared speculative
 Other partners seemed to benefit more than Boston
 Staffing costs could increase
 Customers should be able to contact staff with local knowledge
 The whole of the borough’s offer should be promoted more visibly
The Committee resolved to that Members’ observations be put together to go forward
to Full Council on 2nd August.
The main comments and suggestions were as follows:


Name the proposed partnership the “East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership”

This would more accurately reflect the wide area covered and to differentiate it from the
South East Lincolnshire partnership formed between SHDC and BBC previously to establish
a Joint Local Plan.


Add the following to Section 4 Scope of Services, to populate the list of Boston’s Lead
Specialisms and Highly Performing Services:
1. Success in the delivery of affordable housing through various partnerships – 750 new
affordable homes over the last five years, one new home every 2.43 days.
2. Securing external funding for community benefit – for example, Towns Fund,
Housing Infrastructure Fund, Controlling Migration fund, Community Champions fund
3. Strategic partner engagement – for example, with Boston College, Port of Boston,
Platform Housing Group



In Section 9: Programme Governance & Management, remove the self-evident
responsibilities from the list for Programme Board Members

Page 169

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix E
RESOLUTION OF THE JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND POLICY
DEVELOPMENT PANEL OF 22 JULY 2021
SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
Following the Strategic Advisor’s introduction of the draft Business Case and Memorandum
of Agreement, Members’ comments included:






There were real opportunities to have an improved tourism offer
Could members be sent ELDC’s brochure setting out leisure plans for Skegness and
Mablethorpe
The Partnership needs to be able to react to opportunities very quickly.
The importance of communicating with all staff throughout the process, following the
Council meeting
The Partnership offers a unique opportunity to apply pressure to Government to
resolve the long-standing discrepancy in the way Internal Drainage Boards are
funded.

The following questions were addressed by the Strategic Advisor:













The risk that joining an existing partnership may result in SHDC having to accept
existing agreed priorities – the Business Case identifies opportunities and it will be
SHDC’s choice whether to adopt the same. There will likely have to be an early
priority to look at waste given the new Environment Bill. Each Council would also
approve an Annual Delivery Plan.
The stages for implementing the new alliance and structure looked lengthy and could
slow down delivery – the stages for building the alliance appeared to be consecutive
in the Business Plan, but they would in fact run in parallel.
Potential requirement for SHDC to migrate to different systems – there were clear
benefits in having uniformity in systems. PSPS had already been asked to produce a
transformation plan to get all three councils on a common systems platform.
Concern about the capacity for delivery in the Place – the Deputy Chief Executives
for Growth and Programme Delivery would work together very closely. This was also
important for Central Government which is seeking local views on the Place and the
powers needed for delivery. The Partnership could assist by providing a strong united
voice.
Concerns that PSPS were already under pressure (delay in preparing annual
accounts given as an example) – PSPS were already responsible for preparing the
accounts for all three authorities so the strategic alliance would not increase pressure
on the PSPS Finance Team.
Concerns that some senior managers may be less invested in South Holland – the
new Chief Executive/HoPS is a resident of SHDC, and (subject to consultation) the
proposed Monitoring Officer is both a resident and a long-standing officer of SHDC
and the proposed Director of Corporate Development/s151 Officer is the current sole
Director of SHDC.
Do we know what approach will be taken regarding agile working – whilst the benefits
of agile working are recognised, no direction of travel has been set and it will be for
each council to consider what is most effective for it.
The Communities portfolio looks very big; have we got the staff to run with it – there
are some very capable individuals, not least in SHDC. The other two councils have
some specific skill sets in some areas that will also support SHDC – such as the
green agenda.

Page 171




Will members be involved in recruitment to the vacant DCX post – initial ‘slot-ins’ are
proposed to be delegated to the HoPS. Vacancies at DCX level will thereafter be
member appointments through the Joint Employment Panel.
Is a 12 month notice period long enough – the arrangement with BDC provided six
months. A notice period longer than 12 months is a very long period, especially in the
political sphere.

The Committee resolved that Members’ observations be put together to go forward to
Full Council on 29 July 2021.
The main comments and suggestions were as follows:










Partnership priorities should include leisure and markets, which should be pursued
proactively.
The corporate priority around Spalding and Holbeach, on page 31 of the Business
Case, should be extended to all South Holland towns.
The ‘Partnership Platform – One Team’ on page 89 should include the Governance
and Audit Committee
There should be a clear list of priorities for 2022/23 and a firm timeline for delivery.
In order to ensure effective and prompt decision-making, the Council should
wherever possible use its own facilities for meetings.
The Council should be willing in the future to review and if necessary amend the
Management Team Structure in light of experience.
There needs to be a focus on looking after the welfare of all staff.
The Partnership should be used as a vehicle to build greater partnership
relationships, including with the Internal Drainage Boards.
There should be a focus on keeping all members engaged in the process, including
briefings to opposition members/leaders and consideration should be given to
collaboration between the councils’ scrutiny panels.

Page 172

Agenda Item 11.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Councillor Rodney Grocock – Portfolio Holder – Assets and Planning

To :

South Holland District Council Thursday, 29 July 2021

Author:

Marc Whelan Strategic and Operational Property Manager

Subject

Allocation of funding for planned works to be undertaken at Spalding
Cemetery, Pinchbeck Road, Spalding.

Purpose:

To secure agreement to amending the Council’s Capital Programme for the
2021-22 Financial Year to make a provision for planned capital works to be
undertaken at Spalding Cemetery and approve the draw-down of the Spalding
Special Expenses Reserve to fund revenue works.

Recommendation(s)
1) To approve the Council’s Capital Programme for the Financial Year 2021-22 be amended to
provide a capital allocation to fund works required to be undertaken at Spalding Cemetery,
Pinchbeck Road, Spalding.
2) To approve that the net capital receipt proceeds from the sale of the Cemetery Gatehouse
(£151k), sold in 2008 and previously providing a revenue income towards the running of the
cemetery, be used to fund the capital works referred to in recommendation 1 above.
3) To approve the allocation of up to £20k from the Council’s Capital Programme to be a sum
set aside as project contingency.
4) To approve a sum of up to £26k of the Spalding Special Expenses Reserve will be used to
fund enabling works (revenue item works required to be undertaken prior to the capital
funded works commencing).
5) To note that following a procurement exercise to determine a suitable contractor to
undertake the capital works a further decision will be required, in this case a Portfolio
Holders decision, to enable the award of a contract for these works.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Council owns and manages the Spalding Cemetery on Pinchbeck Road, Spalding. The
asset requires capital investment to ensure that deterioration of the roadways through the
cemetery over time can be addressed. The roadways have on a regular basis been
patched repaired but the point in time has now come where patch repairing is no longer a
viable option and comprehensive resurfacing works are required.

1.2

Due to the absence of kerbing and narrowness of some roadways, compounded by not
having a one-way system within parts of the cemetery, there has been a deterioration to the
road edging. Works are planned to address this too in specific areas where this occurs
most often, if the recommendations set out in this report are approved

Page 173

1.3

The cemetery has very few areas where cars can park off road. Consequently, grassed
areas are regularly trafficked in certain areas and, cars parked within the grounds can
sometimes hinder the easy flow of other vehicles through the cemetery. The proposed
works include the creation of formal parking bays in some areas and the creation of a oneway system within certain parts of the cemetery in order to manage traffic flow better. New
signage will be erected and the speed limit reduced from 6mph to 5mph with the installation
of speed bumps in a small number of areas.

1.4

In advance of the programme of capital works commencing, enabling works are required
(enabling works are those revenue funded works that have to be undertaken before the
main capital works can commence) in order that those works can be undertaken effectively
and efficiently without what would be inevitable delays in dealing with these items whilst a
road resurfacing contract is underway. These works include demolition of the old and
unused toilet block where new car parking will be created, the removal of surplus mounded
soil, tree works to remove dead or diseased trees and shrubs in certain areas and, the
cutting back of branches which overhang roads and footpaths.
Self-sown trees, i.e. those that have not been formally planted are a particular problem in
certain parts of the cemetery and create issues in close proximity to graves. As part of the
“enabling works” recommended for approval to be funded from the Spalding Special
Expenses Reserve a significant number of these will be removed, This programme also
includes a specialist clean down of the exterior of the two Chapels and the Mausoleum.
These revenue funded works are shown as phases 1& 2 of an overall 3 phase programme.
A summary of the planned works within these 3 phases can be found in Appendix 2. This
Appendix should be read in conjunction with Appendix 1. Appendix 1 contains a colour
coded site plan with useful annotations.

1.5

Works referred to be undertaken in sections 1.1 to 1.3 above are capital items
recommended to be dealt with through an adjustment to the approved capital programme
as set out in this report (recommendations 1, 2 and 3 refer).
Items set out in 1.4 above are to be funded through the Spalding Special Expenses
Reserve balances as revenue items. As at the end of June 2021 the reserve balance was
approximately £98k against which it is recommended in this report that a sum of up to £26k
is allocated for enabling works (phases 1&2 in Appendix 2). The Spalding Special
Expenses Reserve is intended to fund one off items of expenditure such as these.

1.6

Following a procurement exercise to source a suitable contractor for the capital funded
items (Phase 3 works) a further decision will be required, in this case a Portfolio Holder
decision. Such a decision is required to enable the award of a works contract. The total
capital allocation recommended in this report is £171k of which £20k will be a contingency.
Provided suitable tenders are received and recommendations set out in this report being
approved, it is proposed that the contractor would be appointed during August 2021.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Option 1 - To amend the Council’s Capital Programme for the 2021-22 Financial Year to
make provision for Phase 3 capital works to be funded and for Phases 1& 2, the enabling
works, to be funded from the Spalding Special Expenses Reserve balances –
Recommended option.

Page 174

2.2

Option 2 – Fund in a different way to that set out in this report –The sale of the
cemetery gatehouse has provided the opportunity to fund a substantial programme of
works at the time when patch repairing is no longer a cost effective and viable option. The
Spalding Special Expenses Reserve is intended to be used on items such as those set out
in paragraph 1.4 above and referred to in Appendix 2 as Phases 1&2. The Spalding
Cemetery is one of those assets where the operational cost of running the facility is
covered by a special area expense account given Spalding is not covered by a town or
parish council which would ordinarily own and manage local cemetery assets - Not
recommended..

2.3

Option 3 - Do Nothing – namely do not agree the funding recommendations. This would
result in these essential asset works not being undertaken and the roadways further
deteriorate leaving the Council with a potential future health and safety issue as well as
potentially damaging the reputation of the Council.
The planned capital works (summarised in Appendix 2 as phase 3) are essential for the
future safe operation of the cemetery as well as helping to improve the environment for
visitors and support the good work that is already undertaken there by volunteers. They will
also reduce the need to regularly fill potholes over the short/ medium term which could if
not addressed now prove a significant annual cost liability as the road continues to
deteriorate - Not recommended

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To enable a significant upgrade of the roads within the cemetery, creating a safer
environment and an improved experience for visitors through a range of initiatives such as
the creation of car parking and more passing places, the cleaning of buildings, new bench
seating, improved signage and traffic calming measures.
The introduction of a one-way traffic flow in areas that are specifically susceptible to vehicle
blockages is an important feature of these works. Essential investment into roads where
potholes are increasingly more difficult to repair and damage continues to occur to roadway
edgings will reduce the amount of maintenance required to be undertaken by the Council in
the short to medium term to address these issues.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The allocation of funding (capital and revenue) will allow a significant upgrade to the road
surface/ circulation system and add parking spaces to areas within the Cemetery and other
improvements referred to throughout this report.

4.2

Minimise potential future slips and trips and car damage claims which are more likely to
happen if the road surface further deteriorated.

4.3

Increase visitor satisfaction through a variety of operational improvements.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;

Page 175

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.
5.1

Corporate Priorities

5.1.1

Supporting Spalding to be an attractive place to visit
Ensuring the delivery of cost-effective high-quality service provision

5.2

Financial

5.2.1

The cost of the capital works described in the report are to be funded from the Councils
capital receipts, which have accrued, in part, from the net sale proceeds from the sale of
the Cemetery Gatehouse (£151k), sold in 2008. The revenue element of the works will be
funded from the Spalding Special Expenses Reserve balance.

5.3

Reputation

5.3.1 The Cemetery road infrastructure is in need of repair before the onset of Winter with the
previous process of patching no longer economically viable given the age of the road and its
condition.
The Council has already received representations and complaints about the condition of the
roadways in certain areas and works are required. To not carry our essential works could
impact on the reputation of the Council. A programme of works which also addresses the
issue of limited car parking and potential for certain roads being blocked by parked or
oncoming vehicles can only be positively received and help to maintain and enhance the
Councils reputation.
5.4

Risk Management

5.4.1

A potential for slips and trips as the roads and paths fall into further disrepair will be
significantly reduced through carrying out the programme of works set out in this report.

5.5

Constitutional and Legal

5.5.1

The Councils Constitution requires an amendment to its Capital Programme to be approved
by Full Council.
The placing of a works contract for Phase 3 of the works as set out in this report will follow
the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and be subject to a separate Portfolio Holder
Decision once a tendering process has been completed and tenders duly evaluated to
identify a preferred contractor.

5.6.

Equality & Diversity

5.6.1

In developing the scope of works to be procured (Phases 1-3 inclusive) due consideration
has been taken to Equality & Diversity. These matters will be dealt with more fully in a
Portfolio Holder report to follow once the tender process has concluded and a preferred

Page 176

contractor is identified.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All Spalding wards

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None

8.0

CONSULTATIONS

8.1

Councillor Gary Taylor as Ward Councillor, Cllr Bryan Alcock as Chair of Performance
Monitoring Panel and Cllr Roger Gambba-Jones as Chair of Spalding Town Forum have all
been briefed on the basis of the proposals set out in this report.

Background papers:- None
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Marc Whelan Strategic and Operational Property Manager
07341 078 073
Marc.Whelan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix 1 : Plan of Cemetery with useful annotations
Appendix 2 : Scope of Works Summary (All Phases)

Page 177

This page is intentionally left blank

N

Spalding Cemetery Project

Soil Heap to be removed
Parking for 6 Vehicles

Parking for 4 Vehicles

7m

7m

7m

7m

7m

7m
Give way marks
left turn only

7m
Extend corner
Demolished Toilet
Block replaced with
4 New Parking Bays

Give way marks
Exit Left

7m

Exterior Building
Clean Down

7m

New parking signage (14 no.)

New roadway signage (14 no.)

Droppable Bollards (14 no.)

Parking Areas (23 spaces)
Exterior Building
Clean Down
Speed Bump
7m
Site Entrance

Speed Bump

Exterior Building
Clean Down

Drawing not to scale
Site: Spalding Cemetery
Drawing No: SC001
Date:24/06/21
Drawn By: R Hastie
Page 179

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2 – Summary of Revenue and Capital funded Items – to be read in
conjunction with layout plan in Appendix 1.
Phases 1 & 2 – Works to be funded by Spalding Special Expenses Reserve
Balance
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

CUT BACK TREES, HEDGES & FOLIAGE FROM ROADSIDE, REMOVE SAPLINGS AND DEAD/
DISEASED TREES
REMOVE SOIL MOUND AT REAR OF SITE TO OFF SITE
DEMOLISH TOILET BUILDING AND CREATE HARDSTANDING AREA FOR FUTURE PARKING (SEE
PHASE 3 WORKS)
INSTALL DROP BOLLARDS WITH UNIVERSAL KEY TO PREVENT VEHICULAR ACCESS
ALL BUILDINGS / MONUMENTS – PROFESSIONLY CLEANED
SLABS LAYED FOR EXISTING BENCHES TO BE FIXED TO
SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION NEW WIRE BINS / REMOVAL OF EXISTING BLACK BINS

Phase 3 – Works to be funded from the Capital Programme.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ROAD RESURFACING OF SECTIONS 1 TO 8 AS PER COLOUR CODED PLAN (APPENDIX 1)
TRAFFIC CALMING - SLEEPING POLICEMEN INSTALLED (AREA 1)
12 NEW PARKING SPACES AT KEY POINTS AS INDICATED ON PLAN (AREAS 3, 5 & 6)
CREATION OF NEW ONE-WAY SYSTEM FROM TOILET BLOCK LOCATION (AREA 3 ONWARDS)
NEW SIGNAGE & SPEED LIMIT DROPPED TO 5MPH FROM 6MPH
NEW ROAD MARKINGS INC. CLEARLY DEFINING THE ONE-WAY SYSTEM (AREA 3 ONWARDS)
NEW KERBS TO COUNTER EROSION OF RELAID ROADS/DRAINAGE (AREA 3 ONWARDS)

Page 181

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for HRA & Private Sector Housing and Executive Director Strategy and Resources (S151)

To:

South Holland District Council Thursday, 29 July 2021

(Author:

Jason King Assistant Director Housing)

Subject

HRA- Energy Efficiency Improvements Project

Purpose:

To agree acceptance of Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery capital
funding of £800,000 and enabling funding of £87,300. To agree an amendment
to the HRA capital programme of £1,152,300, to be funded by £887,300 Green
Homes Grant and £265,000 for match funding required under the scheme. To
agree retrofit works to council properties at a total initial value of £1,152,300
and approve the acceptance of grant funding and the necessary amendments
to the HRA capital budget. To award a contract Rybka for consultancy works
and Aaron Services Ltd for retrofit works at the initial value of £1,152,300. To
allow future call off works for a period of up to 8 years at a value not
exceeding £8,000,000.

Recommendation(s):
1) That Council approve acceptance of capital funding of £800,000 under the terms of the
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery scheme.
2) That Council approve acceptance of enabling funding of £87,300 under the same scheme.
3) That Council approve an amendment to the HRA capital programme to include a budget of
£1,152,300, to be funded by £887,300 Green Homes Grant and £265,000 to match fund
retrofit works in accordance with requirements of the scheme.
4) That Council approve the acceptance of grant monies together with outlined budget
amendments to enable match funding for retrofit works with an initial contract value of
£1,152,300.
5) That a contract is awarded to Rybka for consultancy works and Aaron Services Ltd for
retrofit works at an initial contract value of £1,152,300.

6) That future call off works for a period of up to 8 years at a value not exceeding £8,000,000
be approved.
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1 In response to the Government target for social housing providers to increase the energy
efficiency of their homes, the Council applied for Green Homes Grant, Local Authority Delivery,
Phase 1B funding. Following a successful bid, the funding award consists of £255,000 for
capital improvements and £38,250 for enabling works. A third of the works to each property will
be additionally match funded from the Councils capital programme. The Council has been

Page 183

offered a further £545,000 for capital works and £49,050 for enabling works under Phase 2 of
the Green Homes Grant scheme. The total match funding requirements are £265,000.
1.2 The above funding opportunities have short delivery timescales, September 2021 for phase 1B
and December 2021 for Phase 2. It is likely that any future funding opportunities will have
similar delivery timetables. To ensure the Council can bid to appropriate funding schemes or
accept funding offers, it is proposed to let the works to two contractors under the Crescent
Purchasing Consortium (CPC) Energy Efficiency framework. The scope of the contract enables
the Council to award approximately £8,000,000 of works over an eight-year period. It should be
noted that this is the scope of the contract award and not a committed contract value.
1.3 Social housing providers have been set the target of all homes achieving a minimum EPC C
rating by 2035. Following a review of Council properties, a significant proportion of the Councils
housing stock will require programme improvements to ensure this minimum rating is achieved.
Awarding a contract to Rybka for enabling works and Aaron Services Ltd for programme
improvements through the CPC Energy Efficiency framework will ensure the Council has a
programme approach to achieving this target.
1.4 Part of the funding shall be used for the consultants to undertake EPC surveys prior to the
works and post completion of works as per the funding criteria to reach an EPC band C rating.
They will also undertake assessments to capture the most cost effective, and energy efficient
solution for each property to ensure value for money. The works to be undertaken will vary in
relation to the current status of the individual properties. Many will require some major works
carrying out such as solar pv, cavity wall, loft and floor insulation, replacement heating systems
and in some cases replacement windows and doors. Others will require minimal works such as
energy efficient lighting or additional heating controls.
1.5 The contract award will be for an initial 4-year period, with the option to extend for a further 4
years (4+2+2). The Council may review this contract and the suitability of the framework over
time. However, it is beneficial to the Council to utilise the proposed contract and framework as
a delivery vehicle to secure additional funding as future prospectuses are advertised. As with
the schemes advertised to date, it is anticipated that the Council will need to respond and
deliver in a short timeframe.
1.6 The Council will need to continue to deliver works to properties where the funding criteria of
obtaining EPC band C is not met and this contract and framework arrangement will provide an
opportunity to do this. This could be due to the property or tenants circumstances, as each
funding allocation contains certain stipulations. The conditions of awarding to this framework do
not restrict the Council in awarding future works to other contractors through an open market
tender or alternative framework. There is no minimum spend requirements on this framework
agreement.
2.0

OPTIONS

2.1 Option 1 - To initially award a contract to Rybka for consultancy services and Aaron Services
Ltd to undertake retrofit work to a value of £1,152,300. (For phases 1b and 2.) To recommend
acceptance of the grant funding offered to the Council together with amendments to the HRA
capital programme. To allow a call off on this framework for up to a potential 8 years at a total
estimated contract value of £8,000,000. Recommended.

Page 184

2.2 Option 2 – Consider alternative procurement options, including an open market tender or a
direct award to an alternative framework. It should be noted that this option might cause
significant delays in the appointment of a contractor, resulting in the initial grant monies
becoming a payback risk. Not recommended.
2.3 Option 3 – Do nothing. This is not considered a viable option as the Council will have to meet
Government’s targets to achieve an EPC C rating in every property by 2035. In addition, the
grant monies secured would have to be paid back. Not recommended.
3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 The initial grant under Phase 1B has to be spent by 30th September 2021. In order to deliver
capital improvements to meet this timeframe, a direct award under a framework agreement is
considered the most proficient option. By using the CPC framework, the consultants and
contractors have proved value for money by being allowed on to the framework. In addition the
necessary accreditations required by BEIS including PAS2035 and Trustmark.
3.2 Entering into a contract for a lengthy period is considered advantageous under the terms of the
framework. As there is no commitment to spend the total, contract value is an upper limit. This
enables the Council to advantageously bid for future funding opportunities. The benefit of the
framework can be regularly reviewed to ensure the Council continues to receive value for
money and access to contractors that meet the requirements of the work to be delivered.
Alternative procurement options may then be considered.
4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 By appointing Rybka (consultant works) and Aaron Services Ltd (improvement works) from the
same framework, this gives a good continuity of support should any issues arise.
4.2 BEIS have stipulated that all projects must be completed by contractors and consultants with a
minimum of PAS2030. All CPC framework contractors are PAS2035 accredited, this enhances
the Council’s ability to seek external funding.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues
5.1.1

The works awarded under these contracts will have a direct positive impact on Council
properties. Reducing our carbon footprint by making our properties more energy efficient in
line with the minimum requirements ahead of 2035. The works will also benefit the tenants
by improving their thermal comfort and reducing the costs of running their home.

5.2 Constitutional & Legal
5.2.1

The procurement was subject to a direct award via the CPC Energy Efficiency frameworks
(N8 for works and N8C for consultancy and therefore meets requirements under both UK
and EU Procurement Law and the Constitution’s Contract Procedure Rules.

5.3 Contracts

Page 185

5.3.1

The Contract will be compliant and agreed with the framework provider. It is envisaged that
our Standard Terms and Conditions will be suitable for the Consultancy and a JCT
Measured Term Contract 2016 will be used for the works contract.

5.4 Corporate Priorities
5.4.1

This Contract allows the Council to meet Corporate Priority; “Your Home”.

5.5 Financial
5.5.1

The financial implications of the scheme are set out in the table below.
Funding
Capital
SHDC
Enabling SHDC Total costs
scheme/Budget
match
works
match
funding
funding
GHG 1B

£255,000

£85,000

£38,250

£0

£378,250

GHG 2

£545,000

£180,000

£49,050

£0

£774,050

Total

£800,000

£265,000

£87,300

£0

£1,152,300

5.6 Health & Wellbeing
5.6.1

Studies show that by improving insulation within homes, temperatures are increased;
relative humidity, costs and mould are reduced. These changes have had a positive impact
on residents by improving their health and well-being resulting in lower utilisation of
healthcare services.

5.7 Reputation
5.7.1

It is considered that improving the thermal comfort of our resident’s homes will have a
positive impact on our tenants. In meeting the Council’s aspiration to become a landlord of
choice, continuous investment in our housing stock will ensure our homes continue to be
desirable to prospective new tenants in the future.

5.8 Risk Management
5.8.1

By entering into this contract, we will be stopping the risk of challenge as this will be
compliant spend under an approved framework.

5.9 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales
5.9.1

The necessary stakeholders have been involved in the process throughout.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All Wards.

Page 186

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1 BEIS- Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy.
7.2 CPC- Crescent Purchasing Consortium.
7.3 GHG- Green Homes Grant.
Background papers:- Portfolio Holder Decision- HRA Energy Efficiency Improvements Project.
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Jason King Assistant Director Housing
N/A.
JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

Y

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report: N/A.

Page 187

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Public Protection

To:

South Holland District Council 29 July 2021

Author:

Donna Hall Head of Public Protection

Subject

Pavement Licences

Purpose:

To consider continuing to delegate to the Lincolnshire County Council
authority to discharge all functions relating to pavement licences under
sections 1 to 9 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 as amended

Recommendations:
1) That Lincolnshire County Council be authorised to discharge, for the South Holland District
Council area, all functions relating to pavement licences contained in sections 1 to 9 of the
Business and Planning Act 2020 as amended by the Business and Planning Act 2020
(Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2021
2) That the Head of Public Protection be authorised to agree any future extension or changes
to the administration of the scheme.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Business and Planning Act 2020 received Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. Sections 1 to
9 allow local authorities to issue pavement licences to enable proprietors of premises which
sell food or drink for consumption on or off the premises to place removable furniture on
part of a highway adjacent to their premises, either to enable the proprietor to sell or serve
food or drink, or for use by customers.

1.2

The purpose of this legislation is to provide a cheaper, easier and quicker way for
businesses to obtain licences with a view to businesses being able to make better use of
outdoor space.

1.3

This was a temporary provision to expire on 30 September 2021

1.4

The Act placed this function with the District Council, but it was agreed by this Council at a
meeting on 29 July 2020 that this function be delegated to Lincolnshire County Council.
The rationale being that the County Council already dealt with furniture licences under Part
7 A of the Highways Act 1980, and that all other Districts in the County were also in
agreement to delegate this function to the County Council for consistency.

1.5

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment)
Regulations 2021 came into force on 20th July 2021

Page 189

1.6

These new Regulations extend the expiry date of sections 1 to 9 of the Business and
Planning Act 2020 from 30 September 2021 to 30 September 2022. New pavement
licences which are subject to applications received on or after the date on which the
Regulations came into force will expire on 30 September 2022 unless an earlier date is
stated in the licence

1.7

The legislation does not automatically extend licences because existing licences were
granted by Lincolnshire County Council on the basis that they would be in place until 30
September 2021 or before, as per the legislation. As a result, businesses will need to apply
for a new licence if they wish to have one in place during the extended period. Officers will
work with County Council and businesses if required to assist with any extension
applications.

1.8

There is a maximum fee of £100 chargeable for applications, although Lincolnshire County
Council have not been making a charge for this to date.

1.9

Lincolnshire County Council have granted 5 licences under the Business and Planning Act
within South Holland District since the scheme started in July 2020, with 3 licences being
granted under the Highways Act.

1.10

Lincolnshire County Council notify and consult with the District Council on receipt of an
application. The applicant is required by County Council to submit a plan or drawing of the
proposed layout, proof of permission from adjoining properties if the extension is proposed
beyond their frontage, proof of public liability insurance (minimum £5million). The applicant
is also required to display a specified public notice on the premises for five full working
days from the day of application. Notices are also published on the Lincolnshire County
Council website.

1.11

The Business and Planning Act 2020 states that functions relating to pavement licences
are non-executive functions, and therefore any decision to delegate this function to the
County Council must be made by the full Council.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To continue to delegate this function to the Lincolnshire County Council. This is the
preferred option.

2.2

Not to delegate this function to the Lincolnshire County Council. This option is not
recommended, but if members decide to pursue this option it is recommended that the
Head of Public Protection be authorised, in consultation with the portfolio holder for Public
Protection, to determine the fee and all other matters, including conditions and duration of
licences.

2.3

Do nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

The Lincolnshire County Council already administers this scheme on behalf of South
Holland District Council under the Business and Planning Act.

Page 190

3.2

The scheme is intended to enable a quicker, cheaper temporary procedure for allowing
businesses selling food or drink to obtain authority to place tables and chairs on the
highway adjacent to their premises.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

All District Councils within Lincolnshire have provisionally agreed to continue to delegate
this function to the County Council, allowing an integrated process across the County.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1

Sections 1 to 9 of the Business and Planning Act 2020 came into effect on 22 July 2020.

5.1.2

In accordance with section 8 of the Act, the functions relating to pavement licences are
non-executive functions and cannot be dealt with by the Cabinet.

5.1.3

Under section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, a local authority may arrange for the
discharge of any of their non-executive functions by another local authority.

5.1.4

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment)
Regulations 2021 came into force on 20th July 2021 amending the end date of the scheme
to 30th September 2022.

5.2

Financial

5.2.1

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. Lincolnshire County
Council will be able to charge a fee of up to £100 per licence, but that is a matter for the
County Council to determine. At the time of writing this report it was understood that no
charge was anticipated.

5.3

Health & Wellbeing

5.3.1

The licences are intended to assist relevant businesses to operate safely during the
pandemic.

5.4

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.4.1

The Act requires the relevant Council to consult on each application, with the consultation
period being 5 days beginning with the day after the day on which the application is made.
The County Council consults with a number of interested parties including the District
Council.

Page 191

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All wards.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None

Background papers:Lincolnshire County Council Code of Practice for Street Cafes and Stalls can be found on their
website here
The Business and Planning Act 2020 (Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment
Regulations 2021
The Business and Planning Act 2020

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Donna Hall Head of Public Protection
donna.hall@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 192

Agenda Item 14.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Councillor Glynis P Scalese

To:

South Holland District Council Thursday, 29 July 2021

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Team Leader)

Subject

Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire report

Purpose:

To provide South Holland District Council with an update following the latest
meeting of the Health Scrutiny for Lincolnshire Committee

Recommendation:
That the report be noted.

1.0

Update of Community Health Service NHS Trust following the Covid-19 Pandemic

1.1

Integrated Urgent Care Service Louth, Gainsborough, Skegness and Spalding have been
restored as Urgent Treatment Centres which means that the population of Lincolnshire will
have full coverage of the comprehensive range of urgent care services.

1.2

The average daily attendance at Spalding pre Covid-19 was 59. Since restoration the site is
now a UTC and attendance numbers are recovering well averaging at 36 per day and
rising.

1.3

Boston will be eased now that Spalding has been restored and waiting times will have a
positive impact on patients.

1.4

Community Nursing services are now fully restored.

1.5

There are currently 320 Community Nurses in Lincolnshire. Training of new intake students
is underway and 4 students are to go to Lincoln University for Community Nursing training.

2.0

Covid-19 Vaccination Programme

2.1

Delivery models have been developed safely, rapidly and efficiently to vaccinate eligible
cohorts.

2.2

The Boston venue opened on 18 January 2021 and the Lincoln venue opened on 2
February 2021. Both sites are fully operational and have successfully delivered services in
line with the national provider and operational specifications.

3.0

United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust – General Update

3.1

The Trust had a very positive well-led domain review with the CQC on 6 May 2021.

Page 193

3.2

The new Urgent Treatment Centre at Lincoln County Hospital was opened on 5 May 2021.
This new £3.5m facility includes a new reception and waiting area that complies with the
latest social distancing guidance, ten treatment rooms and a new x-ray and redacted triage
area.

4.0

Infection Prevention and Control Advice

4.1

As part of a measured approach, given the absence of strong clinical evidence available
and the limited roll-out of the vaccine programme at the time, the Trust has kept a
segregated area in the centre of the hospital for those patients attending for an elective
procedure, endoscopy or chemotherapy. This has been well observed by staff, patients and
the public.

4.2

Front line staff continue to take twice weekly lateral flow tests and have had daily
temperature checks on site. Patients are swabbed and tested in advance of their
attendance.

4.3

The number of patients in hospital in the Trust with Covid-19 varies on a daily basis but is
fewer than 10 compared to more than 70 in March and a peak of over 250 in January,
2021.

4.4

Boston currently has one Covid-19 patient.

4.5

Staff vacancies are now much lower and overseas recruiting is still happening and is
looking very promising.

5.0

United Lincolnshire Hospital NHS Trust Urology Services

5.1

Cancelled operations stand at around 1900 cancelled by the hospital and 600 cancelled by
the patient.

5.2

Around 25% of procedures are cancelled on the day the procedure is planned.

5.3
.
5.4

Around 10% of hospital cancelled procedures are due to lack of beds

6.0

Planned Surgery

6.1

At the moment there is a choice of location for planned surgery. This can be Pilgrim
Hospital Boston, Grantham & District Hospital, Lincoln County Hospital or County Hospital
Louth. Surgery normally takes place at the location with the shortest waiting time. This will
not change and patients will still have the choice as planned surgery will continue to be
provided at all the sites.

7.0

Follow Up Care/Outpatient Appointments

7.1

There are no changes proposed to the location of follow-up appointments or post
treatment/surgery appointments. A patient should be able to attend the hospital of their
choice for follow-up appointments and there should be no impact on the patient in terms of
access to services and distance of travel.

Around 7% of hospital cancelled procedures are due to lack of surgeon availability.

Page 194

8.0

Update on Pilgrim Hospital Boston Paediatric Service

8.1

It is being considered to support moving this service towards a Short Stay Paediatric
Assessment Unit with an average length of stay below 24 hours. The remit of this unit will
be to deliver both an assessment and short term observation function with the option of
some children with defined care plans remaining on the unit beyond 48 hours.

8.2

Staffing levels have improved but more nurses are needed and being recruited.

9.0

National General Practice Data for Planning and Research

9.1

Data held in GP medical records of patients is used every day to support health and care
planning and research in England, helping to find better treatments and improve patient
outcomes for everyone. NHS Digital has collected data from General Practices using a
service called the General Practice Extraction Service for over ten years and this is now
being replaced. NHS Digital has engaged with doctors, patients, the British Medical
Association, the Royal College of GPs, the National Data Guardian and data and
governance experts, to design a new process called The General Practice Data for
Planning and Research Data Collection.

10.0

ACRONYMS

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4

NHS – National Health Service
UTC – Urgent Treatment Centre
CQC – Care Quality Commission
GP – General Practice

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Team Leader
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

Page 195

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities

To:

South Holland District Council 29th July 2021

Author:

Emily Holmes, Communities Manager

Subject:

The operation of the South Holland Centre

Purpose:

To obtain approval to proceed with the implementation of the proposed
structure to accompany revised operations

Recommendation(s):
1) That Members note the update contained within this report in respect of the reopening plans for
the South Holland Centre;
2) That Members approve the proposed changes to the staffing structure in respect of the South
Holland Centre, and that the Executive Director (Strategy & Resource) in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities be authorised to implement the proposed
staffing structure and to take any incidental or subsidiary action that may be necessary to
enable such implementation.

1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

Current situation

1.2

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a huge impact on leisure and culture venues across the
country. This unprecedented event for the cultural and hospitality sector as a whole has
presented major challenges financially and operationally across the industry; locally,
nationally and globally.

1.3

The South Holland Centre closed on 18 March 2020 in line with government instructions at
the start of the pandemic. To sustain the venue during its period of closure, the Council has
received support from Arts Council England through the Culture Recovery Fund, to protect
and sustain cultural arts facilities during the pandemic as they transition to reopening in a
more viable way. Fundamental changes in the arts and cultural landscape has led to a
need to review the South Holland Centre offer locally as part of the planned reopening
process. This includes; customer behavioural changes accessing cultural content through
other channels while venues have been closed, social distancing impacting on audience
capacity and available product.

1.4

While the South Holland Centre has been closed, the council has sought to ensure the
continuation of arts and culture provision within the community. This has been supported by
commissioning collaborative community arts projects, which brought arts and culture to
residents and supported local freelance artists. Digital arts project ‘The March of the
Nutcrackers’, virtual pantomime, ‘online escape room’ creative challenge with our partners
at LOV and an arts installation in empty shop windows working with Transported are
examples of initiatives that have taken place. The South Holland Outdoor Festival planned
through the Summer months, is another example of where the council has sought to
continue to provide cultural arts provision in a way that accommodates the challenges

Page 197

presented by the pandemic. The festival will see work take place with local actors to deliver
a theatrical guided walking tour.
1.5

Whilst preparing for reopening, the council has sought to monitor closely the national,
regional and local picture for the sector and the regularly updated guidance in respect of
the reopening of cultural venues. Despite the presence of guidance and intelligence from
the industry, there are still a number of future unknowns that may impact upon the
operation of, and local engagement with, the centre. These include the potential impact of
any further variants or an increase in cases and currently there is limited market data or
intelligence on customer return rates. It is presently unknown as to how long it will take for
the leisure and hospitality industries to begin to recover.

1.6

Last summer, a small number of national cinema chains re-opened. This was based on trial
opening hours and reduced number of venues across the country. These plans were
quickly scaled-back and some cinemas that opened only achieved income levels of
approximately 20%. However, during 2021, cinema reopening in national chains have been
more widespread and film releases are now more certain.

1.7

Return to live indoor theatre performances has not been tested and it is difficult to project
potential income levels in the existing market. The vast majority of professional and
commercial events will only be financially viable without social distancing measures.

1.8

The South Holland Centre’s re-opening programme and procedure has been developed
using feedback from our customers to encourage return to the venue. Of the 1,847 who
responded to the survey, 80% want to see cinema, 50% live music, 44% comedy, 43%
musical theatre and 23% community productions. The Summer cinema programme has a
large selection of films to choose from and our live events programme from the Autumn is
being finalised as more product becomes available. Additionally, customer feedback has
helped shape our reopening procedures. Although venues can return to full capacity, 40%
of our survey responders would only feel comfortable if social distancing measures are in
place.

1.9

The funds awarded to the South Holland Centre through the Cultural Recovery Fund were
provided to support cultural organisations as they transition to viable and sustainable
operating models with a clear remit for venues to review their operations to be more
sustainable in the future. The phased approach being taken to reopening is to support the
South Holland Centre to reopen and to safeguard arts and cultural provision in the district.
To achieve both aims, the South Holland Centre cannot operate in the same way that it did
before.

1.10

The uncertainty in return to cinema and theatre and reduced income levels would increase
the level of public subisdy needed significantly. This is a major risk to the future of the
service if alternative operating models are not implemented.

1.11

Consequently, this report seeks to agree proposals in respect of the staffing of the centre,
which have been designed to meet the resourcing requirements of the centre’s programme,
whilst providing a cost effective, flexible workforce that can sustain arts and cultural
provision in the district.

1.12

Summary of the proposed staffing structure and resourcing changes

1.13

In order to meet the resourcing requirements of the centre’s programme, whilst providing a
cost effective, flexible workforce, the proposed changes in staffing are:


The creation of a new staffing structure as set out in Appendix A (expemt)

Page 198







That all roles will have front facing responsibilities when customers are in the building
for a programmed event which means that there will be better application of resources
to deal with peak demands in different areas of the business
That roles are re-shaped to include combination of back office and customer focused
roles, including management roles
That specialist roles also undertake some non-specialist duties and tasks within the
week which enables a more effective use of staff time whilst on site
That the staffing requirements through both annualised hours and the utilisation of
casual posts, will flex and change based on the needs of each programme item and its
production
That staff who are redeployed into other roles within the council are able to also have
casual roles at the South Holland Centre, retaining skills within the organisation that can
be called upon as needed

1.14

Full details of the proposed changes to staffing structure are contained within exempt
Appendix A. This section of the report is exempt under paragraphs 1,2 and 4 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

2.0

OPTIONS
Option 1 – To proceed as per the report recommendations (Recommended). Under
this option, council will agree to accept the recommended changes to the staffing structures
and agree delegations, allowing the implementation of the revised structure in Appendix A
to proceed. The proposed staffing structure will enable a flexible approach to the be applied
to the programme at the South Holland Centre whilst uncertainty in the industry remains
and the sector recovers. This option is recommended for the reasons and benefits outlined
below.
Option 2 – Do nothing – not agree the recommended changes (Not recommended).
This option is not recommended, as it will not enable the council to adopt a resourcing
structure for the centre which is in keeping with the requirements of the current programme,
nor will it enable the council to operate with a cost effective workforce.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To enable the centre to be staffed and resourced in a way which meets the resourcing
requirements of the centre’s programme, whilst providing a cost effective, flexible workforce
that could sustain arts and cultural provision in the district of the South Holland Centre.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

It is anticipated that Option 1 would provide the following benefits:




The revised structure supports new ways of working which support the South Holland
Centre to reopen and to provide a key cultural offer for the district. It is flexible and staffing
levels will expand and contract as necessary, operating in a more cost effective way.
Gives certainty to the team who have been through a period of extended change and have
not been able to undertake their usual duties or roles since March 2020
The revised structure and ways of working mitigate the reduction in income that is
expected while the arts, culture and hospitality industry recovers.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Corporate Priorities

Page 199

5.1.1 The services provided through the South Holland Centre contribute towards the Council’s
priorities; ‘Your Place’ and ‘Your Health and Wellbeing’ as well as supporting the wider town
centre offer.
5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Any service proposals which affect the establishment and have the potential for any
redundancy activity must first be approved by Full Council which can delegate the
implementation of proposals. This delegation is outlined in the recommendation.
5.2.2 This process has been undertaken in line with the Council’s Managing Change Policy
5.3

Financial

5.3.1 The report carries with it staffing and finance implications and these are considered in
Appendix A.
5.4

Risk Management

5.4.1

There is potential for redundancies for South Holland Centre employees. Mitigations are in
place with opportunities for redeployment into vacant posts across the authority, as well as
vacant posts in the new structure at the South Holland Centre.

5.4.2

The new structure contains roles which combine functions and tasks, retaining specialist
skills and knowledge within the Centre mitigating risk of loss of skills.

5.5

Equality and Diversity
A key element of the Arts Council England requirements is to improve diversity of
workforce, governance, audiences, visitors and participants. Matters of equality and
diversity have been considered in preparing the proposals contained within this report.
Officers have not identified any equality and diversity implications in respect of the report
recommendations.

5.6

Staffing

5.6.1

The report recommendation carries with it a series of staffing implications and these are
considered in Appendix A.

5.7

Consultation

5.7.1

Staff and Unions have been consulted in accordance with legal requirements and the
outcome of this is set out in Appendix A.

5.8

Contracts

5.8.1 Any changes to terms and conditions of service is a contract issue.
6.0

Wards affected

6.1

All wards

7.0

Acronyms

Page 200

7.1
SHC
FTE
LOV

South Holland Centre
Full Time Equivalent
Lincolnshire One Venues

Background papers
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Emily Holmes, Communities Manager
01775 764469
eholmes@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:
Exempt Decision:

N
Y - partial

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:

Appendix A

Exempt

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 203

Agenda Item 19.

This page is intentionally left blank

